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GROUP PROFILE
SEEN

Time Interconnect Technology Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a well-established supplier of customised
interconnect solutions with 30 years experience in the industry and
expanded the business scale continuously in 2020 and 2021 covering
digital cable business and automotive wire harness business. The Group is
headquartered in Hong Kong, and has manufacturing facilities in Shanghai,
Suzhou and Huizhou, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The Group currently manufactures and supplies, a wide variety of copper &
optical fiber cable assemblies and digital cable products which are produced
to the specifications and designs, of its individual customer partners.
Its products are used by a number of established PRC and international
customers in a variety of market sectors, including telecommunication,
data centre, industrial equipment, medical equipment, automotive wire
harness and digital cables.

Its business features on customised cable assemblies and cable products for
a variety of specifications which are used in a wide range of applications.
The Group supplies cable products on a Contract Manufacturing Services
(CMS) basis, and its cable products are made-to-order, upon receipt of its
customers’ orders.

VISION

To be a leading provider of electronic interconnect products, continually
recognised as a “Preferred Supplier” capable of delivering world class
quality, products and services — EACH and EVERY TIME.

STRATEGY

To become a Tier-1 supplier of cable products and high performance
interconnect products to the market leaders in the 5G telecommunication,
data communication, healthcare, transport and industrial sectors.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wong Chi Kuen

Non-executive Director:

Ms. Wang Laichun (Chairman) (Appointed on 19 April 2022)
Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul (Chairman) (Resigned on 19 April 2022)
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ho Hin Shun

Mr. Luk Wai Shing

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Hin Shun

Mr. Luk Wai Shing
Remuneration Committee
Mr. Ho Hin Shun (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen

Mr. Luk Wai Shing

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric
Nomination Committee

Mr. Luk Wai Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen

Mr. Ho Hin Shun

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Ng Hoi Ying

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen
Ms. Ng Hoi Ying

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Frontpage Capital Limited
26/F, Siu On Centre, 188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

35/F, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAWS
CFN Lawyers in association with Broad and Bright
Units 4101-04, 41/F Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 601, Photonics Centre, 2 Science Park East Avenue
Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park

PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

(which will be relocated to 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with
effect from Monday, 15 August 2022)

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Citic Bank International Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited (Huizhou Branch)

HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China) Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.time-interconnect.com

STOCK CODE
1729
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RIBEE

For the year ended 31 March

BE-A=T—HIEFE

Operating results (HK$'million)

Revenue

Gross profit

Total profit for the year

Adjusted total profit for the year (Note)

Basic earnings per share (Hong Kong cents)

Adjusted basic earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents) (Note)

Financial position (HK$'million)

Cash generated from operations

Bank balances and cash

Shareholders’ funds

Capital expenditure

Key ratios (%)

Gross profit margin

Net profit margin

Adjusted net profit margin (Note)
EBITDA/Revenue

Adjusted EBITDA/Revenue (Note)
Return on shareholders’ funds

Note:  For reconciliations of the reported results to an adjusted basis, including lists of [zt -
adjustment items, see page 19.
Revenue
se
Yz
HK$'million HK$'million
BHEET BHEET
3,590.1
3,600 240
3,150 3,008.0 210
2,780.2
2,700 180
2,250 150
1,800 120
1,438.8
1350 - 1,238.4 - 13144 9%
900 60
450 30
0 0
2018 2019 2020 2020 2021 2022 2018
(restated)
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Net profit and Net profit margin
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9.1

10.6

262.5
220.9
1,051.2
59.4

16.4
4.7
5.4
9.6
9.8

16.0

Change

2021 gk
3,008.0 19.4%
580.2 1.4%
2266 -25.7%
230.8  -15.4%
123 -26.0%
125  -152%
189.8 38.3%
156.6 41.1%
852.5 23.3%
46.8 26.9%
19.3 -2.9pts
7.5 -2.8pts
7.7 -2.3pts
12.7 -3.1pts
12.9 -3.1pts
26.6  -10.6pts
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2019

2020 2020
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
| am pleased to present to you the annual report of TIME Interconnect
Technology Limited (and together with its subsidiaries) for the year ended
31 March 2022 (the “Review Year” or “FY2022"). During the Review
Year, the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has continued to create impact
on the business operations of various enterprises in different manners and
has changed the ways we live, work and learn. Although vaccines have
been available, vaccine promotion has been slow and virus variants have
appeared. The pandemic has become more severe in some parts of the
world since April 2021. In addition, many containers are stranded in ports
with inactive business, and there is a serious shortage of containers in
the market, which has led to a surge in transportation costs and freight
delays. Hence, the Group's shipments have been obstructed directly and
the business growth has been adversely affected. Facing the challenging
and uncertain external environment, the Group has taken all effective
measures to minimize the impact of the 2019 coronavirus epidemic. The
Group is still full of confidence in its future development.

During the Review Year, the average copper price increased a lot. As
a result, although the impact of the copper price fluctuation has been
directly passed through to customers and the amount of gross profit of the
orders has not been affected by such copper price, the gross profit margin
has been inevitably diluted. In the meantime, coupled with the increase in
other costs, such as PVC cost, packing materials cost and labour cost, the
Group's profitability in certain sectors has been affected differently. As the
materials cost still on the high side, the Group has adjusted the selling price
to its customers in May 2021 and May 2022.

TIME Interconnect Technology (Huizhou) Limited (“Huizhou TIME"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was honoured to
receive the Supplier Award for Outstanding Contribution from ASM Pacific
Technology Limited (“ASM", our major customer in industrial equipment
sector) for the first two quarters of 2021. We greatly appreciate the long-
term collaboration with ASM and look forward to being a valued partner
of their global supply chain continuously.

During the Review Year, we have completed the acquisition of the
business of manufacturing and sales of automotive wire harness engaged
by GP Industries Marketing Limited and its subsidiaries (“GPIM Group”)
at the final consideration of HK$69.0 million. The Group believes that the
automotive wiring products can help the Group to provide its customers
with a broader product portfolio, and to step into a new business sector
by enriching the Group’s business portfolio and broadening its unique
customer base to capture opportunities brought by the booming electric
vehicle market. This business offered attractive opportunities to expand
and diversify the Group’s business and investment portfolio, and to
enhance our income sources and long-term development potential.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (conT'D)
EEHRE @)

It is worth mentioning that on 16 March 2022, Luxshare Precision Limited
(“Luxshare Precision”) acquired an aggregate of 1,380,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company for the total cash consideration of
HK$1,104,000,000, which then represented approximately 72.18% of
the issued shares capital of the Company as at the date of the completion
and became the controlling shareholder of the Company. We believe
that the strategic alliance between Luxshare Precision and the Company
would enable the Company to further benefit from the development
and synergy in the fields of consumer electronics, communications,
healthcare, automobile industry in terms of products, customers, and
marketing, through integration of customer and market resources as
well as technologies and R&D capabilities of the Luxshare Group. In the
meantime, the plan for spin-off and separate listing of Huizhou TIME on a
stock exchange in the PRC will also be shelved.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Despite the challenges in the macro-economy environment and the
difficulties brought by COVID-19, the Group’s business has been
continuously growing through a series of strategic acquisition and
deployments. During the Review Year, the Group recorded revenue
amounting to HK$3,590.1 million, representing an increase of HK$582.1
million or 19.4% as compared with HK$3,008.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2021 (the “Previous Year” or “"FY2021"). The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to the increase of digital cable sector since
major oversea markets have been progressively reopened and the organic
growth of cable assembly sector.

The Group recorded an increase of HK$7.9 million or 1.4% in gross profit to
HK$588.1 million in FY2022 as compared to HK$580.2 million recorded in
FY2021. The gross profit margin decreased from approximately 19.3% for
FY2021 to approximately 16.4% for FY2022. During the Review Year, the
operating profit for the Review Year was HK$277.0 million, representing
a decrease of HK$43.6 million or 13.6%, as compared with HK$320.6
million for the previous financial year, with the operating profit margin
dropping 3.0% from 10.7% to 7.7 % for the Review Year. The decrease of
operating profit was mainly attributable to the increase in various materials
costs, labour costs, transportation costs and R&D costs. Net profit of the
Review Year was HK$168.3 million, representing a decrease of HK$58.3
million or 25.7%, as compared with HK$226.6 million for the previous
financial year, with the net profit margin dropping 2.8% from 7.5% to
4.7% for the Review Year.

After considering the Group’s short term financial needs and its cash on
hand, the Board has proposed to recommend to the Shareholders the
payment of a final dividend in respect of FY2022 of HK1 cent (2021: HK1.5
cents) per share, amounting to a total of approximately HK$19.5 million.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (conT'D)
EEHE m)

OUTLOOK

As a reputable customised interconnect solutions supplier, the Group
remains positive towards the industry and the Group’s business
development in long run despite the ongoing COVID-19 crisis and
challenging economic situation.

In view of the rapid development of the 5G cellular network technology
in the PRC and the 5G network deployment announced by various mobile
operators in these two years, we believe that there will be gradual and
large-scale replacement of 5G devices and equipment in the coming years,
which is expected to drive the demand for cable assembly products. With the
effort of the PRC government to accelerate the research and development
of 5G technology, we expect the sales order of telecommunication
sector will continue to increase and benefit the Group’s business growth.
Meanwhile, the demand of network communication was also increased
directly due to the new norm of economic activities under the COVID-19
pandemic. For instance, companies are forced to work from home and
increase online meetings during the lockdown period and persistent social
distancing, which will also directly increase the application and demand for
network communication. Hence, we have confidence in the growth of the
Group's telecommunication sector.

For the data centre sector, the utilisation rate of cloud technology in the
companies around the world has been continuously growing. In cloud
computing, the computing storage network must be placed in the data
centre, therefore, the growing cloud technology is expected to drive the
development of data centre. At the same time, the development of 5G will
boost the application of big data, loT, internet gaming and video streaming
through cloud platform. Thus, we remain very positive on the continuous
growth of the business of data centre sector.

Regarding the medical equipment sector, although the COVID-19
vaccines have been available, and countries vigorously urged people to
get vaccinated, the pandemic is still severe or has rebounded due to the
mutation of the virus, and the number of confirmed cases and deaths is
still on the rise in the near future. We predict that the demand for medical
cables will last for a while and it will continue to bring positive impact
to the Group’s medical cables orders in this year. Moving ahead, the
Group believes that this sector will maintain its dynamic pace of growth,
considering the arising demand from the medical equipment market. To
catch up with the trend, the Group will continue to enhance its medical
equipment customers base, as well as to strengthen its R&D capabilities.

As for the industrial equipment sector, local transmission of the virus is
expected to be brought to low levels everywhere by the end of 2022
through a combination of better-targeted precautions and improved
access to vaccines and therapies. Coupled with some advanced economies
will still provide further financial resources support, this will have a
positive spill over effect on the global economy and it is expected that the
market will rebound accordingly. We noticed that the orders in industrial
equipment sector is still increasing in recent months. The Group has striven
to grasp different business opportunities, so as to minimise the risks and
uncertainties involved in the unstable economies. Moving ahead, the
Group expects the demand for sales order in this sector will still increase
gradually for the coming year.
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In addition, the successful acquisition of GPIM Group has provided the
Group with an attractive opportunity to expand and diversify the Group’s
business and investment portfolio, and to enhance its income sources
and long-term development potential. This will help the Group to enter a
new business area. In the past few years, China has remained the world's
largest auto market and auto producer. As the PRC government has
launched certain industry plans that focus on technological improvements
and fossil fuels are expected to be exhausted soon in the future, large
PRC companies have announced their initiatives to develop electric vehicles
and/or autonomous driving technologies. We believe that the automotive
wiring products can help the Group to provide our customers with a
broader product portfolio, and to step in new business sector by enriching
the Group's business portfolio and broadening its unique customer base
to capture opportunities. Moreover, our Digital Cable Business Unit has
created synergy by integrating the R&D resources of the Group and
GPIM Group by utilising rich knowledge and existing production facilities
to deliver reliable and high-quality products to its customers. Since the
autonomous driving technology of smart cars usually requires reliable
and high-speed data transmission, the Group can produce new smart car
products that can meet the highest standards and specifications with the
technical support of Digital Cable Business Unit.

In view of the great market potential of cloud service, communications,
transportation and electricity in the PRC, we have set up a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Time X-Ware Technology Limited, to commence a new server
business (the “New Business”), which is deeply customized based on
brand customers’ requirements. Our go-to-market strategy and business
model will be JDM/ODM model. The products offered by the Group
under the New Business are mainly applied in data centres. The New
Business and the existing wire and cable business have an upstream and
downstream relationship, so it is expected the New Business will represent
an opportunity for the Group to expand its existing converged wire and
cable products to a larger customer portfolio. Given Luxshare Precision has
(i) a solid technical team with efficient operation management/automation
capabilities; and (ii) good relationship with core customers in the PRC, it is
expected that Luxshare Precision will bring synergy to the Group to further
expand the PRC market by increasing the share of orders from data centre
customers in the market. Moreover, having considered that (i) China is
actively conducting investment activities to build digital infrastructure; (ii)
the PRC manufacturers continue to increase the share of local supply chain
due to geopolitics relationship; and (iii) Luxshare Precision has extensive
technological knowhow and good customers’ relationships, we are
optimistic on the future potential growth of the New Business. We believe
the development of the New Business is a good opportunity for the Group
to further develop its business and will help diversify the Group’s business
as well as the Group's income steam.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (conT'D)
EEHE m)

Riding on the policy of the PRC government on “channeling computing
resources from the eastern areas to the western regions” (RE{FHE),
Luxshare Precision would deploy the platform advantages and market
position of the Luxshare Group and introduce strategic resources to the
Company with intention to further strengthen the Company’s potential for
continuous growth and core competitiveness in its market and to enable
the Company to develop strategically to become an all-rounded network
solutions and infrastructure providers, so as to create greater value for the
shareholders. In this regard, Luxshare Precision is conducting a strategic
review of the operations and financial position of the Company, and
actively exploring business opportunities for the growth and development,
in both organic and inorganic manners, of the Company. We believe
that, following the acquisition, the strategic alliance between Luxshare
Precision and the Company would enable the Company to further benefit
from the development and synergy in the fields of consumer electronics,
communications, healthcare, automobile industry in terms of products,
customers, and marketing, through integration of customer and market
resources as well as technologies and R&D capabilities of the Luxshare
Group.

APPRECIATION

Looking ahead to 2022, the Group will continue to adhere to its professional
practices and efficient operations to grow its existing businesses through
continuous integration of enterprise resources and product innovation.
Meanwhile, we will seize more profitable investment opportunities, to
generate possible additional revenue and business diversification. We aim
to consolidate and expand the Group's competitive advantages, creating
long-term and high-value returns for Shareholders.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks

to the Board, the management team, business partners and all staff for
their contributions.

Wang Laichun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the Review Year, although vaccines have been available, vaccine
promotion has been slow and virus variants have appeared. The pandemic
has taken a turn for the worse in some parts of the world since April
2021. Meanwhile, a speedy vaccine rollout has helped bringing down
caseloads quickly in other regions. Economies are diverging even further,
influenced by differences in the pace of vaccine rollout and policy support.
Vaccine access has emerged as the principal fault line along which the
global recovery splits into two blocs: those that can look forward to further
normalization of activity later this year (almost all advanced economies)
and those that will still face resurgent infections and rising COVID-19
death tolls. However, smooth and durable recoveries are not assured even
in places where infections are seemingly under control, since the virus
continues to mutate, the epidemic seems to continue and impact the
economy. On the other hand, a large number of containers are stranded
in ports with inactive business, and there is a serious shortage of containers
in the market, which has led to a surge in transportation costs and freight
delays. The Group’s shipments have been obstructed directly and the
business growth has been stifled.

Started from December 2020, copper (one of major materials of digital
cable business) price has continuously increased and reached a record
high of USD10,730 per ton in March 2022. During the Review Year, the
average copper price was USD9,689 per ton, representing an increase of
40.5% as compared with USD6,897 for the previous financial year. Based
on the existing quotation mechanism that the Group has been used with
customers, the selling price will be automatically adjusted with the price of
copper, which means the impact of the copper price fluctuation has been
directly pass through to customers. Even the amount of gross profit of the
orders has not been affected by such copper price, the gross profit margin
has been diluted inevitably. In the meantime, coupled with the increase
in other costs, such as PVC cost, packing materials cost and labour cost,
the Group’s profitability in certain sectors has been affected differently.
In view of it, the Group has adjusted the selling price (excluding copper
component) to its customers in a range of 5% to 8% in May 2021, until
May 2022, the Group has adjusted the selling price again in a range of 5%
to 10% as the materials cost still on the high side.

On 19 July 2021, TIME Interconnect Technology (Huizhou) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was honoured to
receive the Supplier Award for Outstanding Contribution from ASM Pacific
Technology Limited (our major customer in industrial equipment sector) for
the first two quarters of 2021. This recognition should be thanks to the
concerted efforts of its colleagues, who have been committed to providing
high quality service to the customers. The Company greatly appreciates the
long-term collaboration with ASM and looks forward to being a valued
partner of their global supply chain continuously.

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (contD)
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On 31 August, 2021, Time Interconnect Investment Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has completed the acquisition
of the business of manufacturing and sales of automotive wire harness
engaged by GP Industries Marketing Limited and its subsidiaries from GP
Industries Limited (the former controlling shareholder of the Company) at
the final consideration of HK$69.0 million. The acquisition provides the
Group with an attractive opportunity to expand and diversify its business
and investment portfolio, and enhance its income sources and long-term
development potential. The Group believes that the automotive wiring
products can help the Group to provide its customers with a broader
product portfolio, and to step into a new business sector thereby enriching
the Group's business portfolio and broadening its unique customer base,
which can capture opportunities brought by the booming electric vehicle
market.

On 16 September 2021, to align with the Group’s business direction and its
strategy of accelerating the development of specialty cable, “Networking
Cables Business Unit” was re-named as “Digital Cable Business Unit” and
sub-divided into two sectors, namely “Networking Cable Sector” and
“Specialty Cable Sector”. Networking Cable Sector includes a full range
of CAT3, CAT5/5E, CAT6/6A, CAT7, CAT7A, CATS8 series products in U/
UTP, F/UTP, SF/UTP, F/FTP and S/FTP structures, which also obtains some
environmental regulations such as anti-rats, chemical resistance, weather
proof and oil proof. On the other hand, Specialty Cable Sector includes
Industrial Communication Cables, Rail Transit Cables, HDBT Hi-Res Data
Communication Cables and etc. Those products are widely used for
networking communication system, smart buildings, security engineering,
hi-fidelity digital audio and video system, industrial automation control
system and rail transit communication system.

In September 2021, the Develop & Reform Ministry has set restrictions
to reduce the energy consumption level during the next three months
in the provinces of Guangdong and Jiangsu among other provinces. It
reflects the PRC government’s commitment in Carbon Emission reduction.
In terms of short-term measure, the Group managed to minimize its
impact by turning on its own standby power generator to support the
daily demand so that no influence occurred in regular production lines. For
the long-term direction, the Group are taking every action to improve the
productivity in terms of power consumption. The Group has been regularly
reviewing its own business and striving to seize any business opportunities
and made regular strategic deployments to expand its business in order to
cope with the impact of global economic changes, pandemic and potential
trade wars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (contD)
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On 16 March 2022, Luxshare Precision Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Luxshare Precision (a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002475)),
acquired an aggregate of 1,380,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
from Datatech Investment Inc. (ultimately beneficially owned by Lo Chung
Wai Paul (“Mr. Paul Lo”) who was former Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board of the Company) and Time Interconnect Holdings
Limited (ultimate controlling shareholder is Mr. Paul Lo, who indirectly
owns 59.82 % issued shares of Time Interconnect Holdings Limited) for the
total cash consideration of HK$1,104,000,000, which then represented
approximately 72.18% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the completion. Luxshare Precision is principally engaged in the
research, development, manufacturing and sales of products in the fields
of consumer electronics, communication, auto electronics and healthcare.
The Company believes that, following the acquisition, the strategic alliance
between Luxshare Precision and the Company would enable the Company
to further benefit from the development and synergy in the fields of
consumer electronics, communications, healthcare, automobile industry
in terms of products, customers, and marketing, through integration
of customer and market resources as well as technologies and R&D
capabilities of the Luxshare Group. In the meantime, the plan for spin-off
and separate listing of Huizhou TIME on a stock exchange in the PRC will
also be shelved.

In spite of the challenges in the macro-economy environment and
the difficulties brought by COVID-19, the Group’s business has been
continuously growing through a series of strategic acquisition and
deployments. For the Review Year, the Group recorded revenue
amounting to HK$3,590.1 million, representing an increase of HK$582.1
million or 19.4% as compared with HK$3,008.0 million for the previous
financial year. Operating profit for the Review Year was HK$277.0 million,
representing a decrease of HK$43.6 million or 13.6%, as compared with
HK$320.6 million for the previous financial year, with the operating profit
margin dropping 3.0% from 10.7% to 7.7% for the Review Year. The
decrease of operating profit was mainly attributable to the increase in
various materials cost, labour cost, transportation costs and R&D costs. Net
profit of the Review Year was HK$168.3 million, representing a decrease
of HK$58.3 million or 25.7%, as compared with HK$226.6 million for the
previous financial year, with the net profit margin dropping 2.8% from
7.5% to 4.7% for the Review Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (contD)
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Financial Overview

For the year ended 31 March

BEZAZT—HILFE

Revenue Wz
Gross profit EF
Gross profit margin FERE

Other income and other gains
and losses

Total operating expenses

Total operating expenses as a
percentage of revenue
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Operating profit TERN

Operating profit margin ReERE=E

Gain (loss) on revaluation of building  #EFEHIES (F18)

Professional fee for acquisition/ RSB EEER,
Extreme transaction expenses WiH2Z B

Finance costs REA

Profit before taxation [ Eas

Taxation i

Effective tax rate BERE

Profit for the year FRRF

Net profit margin FRE=E

Adjusted Profit for the year AR FERRF

Adjusted net profit margin REREFREE

Revenue

During the year, copper price has significantly increased from the average
copper price USD6,897 per ton to USD9,689 per ton, which represented
an increase of 40.5% compared with the previous financial year. Based
on the existing quotation mechanism that the Group has been using with
customers, the selling price will be automatically adjusted to account for
the price of copper, resulting in the impact of the copper price fluctuation
being directly pass through to customers. As such the copper price impact
was approximately HK$252.9 million, which represented 7.0% of the
Group's revenue. On the other hand, a serious shortage of containers in
the market has led to a surge in transportation costs and freight delays,
which also directly hindered the Group’s shipments and stifled normal
business growth. The Group’s revenue in FY2022 increased by HK$582.1
million to HK$3,590.1 million from HK$3,008.0 million in the previous
financial year, which represented an increase of 19.4% as compared to
previous financial year. By excluding the copper price impact, the Group's
revenue increased by HK$329.2 million or 10.9% as compared with the
previous financial year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to
the increase of digital cable sector since the major oversea markets have
been reopened progressively and the organic growth of cable assembly
sector.

REXRE
A7 E1EE
2022 2021 Change &%)
HK$'million HK$ 'million HK$'million
BEAET BEET BEBT
3,590.1 3,008.0 582.1
588.1 580.2 7.9
16.4% 19.3%
10.8 3.0 7.8
(321.9) (262.6) (59.3)
9.0% 8.7%
277.0 320.6 (43.6)
7.7% 10.7%
0.4 (5.8) 6.2
(6.5) (4.2) (2.3)
(38.0) (42.5) 45
232.8 268.1 (35.3)
(64.6) (41.5) (23.1)
27.7% 15.5%
168.3 226.6 (58.3)
4.7% 7.5%
195.2 230.8 (35.6)
5.4% 7.7%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (contD)
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For the year ended 31 March ~ HE=A=1+—HIEE 2022
HK$'million %
Market Sector [k ) BEAT %
Cable assembly ERAs
Data centre ZERL 874.6 24.4%
Telecommunication B 559.6 15.6%
Medical equipment BB 257.8 7.2%
Industrial equipment TR 95.9 2.7%
Automotive RE 88.3 2.5%
1,876.2 52.3%
Digital cable FER
Networking cable wEER 1,613.5 44.9%
Specialty cable LSy 100.4 2.8%
1,713.9 47.7%
Total 4ast 3,590.1 100.0%

Data centre sector: The revenue of data centre sector has increased by
HK$63.0 million or 7.8% to HK$874.6 million for FY2022 as compared to
HK$811.6 million for the previous financial year. The orders of this sector
still maintained at a high shipment level during the year, and remaining the
highest revenue sector in the cable assembly business.

Telecommunication sector: It recorded a slightly decline of revenue from
HK$568.1 million in the previous financial year to HK$559.6 million for
FY2022, representing a decrease of HK$8.5 million or 1.5%. The orders
of 5G products have maintained a stable level and the profit margin has
improved as these new products carry a better margin.

Medical equipment sector: Although vaccines have been available,
vaccine promotion has been slow and virus variants have appeared. Smooth
and durable recoveries are not assured even in places where infections are
seemingly under control. The COVID-19 has still stimulated an increase
in medical equipment cables orders. The revenue of medical equipment
sector for FY2022 was HK$257.8 million, representing a substantial
increase of HK$76.1 million or 41.9% as compared with HK$181.7 million
for the previous financial year.

Industrial equipment sector: With the introduction of vaccines, and the
economic recovery measures launched by different countries. The market
started to reopen and rebound, which drove the orders in industrial
equipment sector has been increased continuously. The Group has strived
to grasp different business opportunities in order to minimise the risks
and uncertainties involved in the unstable economies. The revenue of
industrial equipment sector slightly increased by HK$1.8 million or 1.9%
from HK$94.1 million for the previous financial year to HK$95.9 million
for FY2022.

Automotive sector: On 31 August, 2021, the Group has completed
the acquisition of the business of manufacturing and sales of automotive
wire harness. The acquisition provides the Group with an attractive
opportunity to expand and diversify its business and investment portfolio,
and enhance its income sources and long-term development potential. The
Group believes that the automotive wiring products can help the Group to
provide its customers with a broader product portfolio, and to step in new
business sector by enriching the Group’s business portfolio and broadening
its unique customer base, which can capture opportunities brought by
the booming electric vehicle market. The revenue of automotive sector
HK$88.3 million represented seven months revenue for FY2022.

FE BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

2021 Change 28}
HK$'million %  HK$'million %
BEBT % BEET %
811.6 27.0% 63.0 7.8%
568.1 18.9% (8.5) -1.5%
181.7 6.0% 76.1 41.9%
94.1 3.1% 1.8 1.9%
- - 88.3 100.0%
1,655.5 55.0% 220.7 13.3%
1,272.2 42.3% 3413 26.8%
80.3 2.7% 20.1 25.0%
1,352.5 45.0% 361.4 26.7%
3,008.0 100.0% 582.1 19.4%
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Networking cable: The revenue of networking cable for FY2022 was
HK$1,613.5 million, represented an increase of HK$341.3 million or 26.8%
as compared with HK$1,272.2 million for the previous financial year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of copper price during
the year and the major oversea markets reopened. Based on the existing
quotation mechanism that the Group has been used with customers, the
selling price will be automatically adjusted with the price of copper, so
the impact of the copper price fluctuation will be directly pass through to
customers. By excluding the copper price impact, the networking cable’s
revenue increased by HK$108.8 million or 8.6% as compared with the
previous financial year.

Specialty cable: Specialty Cable Sector includes Industrial Communication
Cables, Rail Transit Cables, HDBT Hi-Res Data Communication Cables
and etc. Those products are widely used for networking communication
system, smart buildings, security engineering, hi-fidelity digital audio
and video system, industrial automation control system and rail transit
communication system. For FY2022, the revenue of specialty cable was
HK$100.4 million, represented an increase of HK$20.1 million or 25.0%
as compared with HK$80.3 million for the previous financial year. By
excluding the copper price impact, the specialty cable’s revenue increased
by HK$5.6 million or 7.0% as compared with the previous financial year.

Segment Information
Segmental information is presented for the Group as disclosed on Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for FY2022 was HK$588.1 million representing, a slight
increase of HK$7.9 million or 1.4% compared with HK$580.2 million for
the previous financial year. The copper price increased significantly during
the year, based on the existing quotation mechanism, the selling price
will be automatically adjusted with the price of copper. The copper price
fluctuation impact has been passed through to customers, but the gross
profit margin has been diluted passively. Coupled with the increase in other
various costs, such as PVC cost, packing materials cost and labour cost,
the Group's profitability in certain sectors have been affected differently.
Although the Group has adjusted the selling price in a range of 5% to
8% in May 2021, the Group’s gross profit margin decreased from 19.3%
to 16.4% as compared with the previous financial year. Manufacturing
overhead increased HK$47.0 million or 11.5% for the year, the increase
was mainly due to the increase in labour cost of HK$40.0 million in line
with the revenue increase. In which HK$23.6 million was increased from
the acquisition of automotive wire harness and a lack of relief of social
insurance HK$9.7 million by the PRC government for the previous financial
year.
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Operating Profit/Margin

Operating profit (before the loss on revaluation of building, professional
fee for acquisition/extreme transaction expenses and finance costs) for
FY2022 was HK$277.0 million, representing a decrease of HK$43.6 million
or 13.6% as compared with HK$320.6 million recorded in the previous
financial year. Operating profit margin was 7.7% for FY2022 compared
t0 10.7% in the previous financial year. EBITDA of FY2022 was HK$344.7
million which represented a decrease of HK$37.8 million or 9.9% as
compared with HK$382.5 million for the previous financial year. The ratio
of EBITDA to revenue decreased to 9.6% from 12.7% for the previous
financial year.

Other income, which comprise primarily of bank interest income,
government grants and handling income was in aggregate HK$5.9
million for FY2022, representing a decrease of 57.9% as compared with
HK$14.0 million for the previous financial year. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease of government grants of HK$9.8 million.

Other gains and losses recorded a gain of HK$1.7 million for FY2022
compared to a loss of HK$11.0 million for the previous financial year. Such
gain was mainly due to the disposal gain of machinery and equipment and
the exchange gain from RMB appreciation of HK$0.6 million, which was
attributable to the Group’s operations in the ordinary course of business,
as compared to an exchange loss of HK$9.2 million in the previous financial
year.

The total operating expenses for FY2022 were HK$321.9 million, an
increase of HK$59.3 million or 22.6% compared to HK$262.6 million
recorded in the previous financial year. Total operating expenses as a
percentage of Group's revenue increased from 8.7% to 9.0%.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from HK$51.7 million to
HK$66.0 million during FY2022, representing an increase of HK$14.3
million or 27.7% as compared with the previous financial year. It was
mainly attributable to the increase in staff cost of HK$4.9 million due to
the expansion of salesforce, transportation cost increased HK$4.8 million
related to the sales volume increase and the shortage of containers in
the market, credit insurance increased HK$1.3 million attributed to the
effect of copper price driving an increase in sales value, and travel and
entertainment expenses increased HK$ 1.2 million as the market reopened.
As a percentage of the Group's revenue, distribution and selling expenses
slightly increased from 1.7% to 1.8% as compared to the previous
financial year.

Administrative expenses increased from HK$122.6 million to HK$134.5
million, which represented an increase of HK$11.9 million or 9.7% as
compared with the previous financial year. The increase was mainly due to
the increase of staff cost of HK$9.1 million, which included the impact of
the lack of the previous year’s social insurance relief of HK$1.9 million by
the PRC government. Administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue
decreased from 4.1% to 3.7%.

During FY2022, the research and development expenses were HK$121.4
million, which represented an increase of HK$33.0 million or 37.3% as
compared with the previous financial year. It was mainly attributable to
the increase of staff cost of HK$16.7 million, materials cost and testing
fee of HK$15.9 million and depreciation of HK$1.1 million. Research and
development expenses as a percentage of Group’s revenue increased
from 2.9% to 3.4%. The Company continued to put great efforts into
enhancing its R&D capabilities by expanding the R&D team, so as to launch
more new products and technologies.
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Professional fee for acquisition/Extreme Transaction
Expenses

As at 30 June 2020, the Company completed the acquisition of the
business of manufacturing and sales of networking cables engaged by Linkz
Cables Limited and its subsidiaries, at a final consideration of HK$781.0
million. The expenses incurred in connection with this acquisition was
approximately HK$4.2 million for FY2021.

As at 31 August 2021, the Company completed the acquisition of the
business of manufacturing and sales of automotive wire harness business
engaged by GPIM Group (the relevant subsidiaries of GP Industries, being
a controlling shareholder of the Company), at a final consideration of
HK$69.0 million. The expenses incurred in connection with this acquisition
was approximately HK$1.4 million for FY2022. In addition, approximately
HK$3.8 million professional fee incurred in connection with the possible
spin-off and separate listing of Huizhou TIME. And approximately HK$1.3
million professional fee incurred in connection with the acquisition of
sale shares in the Company by Luxshare Precision Limited and mandatory
unconditional cash offers to acquire all the issued shares and to cancel all
the outstanding options of the Company for FY2022.

Finance Costs

For FY2022, the finance costs were recorded at HK$38.0 million against
HK$42.5 million for the previous financial year. The finance costs included
(i) bank loan interest of HK$25.4 million for short-term bank borrowings
mostly for digital cable business; and (ii) interest expenses of HK$13.7
million for the Company’s club loan financing its acquisition of the
networking cables business.

Total Profit for the year and Earnings per Share

Profit before taxation for FY2022 was HK$232.8 million, representing
a decrease of HK$35.3 million or 13.2% as compared with HK$268.1
million for the previous financial year.

Taxation represents the tax expenses arising from the assessable profit
generated by the Group in Hong Kong and the PRC. Taxation was
provided at the respective tax rate of 16.5% and 25% based on the profit
from operating activities. The major manufacturing subsidiary, Huizhou
TIME, was awarded the Advanced-Technology Enterprise Certificate and
are eligible for tax concessionary rate of 15%. Taxation charges increased
from HK$41.5 million in the previous financial year to HK$64.6 million
in FY2022. The effective tax rate increased from 15.5% to 27.7%. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the preparation of spin-off and
separate listing in the PRC which included the withholding tax of HK$10.9
million charged at 5% of a dividend declared by Huizhou TIME and the
withholding tax of HK$9.5 million charged at 10% of capital gain related
to internal reorganisation during the year.

Total profit for the year of the Group for FY2022 was HK$168.3 million,
representing a decrease of HK$58.3 million or 25.7% as compared with
HK$226.6 million for the previous financial year.

Basic earnings per share for FY2022 was HK9.1 cents as compared to the
basic earnings per share of HK12.3 cents in the previous financial year.

RWEEHNERER, mR 2%

RIZB"ZERA=1TH » AARTHWEE
MBEBERATNENBARFMEENRIEE
MEELHEERXE RENERTSIOAEE
T ZMBERN S M BREEELENR
XHIRA2BEETT

NS —FN\B=1+—H » NATTERYEE
SIUTHEBSEE (RATZERARERGPIEM
HEENBAR) ItENAERSREREER
SHEXER  BERARERCI.OEEHBIT « B
FER BT VREEEANBEINR .48
BT o A o BINERAAED IR LB L
FrEANEXERANAR3ISEESRT - N_E
T T BREEMABEERARBEAAT Z
S E AR DU IR s ) M SR IR S BB A
NBREE BTG K2 IR TE B RE
FrEAMNEXERN A1 3EEETT °

A& A

TR T THREERESREREAR3SOEES
Tt ME—MBEER R4 SAEET - BE
RABREONEEANETEREFEHRT
ERRITERAE25 4B EE T RiAA
BRNBIRLEREREWRBEENHEER
R EFEXZ13.7REST -

FRBEFEEREREF

TR T HREEMNBRE SN A232.8858
BT B E—REERI268. 18 BB TR
353\HEAETHIZ2% ©

ENRIERY - HERBELSE TSRS
BIR16.5% M 25% T RIEH B - TBEE
WEARENERESEIEMEEESE &
EERZHIS%NEERE - RIERIHLE—
MREENAM SEEBTENZE S _ K
FEMN6L6EEETT - BEMEH15.5% LT
E27.7% ° ZIEMDEBRZRANGHEFED TN
EHEBN LT BEERENERERK
BIR5% R EEMNTEINFR 1098 8B IT AR
NI E AR B AW IZ 10% i KT E Ry TEH
FiO.5EEETT °

AEBR _E - _HBREENERNGZNEER
168.3FEBETT » W E—HBFEEN22668E
BITRA 58 3B E B ITE25.7% ©

RIBZ_MHRFE  SREXRENRIE

il M E—BRFESRERBNRR12.3%
fill »

£ E#R % 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

17I



o

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (contD)

EEERE SN (@

Dividends

The Directors recommend to the Shareholders the payment of a final
dividend in respect of FY2022 of HK1 cent (2021: HK1.5 cents) per share,
amounting to a total of approximately HK$19.5 million.

RE

EEEZAREIRN - TR EE AR ER
RSB (CTE T —F  1.5584L) 4258
19 5TEBIT °

2022 2021

HK cents HK cents

Dividend per share BiEEE Al Al
Interim HHA 1.0 1.5
Final* RER* 1.0 1.5
Total Az 2.0 3.0

*  Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period

Adjusted Performance

The reported results are prepared in accordance with HKFRSs as detailed
in our financial statements starting on page 85. The Company also present
alternative performance measures (non-GAAP financial measures). These
include adjusted performance, which the Company use to align internal
and external reporting, identify and quantify items management believes
to be significant, and provide insight into how management assesses
period-on-period performance. The non-GAAP financial measures is not
intended to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the financial
information prepared and presented in accordance with HKFRSs. The non-
GAAP financial measures facilitate investors’ assessment of the Group’s
operating performance, enhance the understanding of the Group’s past
performance as well as the future prospects and allow for greater visibility
with respect to key metrics used by the management in their financial and
operational decision-making. The non-GAAP financial measures is generally
defined as profit for the year adjusted by excluding non-recurring and one-
off items from continuing operations, which includes the professional fee
for acquisition/extreme transaction expenses and the one-off withholding
tax arising from the internal reorganisation relating to the preparation of
spin-off and separate listing in the PRC.

The following information details the adjustments made to the reported
results and the calculation of other alternative performance measures. All
alternative performance measures are reconciled to the closest reported
performance measure.
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Reconciliations on Non-GAAP Financial Measures

For the year ended 31 March BE=ZA=T—HIHE

Reported profit for the year FR2HREF

Adjustment for Professional fee WHEEZEE VR
for acquisition

Adjustment for One-off —RETEHIFL VA EE
withholding tax

Adjusted total profit for the year &R EPNFILE%E

Revenue Wk

FEREFREE(%)
TER TR EE (TR)

Adjusted net profit margin (%)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares ('000)

Adjusted basic earnings per share
(Hong Kong cents)

EHARSRERRF GBL)

Reported profit for the year FRERRF]

Interest expense FEFZ

Taxation WA

Depreciation and amortisation rEs Ry

EBITDA EBITDA

Adjustment for Professional fee WS XE AR
for acquisition

Adjusted EBITDA $EFAEEBITDA

EBITDA/Revenue (%) EBITDA " I1£8(%)

Adjusted EBITDA/Revenue (%) FSEIREBITDA U#8(%)

Adjusted Total Profit for the year: By excluding the professional fee
for acquisition/extreme transaction expenses and the one-off withholding
tax arising from the internal reorganisation relating to the preparation of
spin-off and separate listing in the PRC, the adjusted total profit of FY2022
was HK$195.2 million which representing a decrease of HK$35.6 million
or 15.4% as compared with HK$230.8 million for the previous financial
year. The adjusted net profit margin was recorded at 5.4% as compared
with 7.7% for the previous financial year.

Adjusted Basic Earnings per Share: Adjusted basic earnings per share
for FY2022 was HK10.6 cents as compared to the adjusted basic earnings
per share of HK12.5 cents in the previous financial year.

Adjusted EBITDA: By excluding the professional fee for acquisition/
extreme transaction expenses, the adjusted EBITDA of FY2022 was
HK$351.2 million which representing a decrease of HK$35.5 million or
9.2% as compared with HK$386.7 million for the previous financial year.
The ratio of adjusted EBITDA to revenue decreased to 9.8% from 12.9%
for the previous financial year.

FIRRFREET LR 2B IEIRHR

2021 Change &8}
HK$'million HK$ million
BEETT BEBIT
168.3 226.6 -25.7%
6.5 4.2
20.4 -
195.2 230.8 -15.4%
3,590.1 3,008.0
54 7.7 -2.3pts
1,849,527 1,840,057
10.6 12.5 -15.2%
168.3 226.6 -25.7%
38.0 425
64.6 415
VER:] 71.9
344.7 382.5 -9.9%
6.5 4.2
386.7 -9.2%
12.7 -3.1pts
12.9 -3.1pts
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OUTLOOK

Risks to the global baseline are tilted to the downside. The emergence of
new COVID-19 variants could prolong the pandemic and induce renewed
economic disruptions. Moreover, supply chain disruptions, energy price
volatility, and localised wage pressures mean uncertainty around inflation
and policy paths is high. As advanced economies lift policy rates, risks
to financial stability and emerging market and developing economies’
capital flows, currencies, and fiscal positions (especially with debt levels
having increased significantly in the past two years) may emerge. Other
global risks may crystallise as geopolitical tensions remain high. Even we
are facing such challenges in the macro-economy environment and the
difficulties brought by COVID-19, according to the latest forecast of the
“World Economic Outlook” issued by the “International Monetary Fund”
in January 2022. It is estimated that the global economy will continue
to grow by 4.4% in 2022, and the growth of Asian emerging markets
and developing economies will be 5.9%, of which China/India/ASEAN
will grow by 4.8%/9.0%/5.6% respectively. Such forecast is based on
the assumptions that 1) the upgrade largely reflects a mechanical pickup
after current drags on growth dissipate in the second half of 2022; 2) the
forecast is conditional on adverse health outcomes declining to low levels in
most countries by end of 2022; and 3) assuming vaccination rates improve
worldwide and therapies become more effective. The cable industry is
expected to sustain growth in the coming years and the management
remains confident that the Group’s enlarged production capacity and well-
established business fundamentals would enable it to capture the market
opportunities upon the arrival of this generation 5G network.

With the rapid development of the 5G cellular network technology in
the PRC and the 5G network deployment announced by various mobile
operators in these two years, the Group noted that there will be gradual
and large-scale replacement of 5G devices and equipment in the coming
years, which is expected to drive the demand for cable assembly products.
The PRC government has continuously made great efforts to accelerate the
research and development of 5G technology, it is expected the sales order
of telecommunication sector will continue to increase and benefit the
Group's business growth. In the meantime, the COVID-19 pandemic has
changed many economic activities, such as companies are forced to work
from home and increase online meetings during the lockdown period and
persistent social distancing, which will also directly increase the application
and demand for network communication.

Moreover, the utilisation rate of cloud technology in the companies around
the world is continuously increasing. In cloud computing, the computing
storage network must be placed in the data centre, therefore, the growing
cloud technology is expected to drive the development of data centre.
Meanwhile, the development of 5G will boost the application of big data,
loT, internet gaming and video streaming through cloud platform. The
Group remains very positive on the continuous growth of the business of
data centre sector.
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Although the COVID-19 vaccines have been available, and countries
vigorously urged people to get vaccinated, the epidemic is still severe
or has rebounded due to the mutation of the virus, and the number of
confirmed cases and deaths is still on the rise in the near future. As for
the medical equipment sector, the Group expects the demand for medical
cables will last for a while and it will continue to bring positive impact
to the Group’s medical cables orders in this year. Moving ahead, the
Group believes that this sector will maintain its dynamic pace of growth,
considering the arising demand from the medical equipment market. To
catch up with the trend, the Group will continue to enhance its medical
eguipment customers base, as well as to strengthen its R&D capabilities.

On the other hand, local transmission of the virus is expected to be brought
to low levels everywhere by the end of 2022 through a combination of
better-targeted precautions and improved access to vaccines and therapies.
Coupled with some advanced economies will still provide further financial
resources support, this will have a positive spill over effect on the global
economy and it is expected that the market will rebound accordingly.
The Group noticed that the orders in industrial equipment sector is still
increasing in recent months. For the industrial equipment sector, the
Group has striven to grasp different business opportunities in order to
minimise the risks and uncertainties involved in the unstable economies.
Moving ahead, the Group expects the demand for sales order in this sector
will increase gradually for the coming year.

In addition, the successful acquisition of GPIM Group has provided the
Group with an attractive opportunity to expand and diversify the Group's
business and investment portfolio, and enhance its income sources and
long-term development potential. Considering the vigorous development
of the automotive and electric vehicle markets, the acquisition has helped
the Group to enter a new business area. In the past few years, China
has remained the world’s largest auto market and auto producer. As
the PRC government has launched certain industry plans that focus on
technological improvements and fossil fuels are expected to be exhausted
soon in the future, large PRC companies have announced their initiatives
to develop electric vehicles and/or autonomous driving technologies. In
October 2020, the State Council set a goal and stated that by 2025, the
sales of new energy vehicles in China will reach 20% of the total sales of
new vehicles. In view of this, the management noted that one of the major
customers of the Group cooperated with automobile manufacturers to
launch the first electric vehicle model named after the customer’s brand.
The Group believes that the automotive wiring products can help the
Group to provide this major customer with a broader product portfolio,
and to step in new business sector by enriching the Group's business
portfolio and broadening its unique customer base, which can capture
opportunities brought by the booming electric vehicle market.

Moreover, our Digital Cable Business Unit has created synergy by
integrating the R&D resources of the Group and GPIM Group by utilising
rich knowledge and existing production facilities to deliver reliable and
high-quality products to its customers. Since the autonomous driving
technology of smart cars usually requires reliable and high-speed data
transmission, the Group can produce new smart car products that can
meet the highest standards and specifications with the technical support
of Digital Cable Business Unit. In addition, GPIM Group's production
facilities are close to the Group's existing production facilities in Huizhou.
As a result, the efficiency of GPIM Group’s management operations can be
optimized through the local management of the Group.
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In view of the great market potential of cloud service, communications,
transportation and electricity in the PRC, the Group has set up a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Time X-Ware Technology Limited, in April 2022 to
commence a new server business, which is deeply customized based on
brand customers’ requirements. Our go-to-market strategy and business
model will be JDM/ODM model. The products offered by the Group under
the New Business are mainly applied in data centres, which includes rack-
mounted computing servers, edge servers, Al smart servers, storage servers,
smart network cards, GPU cards, complete cabinet products, etc. The New
Business and the existing wire and cable business have an upstream and
downstream relationship. It is expected the New Business will represent
an opportunity for the Group to expand its existing converged wire and
cable products to a larger customer portfolio. In addition, the Company
considers there will be a degree of vertical integration with the existing
production of the Group allowing an optimized cost structure. Given
Luxshare Precision has (i) a solid technical team with efficient operation
management/automation capabilities; and (ii) good relationship with core
customers in the PRC, it is expected that Luxshare Precision will bring
synergy to the Group to further expand the PRC market by increasing
the share of orders from data centre customers in the market. Moreover,
having considered that (i) China is actively conducting investment activities
to build digital infrastructure; (i) the PRC manufacturers continue to
increase the share of local supply chain due to geopolitics relationship;
and (iii) Luxshare Precision has extensive technological knowhow and good
customers’ relationships, the Board is optimistic on the future potential
growth of the New Business. The Board believes the development of the
New Business is a good opportunity for the Group to further develop its
business and will help diversify the Group's business as well as the Group's
income steam.

After Luxshare Precision Limited has acquired the shares of the Company
from Datatech Investment Inc. and Time Interconnect Holdings Limited,
which was representing approximately 72.18% of the issued shares capital
of the Company, it became the controlling shareholder of the Company
as at the date of the completion date on 16 March 2022. Riding on the
policy of the PRC government on “channeling computing resources from
the eastern areas to the western regions” (BRE(FHE), Luxshare Precision
would deploy the platform advantages and market position of the
Luxshare Group and introduce strategic resources to the Company with
intention to further strengthen the Company’s potential for continuous
growth and core competitiveness in its market and to enable the Company
to develop strategically to become an all-rounded network solutions and
infrastructure providers, so as to create greater value for the shareholders.
In this regard, Luxshare Precision is conducting a strategic review of the
operations and financial position of the Company, and actively exploring
business opportunities for the growth and development, in both organic
and inorganic manners, of the Company. The Company believes that,
following the acquisition, the strategic alliance between Luxshare Precision
and the Company would enable the Company to further benefit from
the development and synergy in the fields of consumer electronics,
communications, healthcare, automobile industry in terms of products,
customers, and marketing, through integration of customer and market
resources as well as technologies and R&D capabilities of the Luxshare
Group.

FE BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 March 2022 were approximately HK$1,051.2
million, which represented an increase of HK$198.7 million or 23.3%
from HK$852.5 million as at 31 March 2021. The increase was mainly
due to the profit attributable to shareholders equity for the year HK$95.7
million and the appreciation of RMB at the reporting date, an increase
of HK$63.2 million in the translation reserve from converting Renminbi
into Hong Kong dollars as recorded in the financial statements of the PRC
subsidiaries. As a result, shareholders’ funds per share increased by 23.9%
from HK$0.46 to HK$0.57.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had bank balances and cash of HK$220.9
million, representing an increase of 41.1% as compared to HK$156.6
million as of 31 March 2021. Such increase was mainly due to the increase
in cash generated from operating activities during the year. As at 31 March
2022, the Group's bank loan was HK$1,062.2 million, representing an
increase of HK$50.0 million or 4.9% from HK$1,012.2 million as at 31
March 2021. It was mainly due to i) the new bank loan of HK$50.0 million
for the acquisition of automotive wire harness business as at 31 August
2021 which have a maturity of 3 years; and ii) the operating working
capital increase (such as the trade receivable and inventory balance) due to
the copper price increase. The Group believes it has sufficient committed
and unutilised banking facilities as at 31 March 2022 to meet its current
business operation and capital expenditure requirements.

Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

For the year ended 31 March BE=A=T—HItHFE

Operating profit F=pinvil

Professional fee for acquisition/ R BNEEER,
extreme transaction expenses TRiH A 2

Gain (loss) on revaluation of property,  #2 - &= MR EE LIS
plant and equipment (E518)

Depreciation and amortisation HrEs S s

EBITDA EBITDA

Interest income A EWA

SHEEATEESU S
HERTMEEZ (W) BB

Gain on change in fair value of
financial assets

(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible
assets

Write off of inventories BFEHE

Share based payments DUREAD R BT SR

Gain on bargain purchase HEBE WG

(Gain) loss on revaluation of property, #¥JZ£ ~ BEMREHES ()
plant and equipment B8

Working capital change LEETEE

Cash generated from operations REESANIRS

The Group's cash generated from operations for FY2022 was HK$262.5
million, an increase of 38.3% as compared to HK$189.8 million in the
previous financial year. The increase was mainly attributable to the change
of working capital as compared with the previous financial year.

RABEERMBEIR

NIEBE_"H=ZA=+—H KEESHYA
10512388t B _FE_—4F=A=+
—HRIB8S25AE BIB9S THEEITLH
23.3% ° FIENMNEEHNF AR R D ESL
mFAOSTEEBIT  MNBREHBAREF
B FEBABDMNTEREKPESRBEAR
W R A B T A A R PE SRR I IN63. 28 &
BT o Atk BRKEE S H0.46 T8 N
23.9%Z0.57#7T o

NIF_"F=F=+—H » £EBERITHER
FIR&R22098 88T BHE_S_—F
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2022 2021 Change &%)
HK$'million HK$ million HK$'million
BEAET BEETT BEAETT
277.0 320.6 (43.6)
(6.5) (4.2) (2.3)

0.4 (5.8) 6.2

VER:] 71.9 1.9
344.7 382.5 (37.8)
(X)) (0.6) (0.2)
(1)) (0.3) 0.1
(0.9) 2.0 (2.9)

4.9 4.7 0.2
4.3 5.0 (0.7)
(EW)) - (3.2)
(0.4) 5.8 (6.2)
(85.9) (209.3) 123.4
262.5 189.8 72.7
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Working Capital Change EEESEE
As at 31 March N=B=+—H 2021 Change &8} 2022
HK$'million HK$ million BELEH T
BEBIT BEBIT BEET
Stocks e 4749 178.7 653.6
Trade debtors FEWERTE 752.6 246.2 998.8

Other debtors, deposits and HABWGR ~ S RFANKRIE

prepayments 56.1 353 91.4
Trade creditors E{TERIE (507.4) (287.7) (795.1)
Other creditors and accruals E{’@WEH K EETE (64.5) (26.0) (90.5)
Total working capital EEESM 711.7 146.5 858.2

Stock as of 31 March 2022 increased to HK$653.6 million from HK$474.9
million as of 31 March 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to the
copper price drove the inventory cost increase and the acquisition of
automotive wire harness business. The turnover days slightly increased
from 66 days to 69 days.

NE - " H=ZRA=+—HMWEEAR6S3.6H
BBt RIFE”_—F=F=1+—HmM474.9
BEBITERTEN - BEEENEBRHERNRE
BB EE BN LW E R B AR ZEFEFTEL -
JAEHEHe6HEMIZINEIR -

As at 31 March R=A=+—H 2022 2021

HK$'million HK$'million

BBETT BEBT

Stock FE 653.6 4749
Average stocks as a percentage of Cost of FHEEMEEERKAAS L

Goods Sold 18.8% 18.0%

Turnover days A2 69 66

Trade debtors as of 31 March 2022 increased to HK$998.8 million from
HK$752.6 million as of 31 March 2021. The higher trade debtor balance
as at 31 March 2022 was mainly due to the increase in revenue in March
2022 as compared to previous financial year, the copper price drove
the sales value increase and the acquisition of automotive wire harness
business. Debtors’ turnover days increased from 77 days to 89 days.

The Group has tight management on credit exposure, and has delegated a
Credit Team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group has reviewed
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. The overdue balances greater
than 90 days accounted for 0.08% of the gross trade debtors as of 31
March 2022.

N_E_ _H=-A=+—HWEKKRES
998 8HEB T ' B_F_—F=A=1+—H
752 6 EEBITAEMEM - NS __F=
A=+—HHEKRBAMRIENETEAN S
__FEZAMKER E—SBREER  RE
e E SR IS S BB AR ZETE TR -
FEW A A E H 877 B NZE89A -

AEFHEERRETERRER » WEKEE
l%ﬁAFEE%ZEE EERE2 I - A
HREEMEEREF  BRRIURERE B
BHAETS o kA - REBEERSHREHRBE
SERWEENTWESEE @ BRI
ClMiRR 7T RRERIE - gilkms - EER
o REBNEERRBERE NIZT "
F=R=+—H - SHBHEOH BRI LEMRIL
FEWARIEARZERY0.08%

As at 31 March R=A=+—H 2022 2021

HKS$’million HK$ 'million

BEET BEET

Trade debtors and bills receivables FEUERIE R FENERE 998.8 752.6
Average trade debtors as a percentage FHREWERIE(IEFE B D b

of revenue 24.4% 21.0%

Turnover days AR 89 77

FE BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Other debtors, deposits and prepayments as of 31 March 2022 were
HK$91.4 million, increased from HK$56.1 million as of 31 March 2021.
It was mainly attributable to the increase of VAT receivables and other
deposits and prepayments.

Trade creditors as of 31 March 2022 were HK$795.1 million, as compared
to HK$507.4 million as of 31 March 2021. It was mainly attributable to
the materials cost increase and the acquisition of automotive wire harness
business. Creditors’ turnover days slightly increased from 75 days to 79
days.

RZF_ " F=RA=t+—HNEMERR - 1%
ERFAMMKIBRNAEERET  B_F_—4F
ZR=1+—Hm56.1a8BITEAEM T2
E)aa;E@W@Wi@@E&E@E@&Tﬁﬁ%ﬂlﬁiﬁaﬂm
ZIE

RN_B - _HA=H=1+—HWNEMEREA
7951888 M_S_—F=B=+—H
AIA507 AR EHBIT - EEE RN R KA
IRWESRBERRERITY - BEIREAEH
EHR75HEMIEINETIR -

As at 31 March MW=R=*+—H 2022 2021

HK$'million HK$'million

BBET BEBT

Trade creditors and bills payables FETRRIEREMER 795.1 507.4
Average trade creditors as a percentage of FHEMRBAEEERKRAB DL

Cost of Goods Sold PAWAS 20.6%

Turnover days A2 79 75

Other creditors and accruals as of 31 March 2022 increased to HK$90.5
million from HK$64.5 million as of 31 March 2021, which was mainly due
to the acquisition of automotive wire harness business and increase in
salaries and staff related costs payables.

Capital Expenditure

For FY2022, the Group invested HK$59.4 million in the purchase of tangible
assets including machinery and equipment, leasehold improvements and
office equipment. All of these capital expenditures were financed from
internal resources.

Charge on Group Assets

Save for the bank deposits that were pledged in order to secure the bills
payables issued by the bank under the general banking facilities granted
to the Group, as at 31 March 2022 and 2021, banking facilities extended
to the Group were not secured with the Group’s assets. Pledged bank
deposits amounted to HK$5.8 million and HK$7.1 million as at 31 March
2022 and 2021 respectively.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%. As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was
99.9% as compared to the previous financial year 117.1%.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). There has been
no change in the capital structure of the Group since then. The share
capital of the Group only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s issued share capital was HK$19.5
million and the number of its issued ordinary shares were 1,945,952,000
of HK$0.01 each.

N _F_THFE A=t HMEMEMRRE
STERARISEEET BR_F_—HF=A=
+—HM64 SEEBITTAATPEM » TEHINI
BRBERSEBNFEAE THBEBABNIR
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=g 52
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EEEEERR
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s receipts and payments are denominated in US dollars,
Hong Kong dollars, RMB and Euro. The Group’s management monitors
the risk of related foreign exchange exposure by entering into forward
foreign exchange contracts. Foreign currency exchange rates are volatile
and may have an impact on the Group’s results. The Group’s management
evaluates the Group’s foreign currency exposure on a continuing basis and
takes actions to minimise the Group's exposure whenever necessary.

TREASURY POLICIES

As an internal treasury policy, the Group continues to implement a prudent
policy on financial management policy and does not participate in any high
risk speculative activities. However, the Group’s management monitors
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise. Save for the net proceeds from the listing,
the Group will also monitor and maintain a Hong Kong dollar cash balance
in order to minimise the need for unnecessary foreign exchange conversion
which may result in exchange loss.

The reporting currency of the Group is presented in Hong Kong dollars,
as the Directors consider that it is more relevant to the users of the
consolidated financial statements as the Company listed its shares on the
Stock Exchange.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES
As of 31 March 2022, the Group had not provided any form of guarantee
for any company outside the Group and had not been involved in any

material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent liabilities was
required.

As at 31 March 2022, the capital commitment of the Group is as follows:

4 EE B

REERIAWATRET ~ BT - ARBLK
BRTRTE ° $$.A@)§Liﬂ§—f\iiﬁﬁﬁf‘lﬁé

MEREMBEINERR - EXRE R REH AL
EXREELETE - ZIS’EERI EEE}#,.EEHEZIK%

MIMNE RN ER RIS EEERER
EEpER -

EEFFEUR

ERAEBEHEBUR - AEEEEN Y BEEER
REBEEBBCR - WES IS EARKEE
B) - AT > AEEEEESESIINERR - X
AN EREEEEREARINEER © B EHAT
BRIRFERS - ARETERRMERETIR
it 0 UEERH ARSI ELBENA
WESMEFIRRITFR ©

AEENZ2HREB BT - DARESERA -
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BEARIERBARE

RTB__HFZAZT—R > ARETEAR
SEDIMEM AR UERNERRF - TE
EFEMBEBRNEEFAMARNIREEEHE
1 o

RIZB__HF=A=1—0  AEENELXK
B

Capital expenditure in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted but not provided for
in the consolidated financial statements

FIx<
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Time Interconnect Investment Limited (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) completed the acquisition of the business of manufacturing
and sales of automotive wire harness engaged by GPIM Group from GP
Industries on 31 August 2021 at the final consideration of HK$69.0 million.
As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios was greater than 5%
but less than 25%, the acquisition constituted a discloseable transaction
for the Company under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). In addition,
as at the date of completion, Linkz Industries Limited, which in turn hold
63.85% equity interests of the Company through Time Interconnect
Holdings Limited, was owned as to 38.13% by GP Industries (which was
owned as to 85.47% by Gold Peak Technology Group Limited (formally
known as Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited)). As such, GP Industries
was a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant investments
held, material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associations for
FY2022. There was no other plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 March 2022.

MATERIAL EVENT SINCE THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
PERIOD

Cancellation of the outstanding share options of the Group
On 19 April 2022, Luxshare, the ultimate holding company of the Company,
acquired and cancelled of 45,296,000 outstanding share options of the
Group. The Group would account for the cancellation as an acceleration
of vesting and recognise immediately the amount that otherwise would
have been recognised for services received over the remainder of the
vesting period. Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 April 2022.

Change of Directors

Ms. Wang Laichun, the non-executive Director and chairman of the Board,
joined the Company on 19 April 2022. Mr. Paul Lo has resigned as a non-
executive Director and chairman of the Board with effect from 19 April
2022.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors believe that there are certain risks and uncertainties involved
in the operations of the Group, some of which are beyond the Group's
control. The Directors believe the more significant risks relating to the
business are as follows:

— the Group may experience labour shortage or unrest or may incur high
labour costs;

— the Group is exposed to credit risk of its customers;

— fluctuations in the prices of the Group’s major raw materials or
commodity prices could materially and adversely affect its business,
financial conditions and results of operations;

— if the Group fails to attract or retain its key managerial and technical
personnel, the Group may compromise its ability to maintain strong
relationships with its customers and suppliers, develop new products
and effectively carry on the R&D and other efforts;

— any occurrence of natural disasters, widespread health epidemics or
other events could have a material adverse effect on the business,
financial condition and results of operations of the Group.

A detailed discussion of the risk factors is set forth in the section headed
“Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

EMPLOYEE

As of 31 March 2022, the total headcount for the Company was
approximately 3,232, compared to 2,519 in the previous financial year.
The increase was mainly driven by the acquisition of automotive wire
harness business and the increase from Huizhou TIME. Fair and competitive
remuneration package and benefits are offered to employees as well as
discretionary bonus and share option. Various types of trainings were
provided to the employees. Total employee benefit expenses including
Directors’ remuneration for FY2022 were approximately HK$459.4 million,
as compared to approximately HK$388.9 million in the previous financial
year. Remuneration is determined with reference to performance, skills,
qualifications and experience of the staff concerned and in accordance
with the prevailing industry practice.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND
OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group has a strong, long-established relationship with its key
customers, which include leading telecommunication equipment and
network solutions provider in the PRC, global internet-related service
provider and multinational medical equipment manufacturer that have
extensive international coverage. The Group has developed multi-products
strategy and also strengthened its scope of services to its global customers.
The Group will continue to diversify its customer base and the Directors
believe that the extent of customer concentration is likely to decrease in
the future.
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The Group maintains long-term relationships with suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group has no concentration or a high level of
dependency on a small group of suppliers. The Group carefully selects its
suppliers based on certain assessment criteria, such as overall track record,
scale and expertise, cost, product quality and quality control effectiveness,
reliability, price, delivery punctuality, historical relationship with the
Group, financial condition, reputation and aftersales services. During the
selection process, the Group generally carries regular on-site examination
of its potential suppliers to ensure that they meet its selection criteria. The
Group carries out evaluation of the performance of its existing suppliers
and identifies better third party suppliers from time to time to replace the
suppliers who fail to perform to its satisfaction.

The Group recognises and supports the culture of attracting, motivating
and retaining talents. The Group provides competitive compensation
and benefits for its employees. Remuneration packages are generally
structured by reference to market and individual merits. Salaries are
normally reviewed on an annual basis based on individual performance and
financial performance of the Group. Those employees with outstanding
performance are also awarded discretionary bonuses. The Group promotes
open communications, encourages continuous learning and supports
different kinds of training on leadership development programme.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to creating a sustainable and greener environment
and continues to explore ways to reduce carbon emissions, conserve energy
and reduce wastage. The Group has implemented various environmental
and sustainability initiatives in its factories and offices, such as using LED
lighting in the Huizhou factory; adopting heat recovery system to recover
the residual heat from the air compressor to heat up water supply in
dormitory; encouraging video and phone conference to minimise carbon
footprint created by business-related travel. Being a responsible global
corporate citizen, the Group fully understand the positive impact of United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDG). The Group identified
6 key SDGs that are highly relevant to its business operations and put
substantial efforts to resolve the related issues with non-profit organisation
partners. The Group has been actively involved in non-profit community
development programmes in the cities where its headquarters and
factories are operating, and encourages the employees to participate in
in-house and external community activities. During FY2022, the Group has
received various recognitions, such as 15 Years* Caring Company; Good
MPF Employer; Happy Company; and 3* Year Industry Cares Award. The
Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report (collectively the
“ESG Report”), which discusses in detail its initiatives on environmental
and social aspects and their performance, is set out in the ESG section of
this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company upholds high standards and meets relevant requirements
under applicable laws or ordinances when conducting its business. The
Company did not identify non-compliance or breach of relevant standards,
rules and regulations during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon (“Mr. Cua”), aged 60, joined the Group in
1992 and has been appointed as the chief executive officer (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) and an executive Director of the Company since 10
July 2017. Mr. Cua has gathered extensive experiences in the electronics
and cable industry in the PRC since the 1980s. Mr. Cua was honoured with
the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong. He is one of the founding
members of the China Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs Association and
has been its member since January 2008. He has also been elected as a
council member of International Cablemakers Federation since 2014. He
is currently a member of Hong Kong-Shanghai Economic Development
Association, the director of Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship
Association and the executive committee member of Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association and Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council. He also
serves as a member of Ivey Asian Advisory Board of Ivey Business School
of Asia of The University of Western Ontario. Mr. Cua obtained a Master
of Business Administration in October 2005 and was further awarded
honorary Doctorate of Laws (LL.D.) in May 2015 from The University of
Western Ontario, Canada.

Mr. Wong Chi Kuen (“Mr. Wong"), aged 57, joined the Group in 2010
and has been appointed as the chief financial officer (the “Chief Financial
Officer”) and an executive Director of the Company since 10 July 2017.
Mr. Wong has over 24 years of experience in management accounting
and operation management. He first joined Linkz Industries (the former
controlling shareholder of the Company) in 1994 and was transferred to
LTK International Limited (a subsidiary of Belden Inc., a company listed
on the Stock Exchange of New York (stock code: BDC) following the
disposal of Linkz's electronic cables business in 2007. Mr. Wong re-joined
Linkz Industries as financial controller in July 2010. Mr. Wong obtained
a Bachelor of Business Administration from Hong Kong Metropolitan
University (formerly known as The Open University of Hong Kong). Mr.
Wong is currently a fellow member of the Association of International
Accountants and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He was also admitted as International
Accountant (FAIA) jointly by Association of International Accountants and
China Association of Chief Financial Officers.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Wang Laichun (“Ms. Wang"), aged 55, has been appointed as the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and non-executive Director since
19 April 2022. Ms. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the electronics
industry. She is the chairman and general manager of Luxshare Precision
Industry Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002475). Ms.
Wang had worked in Sanyo Electric (Shekou) Co., Ltd. from 1984 to
1986. Ms. Wang had worked in the Wiring Business Unit of Foxconn,
a subsidiary of Hon Hai Technology Group (Foxconn) for nearly 10 years
since 1988. Ms. Wang left Foxconn in 1997 to start her own business. In
1999, Ms. Wang and Mr. Wang Laisheng jointly purchased the shares of
Luxshare Limited. In 2004, Ms. Wang founded Luxshare Precision Industry
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. through Luxshare Limited and acted as the chairman
of the board of directors. Ms. Wang holds an EMBA from the Shenzhen
Graduate School of Tsinghua University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Hin Shun (“Mr. Ho"), aged 57, has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director since 24 January 2018. Mr. Ho has over
24 years of experience in sales and marketing on electronics components
and substantial management experience in multinational corporations.
Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong. He further obtained his Master of Business
Administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Luk Wai Shing (“Mr. Luk”), aged 53, has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director since 24 January 2018. Mr. Luk has
over 26 years' experience of business development, marketing, customers
relationship and compliance in banking industry. Mr. Luk obtained a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and has been a certified financial planner accredited by the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric ("Mr. Eric Chan”), aged 56, has been
appointed as the independent non-executive Director since 24 January
2018. Mr. Eric Chan has over 29 years’ experience in the senior
positions of the finance and accounting field. He obtained a Master of
Management Sciences degree from University of Hull. Mr. Eric Chan has
been a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chaung Kwai Wing (“"Mr. Chaung”), aged 58, joined the Group
in 2020 and is currently the Chief Operating Officer of the Group and
a director of Linkz Ind (Suzhou) and Linkz Industries (Shanghai) Limited
(“Linkz (Shanghai)”). He has been engaging in the electronics and cable
industry for over 35 years, taking senior positions in sales and marketing
and general management. He first joined Linkz Industries in 1996 and was
transferred to LTK International Limited following the disposal of Linkz's
electronic cables business in 2007. He re-joined the Group in 2020. Mr.
Chaung holds a Master of Business Administration degree and a Bachelor
of Science degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Ping Kuen (“Mr. Eddie Li”), aged 56, joined the Group in 1993
and is currently the Chief Technology Officer of the Group. He has been
engaging in the electronics and cable industry for over 33 years, dedicated
to research and development of new products and technology. Mr. Eddie
Li holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from the University
of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Ting Hei ("Mr. Chan"), aged 58, joined the Group in 1992 and
is currently the Assistant General Manager of Supply Chain Management
of the Group and a director of Huizhou TIME, Linkz Ind (Suzhou) and
Linkz (Shanghai). Mr. Chan has over 32 years’ working experience in the
cable industry. He obtained a Master of Science degree in Management
of Manufacture from Coventry Polytechnic (now known as Coventry
University), a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of South Australia and a Master of Arts degree in International Business
Management from the City University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chu Yi Fu (“Mr. Chu"), aged 56, joined the Group in April 2018 and
is currently the General Manager of Huizhou TIME and a director of Time
Interconnect Wire Technology (Huizhou) Limited (“Time Wire Huizhou"),
Huizhou Chuangxiang Technology Limited (“Huizhou Chuangxiang”)
and Shanghai TIME. Mr. Chu has over 20 years’ working experience in the
cable industry, taking senior positions in business development and factory
management. He obtained an EMBA from Fudan University, PRC.

Mr. Zhan Yangwang (“Mr. Zhan"), aged 49, joined the Group in 2012
and is currently the Financial Controller of the Cable Assembly Business
and a director of Time Wire Huizhou. Mr. Zhan has over 26 years’ working
experience in the accounting and finance field. He obtained an Associate
degree of Industrial Management Engineering in Industrial Accounting
from Nanchang University and a Master of Business Administration degree
from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr. Zhong Xilin (“Mr. Zhong"), aged 42, joined the Group in 2003
and is currently the Assistant General Manager of Sales of the Cable
Assembly Business. Mr. Zhong has over 22 years' experience of sales and
marketing in the cable industry. He completed a professional training in
Plants Protection from Hengyang City Agricultural School and obtained
an Associate degree in Business Administration from the Communication
University of China.

Mr. Zhou Yinfa (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 57, joined the Group in 2005 and
is currently the Assistant General Manager of Manufacturing of Huizhou
TIME and Huizhou Chuangxiang. Mr. Zhou has over 33 years’ working
experience in the cable industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Engineering
degree from South China University of Technology and has been qualified
as an electrical and mechanical engineer.

Mr. Tan Dehua (“Mr. Tan"”), aged 59, joined the Group in 2002 and
is currently the Assistant General Manager of Product Development of
Huizhou TIME and Huizhou Chuangxiang. Mr. Tan has over 29 years’
working experience in the manufacturing sector. He obtained a Bachelor
of Engineering degree from Central South University (formerly known as
Central South University of Technology). Mr. Tan has been qualified as a
geotechnical engineer.

Mr. Li Yuezhong (“Mr. Li"), aged 52, joined the Group in 2003 and is
currently the Assistant General Manager of Sales of Huizhou TIME. Mr.
Li has over 29 years’ working experience in various cable companies.
He obtained an Associate degree in Secretarial Studies from Xiangtan
University and a National Marketing Manager Qualification Certificate
from the Marketing Professional Committee of China Business Manager
Association.

Mr. Liu Zuhong (“Mr. Liu"), aged 72, joined the Group in 2020 and
is currently the Assistant to Chairman of the Digital Cable Business. Mr.
Liu has over 31 years’ experience in the electronics and cable industry in
PRC, taking senior positions in business development, domestic sales and
factory management.
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Mr. Li Put Tung (“Mr. Victor Li"), aged 43, joined the Group in 2002 and
is currently the General Sales Manager of the Digital Cable Business and a
director of Linkz Ind (Suzhou) and Linkz (Shanghai). Mr. Victor Li has over
20 years’ working experience in the wire and cable industry with the latest
16 years committed to business development and sales and marketing.
He holds a Master of Science degree in Communications, Computer and
Human Centred Systems (Multimedia Computer Systems) and a Bachelor
of Engineering degree in Electronic and Communication Engineering from
the University of Birmingham.

Mr. Liu Yaliang (“Mr. Liu Yaliang”), aged 47, joined the Group in 2000
and is currently the Chief Engineer of the Digital Cable Business. Mr.
Liu Yaliang has over 23 years’ experience of manufacturing engineering
and product development in the wire and cable industry, with his efforts
committed to R&D of digital cables in the latest 17 years. He obtained
a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Mechanical Electrical Engineering
from Nanjing University of Science & Technology. Mr. Liu Yaliang has also
been qualified as a Senior Engineer in Professor Level (IE= 4k T#2Ef) and
appointed as part-time tutor for master’s degree students in electrical
engineering of Harbin University of Science and Technology. He received a
number of technical awards from Shanghai local authorities and reputable
institutions of the industry.

Mr. Fu Kuanlin (“Mr. Fu”), aged 51, joined the Group in 2019 and is
currently the Director of Manufacturing — Specialty Cables of the Digital
Cable Business. Mr. Fu has over 28 years’ working experience in the wire
and cable industry. He holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from Xi'an Jiaotong University and a Bachelor of Engineering degree in
Mechanical Manufacturing Technology and Equipment from Hunan
University.

Mr. Ling Zhen (“Mr. Ling"), aged 47, joined the Group in 1995 and is
currently the Assistant Financial Controller of the Digital Cable Business.
He is also the Supervisor of Linkz Ind (Suzhou), Linkz (Shanghai), Hover
(Kunshan) Electronic Material Co., Limited and Kunshan Degin Machinery
Limited. Mr. Ling has over 26 years’ working experience in the finance and
accounting field. He holds an Associate degree in International Accounting
from East China Normal University and an accountancy certificate issued
and approved by the Ministry of Personnel and Ministry of Finance of the
PRC.

Mr. Li Yuebin (“Mr. Li Yuebin”), aged 57, joined the Group in 2004 and
is currently the Assistant General Manager of Administration of Linkz Ind
(Suzhou). Mr. Li Yuebin has over 38 years of experience in finance, auditing
and accounting as well as factory management. Mr. Li Yuebin obtained a
Master of Business Administration degree from Macau University of Science
and Technology. He completed a professional training in Economics and
Management from Party School of Heilongjiang Provincial Committee of
the Communist Party of China.

Mr. Yao Honglin (“Mr. Yao"), aged 56, joined the Group in 1999 and is
currently the Assistant General Manager of Manufacturing of Networking
Cable Sector of the Digital Cable Business. Mr. Yao has over 34 years
of experience in technology development, quality control and production
management. He obtained an Associate degree in Mechanical Engineering
— Mechanical Manufacturing Technology and Equipment from Nantong
University (formerly known as Nantong Textile Engineering College) and a
Quality Professional certificate issued by the State General Administration
of the People’s Republic of China for Quality Supervision and Inspection
and Quarantine.
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Mr. Qin Jianjun (“Mr. Qin"), aged 49, joined the Group in 2000 and is
currently the Assistant General Manager of Specialty Cable Sector of the
Digital Cable Business.. Mr. Qin has over 28 years of experience in the wire
and cable industry, among which over 21 years in management positions.
He obtained an Associate degree in Economics and Management from
Xi'an Politics Institute of the People’s Liberation Army.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Hoi Ying (“Ms. Ng”), aged 35, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company since 1 March 2019. Ms. Ng has over
13 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial reporting.
Ms. Ng is currently a company secretarial manager at Blooming (HK)
Business Limited, a company primarily engaged in corporate advisory and
company secretarial services. Ms. Ng is also the company secretary of
seven companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Ng obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Ng is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in manufacture and sales of cable assembly products (the “Core
Business”). Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year is set out in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 28 December
2018. Details of the Dividend Policy is disclosed as below.

The Company adopts a general dividend policy that aims to provide shareholders of
the Company out of the Group's profit attributable to shareholders in any financial
year, subject to the criteria set out below.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be determined at the
discretion of the Board and subject to all applicable requirements (including without
limitation restrictions on dividend declaration and payment) under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia:—

e the Group actual and expected financial performance;
e shareholders’ interests;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of the
other members of the Group;

e the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and financial
covenants to which the Group is subject;

e possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

e any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group's
lenders;

e the Group's expected working capital requirements and future expansion plans;

e liquidity position and future commitments at the time of declaration of dividend;

e taxation considerations;

e statutory and regulatory restrictions;

e general business conditions and strategies;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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The Board may propose the payment of dividends, if any, with respect to the
Company'’s shares on a per share basis.

In addition to cash, dividends may be distributed in the form of shares subject to
and in accordance with the procedures set out in the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association.

Except for interim dividend, any dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of shareholders at the general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board may from time
to time pay to the shareholders such interim dividends as appear to the directors to
be justified by the profits of the Company available for distribution.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy
at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.

Pursuant to the Code Provision F.1.1 under Appendix 14 Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report, the Company should disclose the policy
on payment of dividend in the annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of this
annual report. The state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at 31 March
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of financial position and Note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. The Directors do recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent (2021: HK1.5 cents) per share, amounting
to a total of approximately HK$19.5 million (2021: HK$27.6 million).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBER

The forthcoming annual general meeting is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 23
August 2022 (the “2022 AGM"). For determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 18 August 2022 to Tuesday, 23 August 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to
attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the company
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (which will be relocated to 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with effect from Monday, 15 August 2022),
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 August 2022.

In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will also be closed from Monday, 29 August 2022 to
Wednesday, 31 Aug 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares in the Company will be registered. All transfer of shares, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the branch share registrar of
the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong (which will be relocated to 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with effect from Monday, 15
August 2022) for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26 August 2022.
If the resolution of the proposed final dividend is passed at the 2022 AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 31 Aug 2022. The proposed
final dividend is expected to be paid on or before Thursday, 22 September 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five financial
years is set out on page 160 in this annual report. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year, together with
the reasons thereof, are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to owners
comprising share premium account and accumulated profits, amounted to
approximately HK$343.2 million.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 24 January 2018 (the
“Scheme") and shall expire at the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary thereof. The terms of the Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and other relevant
rules and regulations. As at the date of this annual report, there is no outstanding
share options available for issuance of Shares under the Scheme. Further details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
of which the Company is incorporate, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022
amounted to HK$45,900 (2021: HK$86,600).

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND THE OFFER

On 11 February 2022, Datatech Investment Inc. and Time Interconnect Holdings
Limited (collectively, the “Sellers”) and Luxshare Precision Limited (“Luxshare
Precision”) entered into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Sellers agreed to sell and Luxshare Precision agreed to purchase agreed to purchase
a total of 1,380,000,000 shares, representing approximately 74.67% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company at that time, for a total consideration of
HK$1,104,000,000 (equivalent to HK$0.80 per sale share) (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”). Following the completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement
which took place on 16 March 2022, Luxshare Precision became the controlling
shareholder of the Company and was required under the Code on Takeovers and
Mergers (the “Takeover Code”) to make a mandatory unconditional cash offer
to acquire all the issued shares (other than those already owned or agreed to be
acquired by Luxshare Precision) at HKO0.80 per offer share. Pursuant to Rule 13 of the
Takeover Code, Luxshare Precision was also required to make an appropriate cash
offer to the offer optionholders to cancel all offer options.

MBEE

FEERAAYBEENXE EEXEERZERN
REWRE160H - ARV ANERAEEREZARE
BB —ESD -

ME - MERLE

BEALEENFEANDE - BELLEESNFE
BN AR MR ERMIEES -

i Z:N
BEANTRERNNBRAZHNEBLEERREN
RAEMEHRERMEE27

=0

BEAREENANRNFRNFEEBNFIED A
BN R AR ER MR AR ME34

A IR

RIB_"HF=RA=+—H » KARDITHDIRTE
BANREE (BREEOZERRZNEN) SBAR
3432BEBTT °

B IEETE)

ARAAENRZF—/\F— A+ M B EGRAHMERR
BRarERT B (TEHR)L) - DI BB st3nn+
BER—ESXAMNEEREERRER © 5H8H
BREFaBEBMARSMERARESFLHRA("E
MRAL) 17 EHG R EAARRR A S ARG o
RERBY - BERITEBRERE SR N
BT - BRESBE-—THBRNEEMB®RE
fyzE28 -

BrEEE

RATEBERAE M MASRSEE (AIAATR G
MR R AR R ) JEG A MH T B S B RS
PUREARRRRIA AR ERERBEENRLD -

Ei=EN

AEERBRE_ S _ " H=-A=1+—HIFEEH
RYZEE 1B /45,9008 T(—F ——4£ 86,600/ 7T )°
R R SRR ED

MRZFZZH" F+—H - Datatech Investment
Inc. Kz Time Interconnect Holdings Limited (%t 78 "85

HJ)éﬁiﬁEﬂ* ERRAR (T3 JLF%JJEEET}E
B BARELRE  LABEREREEARL

1,380,000,000/ &% * HE A*E%ZM}T%“BE@@E
TAR#ITA.67% » RIEHREEA1,104,000,00058 7T
(FBENSREERK.8ET) (BERE.) - 1B
EREC_F__F-ATAERERE  ABE
B R AN B 45 B R BR B ZE AR IR A BB B & =T A
(MU EE=FR) EH AR S ERGRSELN - LIEK
ZARA0.80E TTHIRE D EBE BTN CRBFEILA
QWE%@;&ﬁ%XH BUEER) - IRBUEETRIRA
13 UHERAERZNEREREAFHERRS
SV HEFTE B BIE -

£ E#R % 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

"



>

DIRECTOR’S REPORT (conT'D)
EETHE @

The Offer was closed on 19 April 2022. Having made all reasonable enquiries and to
the best knowledge and belief of the Board, Luxshare Precision held 1,380,594,000
shares immediately after the close of Offer on 19 April 2022. Between the
commencement of the Offer Period and immediately prior to the close of the Offers,
a total of 77,736,000 Offer Options at the exercise price of HK$0.349 per Share
and 20,176,000 Offer Options at the exercise price of HK$0.320 per Share had
been exercised resulting in an allotment and issue of a total of 97,912,000 Shares
as at the close of the Option Offer, and none of the Offer Options granted under
the Share Option Scheme have not been exercised or cancelled pursuant to the
acceptance of the Option Offer and would automatically lapse on the date falling
one month from the date on which the Offers become or are declared unconditional
(i.e. Friday, 29 April 2022).

Details of the change of controlling shareholder of the Company and the Offer were
set out in the joint announcements dated 11 February 2022, 4 March 2022, 16
March 2022, 29 March 2022, 19 April 2022 and the composite document dated 29
March 2022 jointly issued by the Company and Luxshare Precision.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a non-exempt continuing connected
transaction has been renewed and will continue to be carried out between the
Company and Linkz Industries.

Before entering into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Linkz Industries, through
Time Interconnect Holdings Limited (“Time Holdings”), hold 1,175,070,000 shares
(representing 63.86% of the Group's enlarged total share capital) and remains as
the controlling shareholder. Mr. Paul Lo, considered himself and his shareholdings
in Nickson Holdings Limited (“Nickson Holdings"”), hold the controlling stake in
Linkz Industries representing indirectly control 38.2% of the Group’s enlarged total
share capital. Therefore, Linkz Industries is connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Linkz Industries, with its subsidiaries conducted a business in the manufacture and
sales of a range of products including networking cables, LED video display screens
as well as leasing of LED video display screens.

The related party transactions of the Group as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Property Sharing Agreement

On 24 March 2020, Linkz Cables Limited (a subsidiary of the Company after the
completion of the acquisition i.e. 30 June 2020) and Linkz Industries entered
into the agreement for a term commencing from the date of completion of the
acquisition (i.e. 30 June 2020) to 31 March 2023, pursuant to which Linkz Cables
Limited and its subsidiaries shares a portion of the Linkz Industries’ Hong Kong office
and continues to pay annual sharing costs to the Linkz Industries (the “Property
Sharing Agreement”).

On 31 March 2020, the Company renewed the agreement between the Company
and Linkz Industries for a term of three years from 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2023, pursuant to which the Group shares a portion of the Linkz Industries’ Hong
Kong office and continues to pay annual sharing costs to the Linkz Industries (the
"Existing Property Sharing Agreement”).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated under
the Property Sharing Agreement are required to be aggregated with the transactions
under the existing property sharing arrangements between the Group and the Linkz
Industries contemplated under the Existing Property Sharing Agreements (which are
also continuing connected transactions for the Company).

The Group had been sharing a portion of the Hong Kong office of Linkz Industries

for use as the headquarters since 1994 and does not have any plan to relocate its
present headquarter shared with Linkz Industries.
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The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, consider that all
of the continuing connected transactions above and their respective annual caps are
fair and reasonable, and that such transactions have been and will be entered into
the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group, on normal commercial
terms, are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Group and Shareholders
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save disclosed above, details of all the fully exempted and non-exempted continuing
connected transactions set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
that falls under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 30 June 2020, the Company entered into a four years term loan facility
agreement for an aggregate amount of HK$630.0 million with four leading banks
in Hong Kong (the “Club Loan Lenders”) for the exclusive purpose of acquisition
of the networking cables business. Pursuant to the terms of the facility agreement, it
shall be an event of default if (i) Mr. Paul Lo ceases to be the single largest beneficial
shareholder of the Company or beneficially own more than 51% of the issued share
capital of Linkz Industries; (i) Mr. Paul Lo ceases to be the chairman of the board
of directors of the Company or have control over the management and business of
the Group; or (iii) Linkz Industries ceases to beneficially own more than 50% of the
issued share capital of the Company (the “Restriction”). Upon the occurrence of
an event of default, the entire outstanding amount of the facility shall be prepaid
together with accrued interest.

On 11 February 2022, Datatech Investment Inc. and Time Interconnect Holdings
Limited (collectively, the “Sellers”) and Luxshare Precision entered into the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Sellers agreed to sell and Luxshare
Precision agreed to purchase agreed to purchase a total of 1,380,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 74.67% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company at that time, for a total consideration of HK$1,104,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$0.80 per sale share).

The Company has obtained the consent from the Club Loan Lenders for the waiver
on the Restriction.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentage of the Group’s aggregate
turnover attributable to the Group'’s largest customer was approximately HK$873.1
million (24.3%), while the percentage of the Group’s total turnover attributable
to the five largest customers in aggregate was approximately HK$2,430.5 million
(67.7%).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentage of the Group’s purchase
amount attributable to the Group's largest supplier was approximately HK$510.3
million (17.0%) of the total direct costs for the period, while the percentage of the
Group's total purchase amount attributable to the five largest suppliers in aggregate
was approximately HK$1,363.6 million (45.4%) of the total direct costs.

None of the Directors of the Company, or any of their close associates or
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were as follow:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wang Laichun (Chairman) (appointed on 19 April 2022)
Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul (Chairman) (resigned on 19 April 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ho Hin Shun

Mr. Luk Wai Shing

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric

In accordance with the memorandum and articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting. All Directors appointed by
the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Any Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in the three years
preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation at such annual general
meeting.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association of the Company, the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or
sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices.

Such provision was in force during the year ended 31 March 2022 and remained
force as of the date of this annual report. The Company has taken out and
maintained Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover for the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Director’s Report — Related Party Transaction and
Continuing Connected Transaction” above and in the sections headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in
the Prospectus, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had entered into
any contract of significance with the Company’s controlling shareholders or their
subsidiaries, or any contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Company’s controlling shareholders or
their subsidiaries, during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” below
and the share option scheme disclosures in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders"”) or their respective close
associates has engaged in any business that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has or may have any other
conflict of interests with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Non-Competition Undertakings

In order to avoid any possible future competition between the Group and the former
Controlling Shareholders, namely (i) Mr. Paul Lo, (i) Nickson Holdings, (iii) Gold Peak
Technology Group Limited (formally known Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited)
("Gold Peak"), (iv) GP Industries Limited (“GP Industries”), (v) Linkz Industries, (vi)
Time Holdings, (vii) Time Management (i.e. consists of three senior management of
the Group, namely Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon, Mr. Chan Ting Hei and Mr. Li Ping Kuen),
(viii) Mr. Sy Yuk Tsan, (ix) Mr. Wong Wai Hung and (x) Ms. Lo Ching Yee (each a
“Covenantor” and collectively the “Covenantors”), have entered into the deed
of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”) with the Company (for
itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries) on 24 January 2018. Pursuant to the Deed
of Non-competition, each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken to the Company (for itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries) that, during
the period that the Deed of Non-competition remains effective, he/she/it shall not,
and shall procure that his/her/its associates (other than any member of the Group)
not to develop, acquire, invest in, participate in, carry on or be engaged, concerned
or interested or otherwise be involved, whether directly or indirectly, in the Core
Business that is in competition with or likely to be in competition with the existing
business activity of any member of the Group.

Each of the Covenantors further undertakes that if any of he/she/it or his/her/its
associates other than any member of the Group is offered or becomes aware of
any business opportunity which may compete directly or indirectly with the Core
Business of the Group, he/she/it shall (and he/it shall procure his/her/its associates
to) notify the Group in writing and the Group shall have a right of first refusal of
take up such business opportunity. The Group shall, within six months after receipt
of the written notice (or such longer period if the Group is required to complete any
approval procedures as set out under the Listing Rules from time to time), notify
the Covenantor(s) whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal or not.
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The Group shall only exercise the right of first refusal upon the approval of all
the independent non-executive Directors (who do not have any interest in such
opportunity) and approval by the Board/or Shareholders as required under relevant
laws and regulations and in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company in effect at the relevant time. The relevant Covenantor(s) and the other
conflicting Directors (if any) shall abstain from participating in and voting at and
shall not be counted as quorum at all meetings of the Board where there is a conflict
of interest or potential conflict of interest including but not limited to the relevant
meeting of the independent non-executive Directors for considering whether or not
to exercise the right of first refusal.

During the year, the Company had not received any information in writing from any
of the Controlling Shareholders in respect of any new business opportunity which
competed or might compete with the existing and future business of the Group
which were offered to or came to the knowledge of the Controlling Shareholders
or their associates (other than any member of the Group), and the Company has
received an annual written confirmation from each Controlling Shareholder of
the Company in respect of him/her/it or his/her/its associates in compliance with
the Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-executive Directors have
also reviewed and were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company had complied with the Deed of Non-competition.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. The
emolument of the number of the highest paid individuals who are not the Directors
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 11(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022 falls within the following band:

AEFRETES2REIFATES (RENEHE
W& Pl AR AR R ) O DUSURBAR B R N
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i ANRHEMEFI SR ERNES (NH) N2 R
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RETHELABRENERESS) MEgtRE A
REFFNEEAR -
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NI EA BB LR EREIRA MARREEHF A
AR P E M EBRBNEMER  MZFER
TR RS AR A (REBEIAKEQTERN)
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e B BR 7 B L Ko ELE B A B ST i 2 AR R L T
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Number of Senior

Management
Emolument Band B & & E SREER AR
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 07%75%1,000,000557C 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 021,500,000 7T 7
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 522,000,000 7T 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017%&7c%2,500,0005% 7T 2

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Group, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once for each year to discuss
remuneration related matters (including the remuneration of Directors and senior
management) and review the remuneration policy of the Group. It has been decided
that Remuneration Committee would determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of the Group's retirement benefit plans are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts, no other contracts concerning the management and/or
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or subsisting during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of each of the Directors and
the chief executive in the shares of the Company, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange are set out as follows:

Long Position in shares of the Company

EER&ESITHRASREM « BEAKRMG RE#EEN
BRRKE

RIBI"HF=A=+—H  BEEZLAATVERST
BABRARRSNEA A EE (%R &5 A
BERGIZEXVER) Mk ~ HERD MERET %
BIREES LEEGRBIBEXVERET RSAE AN ER
AR REZANERIAR (BRREESRAE
BRPIZF BN S E FR R R IER IR FOK
2) > ARKZEF I EHRAEIS2HRETNZAGE
Frft = AR S OB - SRR E AR A £
THE T ATMESEITESRXZRETA (TR
7R ) BHEA QT LB PTIERSOA BT

RARBRMAVFE

Number of Approximate

shares held/ percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested interest

Fi¥sBaiEs R

EEHR B3 48 IR &R BaLtt

Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon Beneficial Owner 10,488,000 0.54%
PR 4 EREEA

Mr. Wong Chi Kuen Beneficial Owner 9,528,000 0.49%
EfuV vt BERBEBA

Mr. Paul Lo (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 1,824,000 0.09%
EMESEE (FEE) BEREEA

Mr. Ho Hin Shun (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 1,544,000 0.08%
IEaE A (Misk2) BHEBA

Mr. Luk Wai Shing Beneficial Owner 1,824,000 0.09%
BEfR RS BEREEA

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 1,824,000 0.09%
RS54 (FEE3) BREEA

Notes: st -

(1) Mr. Paul Lo has resigned as the chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director with
effect from 19 April 2022.

(2) Mr. Ho Hin Shun disposed 544,000 shares on 11 April 2022. As at the date of this annual
report, Mr. Ho Hin Shun held 1,000,000 shares.

(3) Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric disposed all his shares on 20 April 2022. As at the date of this
annual report, Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric did not hold any shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) had or were deemed to have an interest or a short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares of the Company which would be
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of the Company required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or who were directly or indirectly, to be
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any other
member of the Group:

FEREREMA TG - BERG REEED
ERRKE

RIBEZZF=B=+—H ' ' UTAL EBEE
BEARQNTREITBRAERIN) RAATBAD AR
BRNPHEEIERAETREES NGRS
XVEREE2 Fe 3D ERAVE B M AN R I TBHIRE TR A
£ AEELRAATDREES LA EEGSE3361E
ARENECHANERILE  REBEXEES
BB ANMEMER FTEAARD S AREE TR
Httk EATKRERS DRZENTMERKATE
10%3k L ERYERS -

Long positions in the shares RIEHBRIFE
Number of Approximate
shares held/ percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature interested interest
FifEBEa s WAL
g 513,148 R MHEE Bt
Luxshare Precision Beneficial Owner 1,380,000,000 70.92%
ITAEE BREBA
Luxshare Precision Industry Co., Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 1,380,000,000 70.92%
IEER TERMARAR (FEE1) R EE RS
Luxshare Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 1,380,000,000 70.92%
IABERAR (FEE2) L E RS
Ms. Wang Laichun (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 1,380,000,000 70.92%
FrRELL (EE3) 2P EE RS
Mr. Wang Laisheng (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 1,380,000,000 70.92%
FARRBEE (HEE4) R EE RS
Notes: Pzt

)

Luxshare Precision, a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong which is wholly-
owned by Luxshare Precision Industry Co., Limited (“Luxshare Precision Industry”).
Therefore, Luxshare Precision Industry is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the
shares held by Luxshare Precision for the purpose of the SFO. Luxshare Precision held
1,380,594,000 shares immediately after the close of offer on 19 April 2022.

Luxshare Limited holds 38.56% of the issued ordinary share capital of Luxshare Precision
Industry, and Luxshare Precision is wholly-owned by Luxshare Precision Industry. Therefore,
Luxshare Limited is deemed to, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Luxshare
Precision Industry for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Wang Laichun holds 50% of issued share capital of Luxshare Limited. Luxshare Limited
holds 38.56% of the issued share capital of Luxshare Precision Industry, and Luxshare
Precision is wholly-owned by Luxshare Precision Industry. Therefore, Mr. Wang Laisheng
is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Luxshare Precision for the
purpose of the SFO. Ms. Wang Laichun is the sole director of Luxshare Precision and the
chairperson and general manager of Luxshare Precision Industry. Ms. Wang Laichun was
appointed as the chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director with effect from 19
April 2022.

Mr. Wang Laisheng holds 50% of issued share capital of Luxshare Limited. Luxshare Limited
holds 38.56% of the issued share capital of Luxshare Precision Industry, and Luxshare
Precision is wholly-owned by Luxshare Precision Industry. Therefore, Mr. Wang Laisheng
is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the shares held by Luxshare Precision for the
purpose of the SFO. Mr. Wang Laisheng is the vice chairman of Luxshare Precision Industry.

E BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

1) MABEER —EREBEFMAZMNERAR © B
ABBRIERMERAR (IABEIR) &%
B oAk REBEFBSEPERL » LBEETERR
RIEENUAEEFENEROPHERER - L
MBEENRE_S__FNA+NHENEBULERFE
1,380,594,000/% &% °

2) UMERABFAILAEE LE3856% BT EER
A - MIABHHELAEE LTX2EES - FALt
RBEZ NP LGRS LAERATWERIEFNIL
BT IEFAENRE RO PR RL -

3) IRFLLHFBINERATS0NEHITEA - TAA
RABIFBIARER LH38.56% EHITRA » ML
BRATMERIE2EES - Bt REZHIH
B5RO - ERBEERRR/IEENLNEHI BN
BEOTPHEERER - TRELLRIUMBENE—EE
DIRSIREE TENERRECE - IRELIEER
FREFGERICFHRTESE BT __FOA+A
HEEER -

4) ERBEEFBULMERATS0%2HITRA - :H
RABIRB AR LE38.56% ERITRA - ML
BRZAVMBHETIX2EES - Fit  REES KM
B56  ERBEERBR/IEEN ISR BN
BRI RES - TRBEERIIET TENEIE
FE o



DIRECTOR’S REPORT (contD)

—_—

SEETHE m

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the substantial or significant
shareholders or other persons, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ Report — Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had or were deemed to have an interest or a short position
in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of
the Company remained to be kept under Section 366 of the SFO, or who were
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company or any other members of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 46 to 56 of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on information available in the
public domain concerning the Company, at least 25% of the Company’s issued
share capital were held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2022 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to reappoint Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Time Interconnect Technology Limited
Cua Tin Yin Simon

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to the maintenance
of good corporate governance practices and procedures. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful business growth
and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasise a quality Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance that can protect
and promote the interests of all Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability of the Company. For corporate governance purpose, the Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2022, to the best knowledge
of the Board, the Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions set
out in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have
fully complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and there was
no event of non-compliance throughout the period.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business operations of the
Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees the operations and monitors
the financial performance of the Group. The management is delegated power
and authority given by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group. The management is accountable to the Board for the Company’s
overall operation. Under the terms of reference, the duties of the Board in respect
of corporate governance are as follows:

1) To develop and review the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Group and make recommendations;

2) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and the senior management;

3) To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

4) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to the Directors
and the employees of the Group; and

5) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix

14 of the Listing Rules and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors and the Board is accountable to
shareholders. The management and control of the business of the Company is
vested in its Board. It is the duty of the Board to create value to the shareholders of
the Company.

Executive Directors
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen

Non-executive Director
Ms. Wang Laichun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ho Hin Shun

Mr. Luk Wai Shing

Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 34 of this annual report.

The proportion of which is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A, 3.10 (1)
and (2) of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive Directors of a
listed issuer represent at least one-third of the Board. The three independent non-
executive Directors represent more than one-third of the Board and at least one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. With the various experience of both the executive Directors,
the non-executive Director and the independent non-executive Directors and the
nature of the Group's business, the Board considered that the Directors have a
balance of skills and experience for the business of the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 28 December 2018 which sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.
Details of the Board Diversity Policy is disclosed as below.

1. Purpose
The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board.

2. Vision
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance.

3. Policy
When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will consider
board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, experience,
cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how. All Board
appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

4. Measurable Objectives
Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, experience,
cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

5. Monitoring and Reporting
The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee"”)
will disclose the composition of the Board annually in the corporate governance
report and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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6. Review of the Board Diversity Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

7. Disclosure of the Board Diversity Policy
A summary of the Board Diversity Policy together with the measurable objectives
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives will be disclosed in the annual corporate governance
report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) on 28
December 2018 which sets out the approach to guide the Nomination Committee
in relation to the selection, appointment and re-appointment of the Directors.
Details of the Nomination Policy is disclosed as below.

1 Purpose
1.1 the Nomination Policy aims to set out the approach to guide the Nomination
Committee in relation to the selection, appointment and re-appointment of
the Directors.

1.2 the Nomination Policy aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company'’s business.

2 Criteria
The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s)
for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration to criteria including
but not limited to (collectively, the “Criteria”):

(@) diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age, experience,
cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and know-how;

(b) sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties; their services on other
listed and non-listed companies should be limited to reasonable numbers;

() qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the relevant
industries the Company's business is involved in;

(d) independence;
(e) reputation for integrity;

(f) potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board; and

(g) commitment to enhance and maximize shareholders’ value.

3 Re-Election Of Director At General Meeting
3.1 The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend retiring
Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration to
the Criteria including but not limited to:

(a) the overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
director including his attendance of Board meetings and, where
applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation and
performance on the Board; and

(b) whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the Criteria in
section 2.

3.2 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of
director at the general meeting.
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4 Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the appointment
of a Director in accordance with the following procedures and process:

(@) the Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the current
composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

(b) the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate in
identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing
Directors, advertising, recommendations from an independent agency firm
and proposals from shareholders of the Company with due consideration
given to the Criteria;

(c) the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate in
evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference checks;

(d) upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment.

(e) the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation
to the Board in relation to the proposed appointment and the proposed
remuneration package; and

(f) the Board will have the final authority on determining the selection of
nominees and all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the
appointment as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong.

Responsibility
The Board will be ultimately responsible for the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors.

Monitoring And Reporting

The Nomination Committee will assess and report annually, in the corporate
governance report, on the composition of the Board, and launch a formal
process to monitor the implementation of the Nomination Policy as appropriate.

Review Of The Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will launch aformal process to review the Nomination
Policy periodically to ensure that it is transparent and fair, remains relevant to
the Company’s needs and reflects the current regulatory requirements and
good corporate governance practice. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.
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8 Disclosure Of The Nomination Policy
8.1 A summary of the Nomination Policy including the nomination procedures
and the process and Criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to
select and recommend candidates for directorship during the year will be
disclosed in the annual corporate governance report.

8.2 In the circular to shareholders for proposing a candidate as an independent
non-executive director, it should also set out:

e the process used for identifying the candidate and why the Board
believes the candidate should be elected and the reason why it
considers the candidate to be independent;

e if the proposed independent non-executive director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the reason the
board believes the candidate would still be able to devote sufficient
time to the Board;

e the perspectives, skills and experience that the candidate can bring to
the Board; and

e how the candidate can contribute to the diversity of the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors play a significant role in the Board
as they bring an impartial view on the Company’s strategies, performance and
control, as well as ensure that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. All independent non-executive Directors possess appropriate academic,
professional qualifications or related financial management experience. None of the
independent non-executive Directors held any other offices in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of
his independence, and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years which may be
terminated in accordance with their respective terms and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment between the Company and each of the
independent non-executive Directors, the independent non-executive Directors
have been appointed for an initial term of three years which may be terminated in
accordance with their respective terms.

According to the Article 108 of the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation at every annual general meeting of the Company, provided that every
Director shall retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at annual
general meeting at least once every three years. Article 112 of the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company provides that any Directors who are
appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting after their appointment, and are subject to re-election by shareholders of
the Company.

Ms. Wang Laichun, Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric will retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 23
August 2022. Ms. Wang Laichun, Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, separate ordinary
resolutions will be put forward to the shareholders of the Company in relation to
the proposed re-election of Ms. Wang Laichun as a non-executive Director, Mr. Ho
Hin Shun and Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric as an independent non-executive Director,
respectively.

TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The initial term of office of each of the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is three years, subject to re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The role of chairman remains separate from that of the chief executive officer to
enhance their respective independence, accountability and responsibility. Ms. Wang
Laichun was the Chairman and Mr. Cua was the Chief Executive Officer.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample continuing
professional development for the Directors for a sound and effective internal control
system and corporate governance. In this regard, the Group has always encouraged
the Directors to attend relevant training courses to receive the latest new and
knowledge regarding corporate governance.

The Company updates Directors on the latest developments and changes to the
Listing Rules and the applicable legal and regulatory requirements concerning good
governance practices. Reading materials on regulatory updates were also provided
to the Directors for updating their knowledge on the relevant issues. The Company
will, if necessary, provide timely and regular trainings to the Directors to ensure that
they keep abreast of the current requirements under the Listing rules. The Group
has also adopted a policy to reimburse the Directors for any relevant training costs
and expenses incurred concerning corporate governance and internal control.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the Audit committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on the
website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website
at www.time-interconnect.com. All the Board committees responsibly report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting meetings of Board
committees follow in line with, so far as practicable, those of the Board meetings
set out above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expense.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set out
in the CG Code which included developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
provision in the CG Code and disclosures in this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 January 2018. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric, the independent non-executive
Director, and other members included Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Luk Wai Shing, the
independent non-executive Directors. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and on the Company’s
website.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in that at least one
of the members of the Audit Committee (which must comprise a minimum of
three members and must be chaired by an independent non-executive Director)
is an independent non-executive Director who possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting related financial management expertise.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the financial information and
reporting process, internal control procedures and risk management system, audit
plan and relationship with external auditors and arrangements to enable employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review and comment
on the Company’s 2021 annual results and 2021/2022 interim results as well as the
Company'’s internal control procedures and risk management system.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is of the opinion
that the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2022 comply with applicable accounting standards, Listing Rules and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24 January 2018. The chairman
of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ho Hin Shun, the independent non-executive
Director, and other members includes Mr. Luk Wai Shing and Mr. Chan Chung
Shun Eric, the independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Wong Chi Kuen, the
executive Director. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee has been charged with the responsibility of making
recommendations to the Board on the appropriated policy and structures for all
aspects of Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has reviewed the remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors
and senior management and considered that they are fair and reasonable during
the year ended 31 March 2022. No Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings to review the remuneration
packages, bonus distribution and emoluments of Directors and senior management
and considered that they are fair and reasonable during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 24 January 2018. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee is Mr. Luk Wai Shing, the independent non-executive
Director, and other members included Mr. Ho Hin Shun and Mr. Chan Chung
Shun Eric, the independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Wong Chi Kuen, the
executive Director. The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and on the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review and assess the
composition of the Board and independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and makes recommendations to the Board on appointment of new
Directors of the Company. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee considers candidates on merit against objective
criteria and with due regards to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical and professional skills and/
or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a director.
The Company will also take into account factors relating to its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review and recommend the re-election of Directors.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meet regularly for considering, reviewing and/or approving matters
relating to, among others, the financial and operating performance, as well as, the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings are held when
significant events or important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.

During the year, the Chairman held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the executive Director present.

Details of all Directors’ attendance at the Board meeting and Board Committees’
meeting held during the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:
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Remuneration Nomination
Audit Committee Committee Committee
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting General Meeting
EEEEE #HNEREEEE FHEEEEE RERE8EER BEXE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held
R/ BITAEHRE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon FRRFEE 25/26 - _ _ 20
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen BELEEE 26/26 - 22 17 212
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul bl v 19/26 - - - 212
Independent non-executive Directors BAEBTES
Mr. Ho Hin Shun AEELE 7126 22 2 7 12
Mr. Luk Wai Shing PRt 7126 212 212 n 212
Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric BBERE 7126 212 22 1 12
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) assists the
Board by ensuring the Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for advising that Board on corporate governance
matters.

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Ng Hoi Ying (“Ms. Ng”) as
its Company Secretary. Ms. Ng possesses the necessary qualification and experience,
and is capable of performing the functions of the Company Secretary. Mr. Wong
Chi Kuen, executive Director of the Company is the primary contact person who
Ms. Ng contacts.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, Ms. Ng undertook no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update her skill and knowledge. The biographical
details of Ms. Ng are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor of the
Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of the audit and non-audit services
were as follows:
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Remuneration

paid/payable
Services rendered PR ftrYBRTS 2 EEE
HK$’ 000
Tt
Audit services IR
— Statutory audit services — I EE TR 2,170
Non-audit services IEB RIS
— Review interim report — EBRAPERE 430
— Professional service in connection with a circular to be issued ~— — BEIR FRITHEE B REAVERNEZER
in connection with the sale and purchase agreement, the % BREEE TAERE,
circular will contain the “Statement of Indebtedness” 350
2,950

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interest and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and
voting. All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meeting will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be posted on the website
of the Stock Exchange and the Company'’s website after the relevant Shareholders’
meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board on requisition of
Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
or by such Shareholders who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the
case may be) pursuant to Article 64 of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company. Such requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company or the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out
in such article for convening an extraordinary general meeting. Shareholders may
put forward proposals with general meeting of the Company by sending the same
to the Company at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written

enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

E BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BREHER

REEERARE ERRIEENEE (BREEEEHNES)
REENARBRUFRRERBRTOR  THRERR
M MM — - RIBEEDRA - PREKR
S LRENMARBEFEREFARR > MKRRE
FPERG AR B RAR S RE T BT
PN E/NCI =

REAQATDVEABEERALARE64E - RERF
AMREAHESTGRFEANDNRANDEE KA+
DZ—HEERFTIRHNEE  NBRH2FHKER
("TEBAEBRME) B - BEZFAIIARE
LFEFRBENER  HEFAZEE @ IREAAF
HAMRBENARTNREBNERERME - KR
AETRRMAIFT S ARRRSIRENRELRE
F o RRANRAARRRARE CIREHE - S
FBRERANAZEBETEMNER

BRAERENETFRENENESAUFTETLR
HHFEEANT - RRAUGHBEHLRANERNEZR
HEFEEARNTNEBNIREIME,



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (contD)

/N ShE -
TEEARMRE @

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility for overseeing the
Company'’s internal control, financial control and risk management system and shall
monitor its effectiveness on an ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems has been conducted by the Board at
least annually.

Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against material errors, losses or fraud,
the Company has established a risk management procedures which comprised the
following steps:

— Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could affect the
achievement of goals of the Group;

— Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk according to its likely
impact and the likelihood of occurrence;

— Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to mitigate the risks.

Risk identification and assessment is performed or updated annually, and the results
of risk assessment, evaluation and mitigation of each functions or operation are
documented in the Risk Registry to communicate to the Board and Management
for reviews.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions has been
carried out by an independent consultancy company with staff in possession of
relevant expertise to conduct an independent review.

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report issued by the
independent consultancy company and the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 and considered
that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed the effectiveness of
internal control systems by considering the internal control review report and
reviews performed by the Audit Committee and concurred the same.

Under Code Provision D.2.5, the Group should have an internal audit function.
The Company has no internal audit function because the Company has maintained
an internal control system and its implementation has been considered effective
by the Audit Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee has
communicated with external auditors of the Company to understand if there is any
material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the Company will review the need for one
on an annual basis.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has in place a policy on disclosure of inside information which sets
out the procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information.

The policy provides guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company from
breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

— define the requirements of periodic financial and operational reporting to the
Board and Company Secretary to enable them to assess inside information and
make timely disclosures, if necessary;

— controls the access to inside information by employees on a need-to-know
basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of the inside information before it is
properly disclosed to public;

— procedures of communicating with the Group’s stakeholders, including
shareholders, investors, analysts, etc. in ways which are in compliance with the
Listing Rules.

The Group has also established and implemented procedures to handle enquiries
from external parties related to the market rumours and other Group’s affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the dissemination of inside
information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with objective of
ensuring that the Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company.

The Company has established several channels to communicate with the
Shareholders as follows:

(i) Corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports and circulars
are issued in printed form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.time-interconnect.
com;

(i) Periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and published
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii

=

Corporate information is made available on the Company’s website;

(iv) Annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for the
Shareholders to make comments and exchange views with the Directors and
senior management; and

(v) The Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves the Shareholders in
respect of share registration, dividend payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing communication
with the existing Shareholders and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquires to the Board or the Company
may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there is no significant change in the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of business
practices in relation to environmental protection, social responsibility
and related governance. In order to uphold stakeholders’ confidence and
understanding of the Group’s efforts in achieving corporate sustainability,
the Group annually releases ESG Report in a transparent and open manner
for public review. All information in this ESG Report reflects the Group’s
related performance in the Review Year.

Reporting Scope

During the Review Year, the Group has completed the acquisition of
the business of automotive wire harness which is already incorporated
into this ESG Report. This ESG Report covers environmental, social and
governance performance (the “ESG performance”) of the headquarters
in Hong Kong (the “headquarters”) and the production facilities in
Huizhou, Shanghai and Kunshan City (the “PRC production facilities”).
After establishing a comprehensive data collection system and deepening
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") work, the Group is able
to disclose various environmental and social Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs") during the Review Year. Considering the differences in business
nature and operations, the digital cable business unit adopts production
volume whereas the cable assembly business unit and headquarters
adopt the average number of employee for emission intensity calculation,
KPIs presentation and the emission reduction target formulation. Due to
business nature, the emissions generated by the Group are not significant.
Therefore, both emissions and the intensity are presented in kilogram (kg)
instead of tonne in the Review Year.

Reporting Standards

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” ("ESG Guide") of the Stock Exchange
set out in the Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and provides a simplified
overview on the ESG performance of the Group. The information in this
ESG Report is derived from the Group’s official documents and statistics,
as well as the integration and summary of monitoring, management and
operational information.

ESG Governance

The Group has established sustainability strategies and related policies
with aims to create sustainable values to the stakeholders, thereby
strengthening the Group’s contribution to the environment and the
community. The Board has ultimate responsibilities for ensuring the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG strategies and policies. In order to fully
implement the Group’s sustainability strategies, an ESG working team has
been set up at the corporate level in planning, advocating and managing
the ESG related issues which includes addressing climate change and
identifying opportunity for further acceleration so as to sustain the Group's
long-term development. On the operational level, a dedicated team has
been established at each PRC production facility to manage the local
ESG issues, enforce and implement the relevant ESG tactics and policies
cascading from the corporate level. With the forward-looking guidance
and well-designed plans of action to address underlying ESG matters, the
management and responsible teams keep reviewing and enhancing the
Group's sustainability policies to satisfy the ever-changing expectation
of the stakeholders. The Group is committed to achieving an excellent
performance in ESG management while also maintains competitive
advantages in the industry. Details of the Group’s management approaches
in both the environmental and social aspects are elaborated in different
sections of this ESG Report. For the corporate governance, please kindly
refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.
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Stakeholder Engagement FHmESH

The Stock Exchange has set forth four reporting principles for preparing  Bf3xFrE R EMUIEERFRAIEARIIEE « 4
the ESG Report: materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. The @NRERBENER  FEM 2 ~ TEHR
Group believes that stakeholder engagement is crucial for identifying and ~ —%(14 - KEBR AN ESX LRI LD ITE
analysing material ESG issues. Stakeholders refer to groups and individuals ~ KIgE « # B NELHZEZTHEE - FNHEE
materially influenced or affected by the Group’s business. The Group’s ¥ AREEXBFESBEAFERNTAREBLHKEE
internal stakeholders include employees, management and Directors; TENERNEAN c KREBMNRNILFNEE
whereas external stakeholders include customers, suppliers, investors, I5{ES - TEEBRES » MARBHENSE
regulatory authorities and various types of community groups. BE - HER  REE  EERBELSETE

S -

The Group has established a mechanism to maintain good communication ~ AREFBE7IEBLEEBETIEFHERE
with the key stakeholders by a variety of channels. Through stakeholder — B#F&iBa9#SE - BB MHESRH » KEFA
engagement, the Group can understand wide-ranging views from the HEHENABENRELARE R @ WHEMAAR

perspective of stakeholders, be aware of the impact of the Group’s
business on the material environmental and social issues in order to

formulate effective policies to sustain the Group’s long-term development

and growth.

Figure 1: Stakeholders and engagement channels
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Corporate governance
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Financial position
BN
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Payment terms
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Supplier management
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On-site visits at suppliers’
offices and factories
HERRHAT R TRE
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“Supplier Portal” platform
THtrEmPrI =, e

Trade fairs and forums
TERBN®E

Materiality Analysis

The Group values stakeholders’ opinions and always undertakes
stakeholder engagement activities to understand the materiality of
various ESG aspects. Topics of the greatest interest will be illustrated to
the stakeholders. The Group also commissions a professional consultancy
firm to conduct the materiality analysis by interviewing the management
and studying the information from stakeholders through the engagement
channels mentioned above. With expert advice, the Group is able to identify
the material ESG aspects which are used to formulate the sustainability
roadmap.

Furthermore, the Group integrated a series of material issues from global
standards and initiatives, business conditions and media reports in which
18 material issues were selected, prioritised and positioned according
to the influence on stakeholders and the business in the Review Year.
It is found that aspects related to products, intellectual property, supply
chain and manufacturing management are increasingly crucial to both
stakeholders and the Group.

AEESHEFNENER » KEETHNES
BISES) - DIBRRESGR A ENEERM - WA
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ZSXERARERREEEMANRER L
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teSh » REBRE2HRERER  XEBR
RIREEwEnaZIRE R EE - HR18I8%K
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£ [Z 3R % 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

5



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (contp)
B HBR

EARRE |

Figure 2: Materiality analysis outcomes
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Under the current dynamic business environment, the Group has to
respond to the market very rapidly for sustaining the competitiveness and
therefore stakeholders’ opinions are increasingly important. The Group
will maintain close communication with stakeholders continuously, collect
opinions from stakeholders through different channels more extensively
and make materiality analysis more substantive and comprehensive. At the
same time, the Group will enhance the reporting principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency to determine contents of the ESG
Report and presentation of the information that are more in line with the
stakeholders’ expectation.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emissions

Emissions from daily operational activities

The Group's daily operation generates the emissions of nitrogen oxides
("NOy"), sulphur oxides (“SO."), and particulate matter (“PM"). Also,
the use of electricity and the business air travel by employees generate
greenhouse gas (“GHG"). The approximate amount of NO,, SO, and PM
produced from the operation are shown in the table below:

Figure 3: Emissions from daily operational activities
B3 - HEEERESEERNHR
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NO, emissions SO, emissions PM emissions
REDEER E EHE TR BEIR
[ R N N J
' Po. ] l
o, ] PV
2022 (kg AFT) 42.167 1.997 2.513
2021 (kg AT 35.500 1.225 2.783

Compared to the Previous Year, the air emissions (NO, and SO,) increased
due to the acquisition of automotive wire harness business and the
intensive use of electric generators during the period of electricity control
imposed by the government in Huizhou. In respect of reducing the NO,,
SOx and PM emissions, the Group is committed to ensuring the efficient
usage of private cars by implementing the following environmental friendly
measures: (i) encourage the use of public transport; (i) utilise the vehicle
usage by carpooling with different employees; (iii) avoid peak hour traffic;
and (iv) encourage the use of bicycle. To ensure the emission from private
cars in reasonable level, the Group regularly reviews their conditions and
makes necessary arrangements to avoid excessive emission. The Group
also plans to replace some diesel-powered forklift with electric ones in the
next few years.

The Group has set the intensity of air emission reduction target on 2% by
2025 compared with 2021 base year.

During the Review Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the environmental laws and regulations in respect of
emissions in the course of operation and vehicle usage.

B EFERL  ZRFRY (A MRS
L) BRTEI Ty AR BUEIS B AR R &
T‘EJIIBUHE‘)?E 5 N E BB AS LA KFR
B - BB BEA ~ B SRR
755( C AEERONEABRERLKE - WE
HeY LU RAR M - ()*iJ%MEFH/\ﬁ“LIE:
(VRBERFIBE S ELIZHER 5 (i)ERNRR
BRIERERAE . RivEBEIERBTE - Rk
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GHG Emissions

During the course of operation, there are GHG emissions principally
resulting from the combustion of fuels in stationary sources (e.g. electric
generators), combustion of fuels in mobile source (e.g. private cars, light
goods vehicle and forklift), electricity consumed in the PRC production
facilities and aircraft navigation. The major of GHG emissions of the
Group comes from energy consumption. The Group manages to minimise
energy consumption by adopting policies and procedures on energy saving
mentioned in the section “Use of Resources”.

Scope 1 — Direct emissions
Due to the usage of private cars, light goods vehicle, forklift and electric
generators, a certain amount of GHG is emitted.

The Group strictly controls the emissions of GHG through the establishment
of a comprehensive data collection system and green approach guideline.
This system and guideline facilitate the Group to monitor the monthly
usage of all vehicles and maintain the efficiency at a prominent level.

Scope 2 — “Energy indirect” emissions

Apart from the direct emissions, the Group has also incurred indirect GHG
emissions (Scope 2), mainly generated from electricity used in the PRC
production facilities.

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions
Other indirect GHG emissions of the Group are principally generated from
aircraft navigation during employees’ business trip.

Figure 4: Summary of GHG emissions
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SCOPE 1 SCOPE 2 SCOPE 3 Intensity per km Intensity per
Direct emissions  “Energy indirect” emissions  Other indirect emissions ~ Of cable products employee for
&1 £E?2 &3 - for cable assembly
B TBERRSEE ) i HARE R digital cable  business unit and
business unit headquarters
BEBEEBAW B
% BHREMLE E S IS
ig: ~ SAENEE  SEEEBNTE
*?‘ f’\
2022 (kg 2AFT) 329,885 34,668,136 44,040
2021 (kg AfT) 213,560 33,263,660 55,780 25.65 2,537.06

Compared to the Previous Year, the Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions
have increased mainly attributed by the intensive use of electric generators
during the period of electricity control imposed by the government in
Huizhou.

The Group has set the following reduction targets:

e Maintain the intensity of Scope 1, 2 GHG emissions by 2025 as
compared to 2021 base year.

e Maintain the intensity of Scope 3 GHG emissions by 2025 as compared
to 2019 base year.
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Noise Pollution

The Group engaged licensed third party to perform regular inspection at the
noise level to check whether the Group has complied with Measurement
of Physical Agents in Workplace Part 8: Noise (GBZ/T 189.8-2007). Various
checking points have been set at different parts in the PRC production
facilities. No material non-compliance has been found.

Even though the PRC production facilities recorded no significant impact
on noise pollution to the surrounding community, the Group always
commits to maintaining communication with the community nearby about
the potential noise issue. The Group provides appropriate protective gears
(such as earplug and etc.) to the workers in order to protect their hearing.

Hazardous Waste and Non-Hazardous Waste Produced
The Group's production processes involved the following hazardous waste
produced:

Figure 5: Hazardous waste

B - BEEEY

IEE 5
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Mineral oil Organic solvents Wire-drawing Waste batteries Total Intensity Intensity
contaminated  contaminated waste rags lubricants FEEEM FEh per km per employee
waste rags  and used containers for I8 of cable  for cable assembly
B H5 % chemical materials products for  business unit
BEEMR BRARSSEEEMAR digital cable and
EEA LB AR business unit  headquarters
BT ERET SRANED
6 ARTRES 2 BREH
@ EEGADN SEEEM
2022 (kg 2AFT) 1,180 17,518 2,620 21,338
2021 (kg AT 1,020 8,498 3,174 12,713 0.01 1.70
With the impact from the acquisition of automotive wire harness business — S2Us B )5 BEFC 4R 2675 MR B H U R EA BB
and the usage of activated carbon in the production process as required ~ ZFREREMRNEE » DEFENEEEE
by the local government, the generation of overall hazardous waste in the ~ EEWMEE® FFEGRTEMN -
Review Year has increased as compared to the Previous Year.
In alignment with the national policy, the local governments will further AERERE @+ ARZMBUFEE—T NARBE
strengthen the environmental protection regulations and policies. As a  JERAEE @ Wit - AREeE B 2R D
result, more and more materials will be classified as hazardous waste in 8RB =EEEY) - AEBHEEHNEES
future. The Group will continue the dedication to proper management of HEHEEEEY) - ARFRLZS @ SR ERES
the hazardous waste. Specific area is assigned for the temporary storage  {FiaFFZHEEZEEY - UEHGENE=
of hazardous waste for safety purpose. Licensed third party is engaged for B &EWEBZBE=ZYLUETRE R -
the collection of hazardous waste for proper handling.
Apart from that, the Group has also produced non-hazardous waste KRtz oh - REBREERART IS ELAEE
during the course of production as follows: BE=EY) - FEIBUOR ¢

Figure 6: Non-hazardous waste
[E6 : MEEEZEY
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2022 (kg 2AF) 1,819,121 17,645 113,489 9,495 1,402
2021 (kg AfT) 1,916,666 43,292 129,617 9,836 535
Note 1: In the Review Year, the Group uses kg as unit for all non-hazardous wastes so that

the intensity can be presented more appropriately. Therefore, the figures in 2021 are
restated.
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In addition to reducing the hazardous waste, the Group also strives to
eliminate the non-hazardous waste, such as the usage of papers, printing
toners as well as paper towels. With the effort contributed by every
employee in the Group, the usage of non-hazardous waste in total has
slightly decreased.

The Group will continue the effort to maintain the target intensity on
hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste generated by 2025 compared
with 2022 and 2021 respectively by adopting the following measures:

e Continuously improve production process in order to decrease the
generation of both hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste;

* Increase investment in research and development, promote
technological innovation and strengthen process training in order to
reduce scrap; and

e Promote paperless office.

Use of Resources

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation and emissions
reduction for green production. The major resources consumed by the
Group are principally attributed to electricity and water used in the PRC
production facilities. The Group commits to achieving low-carbon practices
and emissions reduction throughout the production and operations, and
striving to save the resources.

The total water consumption in cubic metres by region during the Review
Year is shown in the table below:

Figure 7: Water consumption by region
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2022 (cubic metres 7 75K) 316,631
2021 (cubic metres 3775K) 333,516 0.11 97.10

Compared to the Previous Year, both of the total volume and intensity of
water consumption are stable. A water recycling system has been installed
in Linkz Ind (Suzhou) so that large volume of water is saved by reusing the
cooling water in the production process. The Group will keep using the
current monitoring mechanism to ensure sustainable water consumption
and promote reduction of usage by adopting the following initiatives:

e Arouse employees’ awareness of water conservation;

e Conduct daily inspection of major infrastructure, promptly takes
corrective and preventive measures when leaking problems are found;
and

e Replace with smaller diameter water pipes and install water meters to
monitor water consumption at Huizhou TIME.

The Group has initiated a target of 4% reduction on water consumption
intensity by 2025, using 2021 as a baseline.
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To identify energy saving opportunities, the Group measures and records
the energy consumption level regularly. The total energy consumption by
type is shown in the table below:

Figure 8: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type

8 MPBBSNERR HERERERE

Non-renewable fuel  Renewable energy  Purchase of energy

RATEA R AEERR BERER
2022 (kWh FELEF) 1,984,211 3,530,682 42,597,578
2021 (kWh FELE) 810,383 3,637,646 41,082,714

Compared to the Previous Year, the energy consumption intensity for
cable assembly business unit and headquarters has increased primary due
to the newly constructed clean room in Huizhou TIME and the intensive
use of electric generators during the period of electricity control imposed
by the government in Huizhou.

The Group targets to maintain the intensity of energy consumption by
2025 as compared to 2021.

The Group determines to maximise energy conservation throughout the
production by promoting efficient use of energy and adopting green
technologies including the following measures:

Frequency conversion air compressors are installed to reduce electricity
consumption;

Upgrade machinery and equipment such as purchasing electrical
appliances with high energy efficiency label and using LED lighting in
order to accelerate energy efficiency;

Switch off equipment after office hours or when leaving the workplace
except for production needs;
Promote energy efficiency and awareness of
environmental protection;

raise employees’

Promote Total Productive Maintenance to reduce production scrap and
energy consumption per unit product;

Linkz Ind (Suzhou) continues to purchase renewable energy from a
solar energy company;

Linkz Ind (Suzhou) is equipped with water recycling system and solar
photovoltaic system. Sky windows, High Volume Low Speed energy
saving ceiling fans are also installed to maximise energy efficiency;

Energy saving non-polluting water curtain is installed in Linkz Ind
(Suzhou) and Linkz (Shanghai) to increase the air humidity as well as
purify the dust and particles carried by the outside air.
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The Group has also used various packaging materials for the operation.
During the Review Year, the Group recorded the following packaging
materials usage:

Figure 9: Packaging materials usage
B9 - BEMEEE

Paper cartons Plastic bags

Fic] BRI

s

> 17
2022 (pieces 4) 7,502,152 23,649,094
2021 (pieces ) 3,067,507 25,631,218

The Group is dedicated to minimise the usage of packaging materials. It
is the Group’s practice to implement production planning in a timely basis
to assess the approximate amount of packaging materials needed before
mass production.

The Environment and Natural Resources

To develop a green approach, minimise environmental impact and natural
resources consumption, some of the PRC production facilities have adopted
a heat recovery system to recover the residual heat from the air compressor
to heat up the water supply in dormitory. Besides, the Group has also
developed and implemented a management software to move forward to
paperless operation in the production line. Video and phone conferences
are encouraged to minimise carbon footprint created by business-related
travel.

As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting the environment has
become an integral part of the Group’s corporate culture and important
value. The Group constantly looks for ways to maximise benefits with
minimal resource consumption and environmental impact, and continue
to strive for sustainable development.

Linkz Ind (Suzhou) has successfully renewed the 1ISO14064 Greenhouse
Gas verification from UL which fully reflects the Group’s unremitting
efforts in strengthening environmental protection.

The Group has also set up an environmental system management task force
as part of the effort to develop an environmental management system that
supports sustainable development, and has obtained the certification of
ISO14001 Environmental Management Systems.

Climate Change

Climate change is one of the most critical and complicated challenges
faced globally in the new century. Global warming leads to more frequent
extreme weather conditions including changes in precipitation mode,
droughts, floods and bushfires. Rise in sea level may inundate coastal
areas. Faced with all sorts of natural disaster, individuals, corporations and
governments must take immediate actions to tackle climate change.

Over-emission of greenhouse gases is the main factor in causing global
climate change. To achieving a low carbon economy, the Group is
committed to reducing the greenhouse gas emissions through the
approaches of mitigation and adaptation. For example, the Group has
strived to mitigate the risks brought by climate change through the
adoption of various environmental policies and measures; and promoting
energy saving practices. The Group has also considered potential physical
risks of climate change to the daily operations such as storms, fires or
heatwaves and implemented the relevant protection measures to minimise
the risks.
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The Group has identified the following significant climate related issues ~ AEEE# B Ty HESEELERTE N/
which have impacted and/or may impact on the operations: RS ENE R FHEBEZAE

Figure 10: Significant climate related issues

E10 : EXRIZIERAZE

Acute risk:

Chronic risk:
. . Extreme weather such as typhoon,
I:ihynsmaLRlsk torrential rain and sandstorm Continuous high temperature drought, etc.
Egﬁlﬂp}m %'E}ﬂpﬁ .
RESE - i‘z::u:%

BE - FW - PERFEERR

Interruption of public transportation
systems will affect staff commutlng
NHIIBRRRER & TIBEE
Under the extreme weather conditions,
the supply chain will be affected due to
transportation interruption. Production
delay will occur due to suspension of
operatlons
EMmARISNT » HEE S SEEH R
ETMXIIRE - AETNEHAEMETIMHER
Weather-related events such as storms,
floods, fires or landslides that cause
damage to production plants, equipment
and inventories.
BRIMEBNEG - ER K~ KK
%?;_giﬁ  BHAERE - e NERE
E o

Adopt flexible working arrangements
in case of adverse weather conditions if

e High temperature will badly affect the
working environment and production
efficiency; and cause possible health issues
such as heat stroke.
BREBRELETIFRE  ERLEVRE
T - RSP ESRERE -

e High temperature will lower the lifespan of
production materials; and equipment, and
eventually increase the operating cost.
RSB EMEREBNED - &%
BHEEERAEM -

e Power and water shortage may interrupt
operation.

IKEBRER AP EE T -

e Apply more energy efficient cooling
equipment and measures.

necessary. A E BRI IEN
FEELREEBERT @ NWEFFEIEEN e Provide periodic health check to labour.
T ek - R TiREERERRS -

Communicate with customers and
suppliers in real time to ensure the
timeliness of material and product
delivery.

BEPRMERETERER  BRY
BN Em TR o

Formulate emergency response plans and
continuously improve emergency response
mechanisms for natural disasters.
FIEESEE  NETEBAKTRE=
FESIHEE -

Upgrade drainage system in the PRC
production facilities, install water baffles
at building, and reserve emergency
supplies such as fine sand and sandbags.
FHRP BN A ERMHDE R - EARE
g%#‘ﬁﬂ)ﬁ EEBAD PP IREEZN

e Upgrade equipment that can operate under
high temperature.
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Transition Risk
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¢ Mandates on and

regulation of existing
products and services

as of the tightened
environmental and safety
laws and standards.
BRERRERENRE
ERIIRRE  HIRBE
o M RS HEANAR B BT

RE -

Monitored the updates

in environmental laws,
regulations and policies,
and respond to them in a
timely manner.
BTIRIBERE RN
%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%%‘?’%ﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁ%@

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (contp)
B HBR

e The government may

introduce more stringent
policies and regulations to
mitigate climate change,
which would increase our
compliance workload or
subject us to litigation or
claims.

BUIT R BE 4 1 5 R 2D
R PERUR A R RS
{LRERE - RITEIE b
NaRTFEERME
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Monitored the updates

in environmental laws,
regulations and policies,
and respond to them in a
timely manner.
BEREERE ~ AR
RIVEHTE A S IFEE -

Market risk J":’I;G
Gk LU

5

e More customers are

concerned about
climate-related issues,
which may lead to changes
in customer preference.
FLEFWTARIEEE
B SRR FRIETE
=itle

Prioritise the climate
change as a high concern
in the market decisions

to show the Group is
concerned about the issues
of climate change.
BRIRE LT R TZmR R
AEERFNELSEE
DR MAEEHREEL
MENEE -

Moving forward, the Group will continue to implement proactive measures BRI » AREF AL ELAVEMIE - LIS
that minimise any adverse impacts on the environment including reducing A BB EBE RN T AATEZE » B8R
emissions in the operations, engaging suppliers to reduce emissions in  ZEAEAWEEHRE ~ (BEALERSBA L EE
supply chain, strengthening the resilience of the business and advocating  FIpHEINE ~ INAREKHIEEESH » WINEE
for collective action. LEEETE o
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SOCIAL

Employment

Human capital is the most valuable asset of an enterprise and also the
cornerstone for sustaining corporate development and enhancing
competitive advantages. It is the Group's initiative to attract, retain and
develop quality talents through various human resources strategies and
tactics, e.g. efficient recruitment and selection, fair and competitive
remuneration and benefits, effective performance management, systematic
staff development and training, holistic health and safety management,
etc. The Group always reviews the human resources policies and practices
in order to maintain the competition and attractiveness in the job market as
well as ensure sufficient human capital for the Group's sustainable growth.

Being a corporate citizen, the Group always gives timely assistance and
solicitude to those needy employees. During the Review Year, the Group
and the labour unions have provided financial support to 3 employees
who urgently need medical support for themselves or their diseased family
members. Also the Group actively assists in fostering young talents for
the community by offering the Employee Children Scholarship Program to
employees’ children who are taking full-time bachelor degree at reputable
universities. 17 employees of the Group were awarded this scholarship in
the Review Year.

The Group aims to refrain from any form of harassment and discrimination
with respect to age, gender, race, nationality, religion, marital status or
disability in the workplace. Hence, the ratio of male to female employees
show that gender inequality does not exist.

The Group always strictly observes the relevant legislations in the PRC and
Hong Kong regarding the equal employment opportunities, child labour
and forced labour. The Group abides by the employment regulations,
relevant policies and guidance of the jurisdictions where it operates,
including the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China” in the PRC; the
“Employment Ordinance” and the “Employees’ Compensation Ordinance”
in Hong Kong.

The Group has also developed rigorous and systematic measures for
recruitment and selection to prevent itself from illegally hiring child labour
and ensure that the employment is in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. Furthermore, The Group has the human resources information
system to record employees’ information in order to review employment
practices systematically and regularly.

Huizhou TIME offers shuttle service that takes employees between the public
transit hubs and their workplaces. The shuttle service helps attracting more
new hires, and encourages friendship building with other colleagues and
creates a sense of belongings. Moreover, the Group organises recreation
activities.

The Group also strives to establish harmonious labour relationships, create
a happy working environment, promote a positive and healthy lifestyle,
and strengthen the sense of belongings. As such, the headquarters has
been recognised as “Happy Company” (See Figure 11) by the Hong Kong
Productivity Council and the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation.
Moreover, the Group has been granted the certificate of “Good MPF
Employer” (See Figure 12) by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority.

The Group commits to improve employees healthcare. Starting from 2021,
the headquarters’ employees have been granted special leave after taken
the COVID-19 vaccine. The Group has organised several events to promote
employees’ health such as “Employee Sports Day” (See Figure 13) and
health workshops. Also, the Group actively participated in different sports
games such as “Shanghai Floor Curling Competition” (See Figure 14)
organised by the local community to share the joy of 2022 Olympic and
Paralympic Winter Games held in Beijing.
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During the Review Year, the Group has successfully obtained funding from  REEEFE - AEECESAIFRL B
the Research Talent Hub Scheme offered by Innovation and Technology =~ AATERIEBRY @ WABEREEE AL + LUEHNE(H
Commission to engage talent in the headquarters which enables the B ALN @ AkE %%%E’JEE“‘EH?E}\Z“{’E&
Group to enhance the human capital on research and development; and  =j&f °

make contribution to forster young research and development talent in

the city as well.

Figure 11: Happy Company Figure 12: Good MPF Employer
E11: AOEE E12 : e EE

2920-21'
Fﬁ HE
CUUdMPFF nploye

Time Interconnect Limited
EEIRERALT

Is henoured as o MIF R

Good MPF Employer
WEFE=E
and prosentod with ERH
MPF Support Award B 5 1l 5 5

Imdex Foundarion

I!!ﬂ#ﬂﬁﬂiﬁ

HAPPY Bl g
COMPANY Z =
Syears® R e
Figure 13: Employee Sports Day Figure 14: Shanghai Floor Curling
E13 - E8E&EEH Competition
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During the Review Year, the Group was not aware of any material HREEFE - AEENEBRFMESERE
non-compliance with the labour requirements set out in relevant laws, B34 LiABIERZERIRRE °
regulations and standards.

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Figure 15: Employment

E15 : &%
Total number of employees and workforce structure as at 31 March 2022
RIB__F=A=1+—HMESHE AR R ERLE NHIEE
Age Number of Total 2022 Ratio 2021 Ratio
T employees number  of maleto of male to
by gender of female female
%R employees employees  employees
SIDM RBEBABE “FF X" —F
Region Gender @) Q Q EEAH xﬁﬁé\ BiEE
mwe R <30 30-50 >50 LBl LBl
/@\ '@.@"1'; 495 844 70 1,409
- 3,176  0.80:1 0.95:1
Female
1,767
ik 381 1,330 56
Male
Hong Kong Bt 2 15 17 34
56 1.55:1 1.52:1
E &
oy - 9 13 22
Male
St 497 859 87 1,443
ToEaI 3,232 0.81:1 0.96:1
st Female
@ it 381 1,339 69 1,789
&5 ﬁ_; Overall
SR mepm 878 2,198 156 3,232
Employee turnover rate in the Review Year
REBEEEEERKE
Total employee Employee turnover rate Employee turnover rate Employee turnover rate
turnover rate? by region? by gender? by age group®
EERK=E? @& Y BRIERIBIHY RFERAE J sloNEE A
EERKE BEMRKZE

Note 2: Total employee turnover rate = number of left employees/((number of employees at
the beginning of the Review Year+number of employees at the end of the Review
Year)/2)/12x100

Note 3: Employee turnover rate in the specified category = number of left employees in the
specified category/((number of employees in the specified category at the beginning
of the Review Year+number of employees in the specified category at the end of the
Review Year)/2)/12x100

Note 4: The Group has revised the calculation methodology during the Review Year. Therefore,
the figures of 2021 are restated.
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7.7% 3.4% 4.1%

BEMRAR = BBREREAS/ (HBEFEMNEEA
S+EEFEREEAZ)/2)/12x100

BEANREMARE = FEEBBREEAZ/((H
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BAZ)/2)/12x100
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Health and Safety

The Group strongly believes that ensuring a stable and safe production
environment is the most important social responsibility to the stakeholders
and also one of the major priorities in the corporate management. The
health and safety measures listed below are some examples already taken
in place within the Group:

e Sophisticated occupational health and safety management systems
have been established in the PRC production facilities;

e Canopies and other protection devices have been installed to ensure
the safe operation of production machinery and equipment;

e Trainings on fire safety and fire drills are organised at the PRC
production facilities;

e Body checks are conducted on a regular basis at the PRC production
facilities to monitor employees’ health;

e Fire-fighting facilities, e.qg. fire extinguishers, smoke detectors and etc.,
are equipped at the PRC production facilities and headquarters;

e Exhaust air treatment system has been installed in Linkz Ind (Suzhou)
to eliminate volatile organic compounds emissions generated during
production processes.

Also, the Group assigned relevant department to inspect daily operations
by the established risk assessment program which consists of a series of
steps such as risk identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring
and reviewing and thus non-compliance will be identified and rectified
timely.

To deal with the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has set up an emergency
response team at the headquarters for pandemic prevention and control.
The Group has been implementing several measures starting from the
early 2020 including but not limited to arrange frequent and intensive
cleaning and disinfection in the office facilities (see figure 16), request
colleagues to wear masks in workplace and offer sanitiser to staff for daily
use in order to minimise the risk of spreading the virus. In addition, the
Group has frequently provided health education material and tips to staff
to enhance their awareness of preventing COVID-19. During the outbreak
of 5th wave of COVID-19, the headquarters’ employees were arranged
to take turns on working from home and adopt flexible lunch hour. The
Group also distributed rapid antigen test kits to headquarters’ employees.
They were required to perform the rapid tests on their own and record the
results on the declaration system before attending work until the situation
was stabilised. Air sanitisers are equipped at the headquarters for keeping
the virus load permanently low in order to protect employees and visitors.

For the PRC production facilities, several procedures and practices
continued to be in effect, such as requesting employees to wear masks in
workplace, dine in batches in the canteen, take body temperature checking
before entering the premises, conduct COVID-19 nucleic acid test when
employees returned from other city. The PRC production facilities also
support employees to take COVID-19 vaccination, which is effective at
protecting people from getting seriously ill, by inviting medical personnel
to provide vaccination service to our employees at site.

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Figure 16: Cleaning and disinfection in the office facilities
16 : HAFEAIERIES

The PRC government continued to advocate people staying locally in
the Lunar New Year to minimise the risk of pandemic recurrence in the
country. In response to the government instructions, the PRC production
facilities strongly recommended employees to stay in the factory during
the Lunar New Year.

During the Review Year, the Group has encouraged the headquarters’
employees to participate webinars and workshops held by the Occupational
Safety & Health Council including “Move for Health Workshops” and
“Chinese Medicine Dietetic Strategies Workshop” to enhance health
awareness.

Figure 17: Move for Health Workshop : Resistance Band Exercise
E17 * GRS MfRBE TELh - 1BAHES)

The Group makes every effort to create a healthy, safe, stable and
harmonised working environment effectively. Every case of injury (if any) is
required to be reported to the Human Resources Department immediately
and be assessed under internal guidelines. The Group is pleased to report
that the rate of accidents and injuries during the Review Year was extremely
low with zero fatal accident in the past 3 years. The total number of lost
days due to work injury is 579 for the Group.
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Figure 18: Chinese Medicine Dietetic
Strategies Workshop
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During the Review Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the health and safety laws and regulations.

Figure 19: Health and safety
E19 - BRRRRZ

Number of
work injuries
TEHF
2022 2021
8 11

Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and professionally
trained employees to the business growth and future success. Therefore,
the Group advocates the culture of lifelong learning through providing
tuition fee subsidy and encouraging employees to participate in personal
development and job-related training courses. During the Review
Year, the Group formulated quality management and environment
management training programs to update employees with the latest
standard of ISO9001, 1ISO14001 and etc, in order to maintain the highest
standard of professionalism by the employees. Trainings organised in the
Review Year include quality assurance training in production processes,
inspection assurance of materials received from supplier, health and safety
precautions in using production equipment and machinery as well as
customer relationship management.

In daily operations, the Group provides induction training for new employees
and experienced employees act as mentors to guide new recruits. The
Group believes such arrangement can facilitate communication and team
spirit, improve technical skills and managerial capability, encourage the
learning and further development of employees at all levels.

The Group also provides relevant training to develop and enhance the
employees in all management aspects, e.g. communication skills, team
building and motivation, meeting skills and etc., to train them as the
potential leaders and successors for the management team.

The Group will continue to intensify the efforts to promote and develop
employee training programs. It believes that by means of offering
comprehensive training opportunities, it could help to provide sufficient
talent capital for corporate development. The Group annually evaluates
the training needs to ensure that employees are provided with suitable and
appropriate training according to their job nature, position, required and
potential competences for further development.

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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Figure 20: Development and training
E20 - FRRIEIN

Percentage of employees trained in the Review Year
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Note 5: Percentage of employees trained in the specified category = Number of employees in ~ FizE5 © %F

Percentage of
employees
trained by

gender®
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47 %
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the specified category who took part in training/Total number of employees who took

part in training during the Review Yearx100

Note 6: Overall percentage of employees trained = Total number of employees who took part {56 : ZIEEFMLEEE DL = RZEE -

in training/Total number of employees during the yearx100

Average training hours completed per employee in the Review Year
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Managers Supervisors and Workers’
or above’ general staff’ TA
e D FER
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Gender %
PR ain N
Q Male 9 16 24

B
1 12 23
9 14 24

Note 7: Average training hours in the specified category = Number of training hours of the
specified category/Total number of employees under the specified category during the

Review Year.

Note 8: Overall Average training hours per employee = Total number of training hours/Total ~ [iz8 @ SR ESMERETIIEIINE = REFE

number of employees during the year.
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Figure 21: Client Relationship Management Training

E21 : FFRAREEEN

Supply Chain Management

Optical fibres, copper wires and connectors; copper and plastic are major
materials used by the PRC production facilities in the cable assembly and
digital cable manufacturing respectively.

The Group implements supplier management in accordance with internal
guidance which governs the engagement of suppliers. Suppliers are
chosen not only subjecting to comprehensive screening and evaluation
procedures on the quality and price but also field visits and investigations to
ensure suppliers’ capability in quality assurance, safety and environmental
responsibility. The investigation reviews all the measures related to
production capacity, technology level, quality assurance capability, supply
capacity, safety and environmental management qualifications, and social
responsibility. Only highly qualified suppliers complied with regulatory
requirements are eligible for the selection of supplier by the Group. The
Group also conducts regular assessment on suppliers’ overall capabilities,
assets position, nature of business, reputation in the industry, quality
of products, goods delivery and compliance with laws and regulations.
Furthermore, the selected suppliers are required to sign a set of
agreements in which some of the terms cover the area related to integrity,
confidentiality, quality and environmental protection.

The Group has obtained Quality Management System Certification
(IS09001) and Automotive Quality Management System (IATF16949) that
are formulated by the International Organisation for Standardisation (ISO)
and International Automotive Task Force (IATF) respectively. The Group
emphasises defect prevention and reduction of variation and waste in the
supply chain and strictly requires employees to comply with the quality
management policies to provide continual improvement.

As customers are becoming more concerned about environmental issues
and the importance of using environmentally friendly materials, the
Group will continue to communicate and emphasise the importance of
environmental issues to the suppliers. The Group aims at strengthening the
cooperation with suppliers, collaborating with them in product trials and
producing socially responsible products.

Each supplier and subcontractor would be reviewed after completion of

their contracts. In case of major non-performance, the Group will review
their suitability to remain on the approved supplier list.
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The number of critical suppliers of major direct materials by region during
the Review Year is as follows:

Figure 22: Number of critical suppliers

E22 : EEMEHBE
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Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to pursuing product and service of high quality
by setting up implementing stringent and comprehensive quality control
procedures. The Group has formulated quality control manual throughout
the production processes from purchase of raw materials to product
packaging. Raw materials are inspected to ensure the quality and in a
good condition before proceeding to production to minimise possible
disruptions during the operation.

Huizhou TIME has obtained the 1SO13485 Quality Management System
— Medical Devices that consistently meets customer requirements and
regulatory requirements applicable to medical devices and related services.
Annual testing has been performed by the licensed third party to ensure
Huizhou TIME has complied with the relevant requirements.

There were no substantiated complaints received relating to the provision
and use of products and services that have a significant impact on the
Group's operations. The number of defective products produced by the
Group was minimal and complaints by customers in respect of defective
products were insignificant.

Protection of Intellectual Property Right and Consumer
Privacy

The Group recognises the importance of the protection over intellectual
property right and consumer privacy. Proper licences for software and
information are obtained by the Group before used in the business
operation. Disciplinary action is taken immediately if use of unlicensed or
infringed software occurs.

Meanwhile, the Group handles all information provided by clients, business
partners and employees in accordance with non-disclosure agreement,
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, related laws and regulations and
internal guidelines of intellectual property to ensure the information is
under proper protection.

EmaE
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Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the integrity of the corporate
culture. Employees are not allowed to solicit or accept any advantages.
The Group sets out the relevant policies and guides the employees to abide
by the code of conduct which provides a clear definition on the provision
and acceptance of interests, such as gifts and souvenirs, and ways to deal
with conflicts of interest.

Directors and employees are required to make a declaration to the
management through the reporting channels when actual or potential
conflicts of interest arise. Employees cannot receive any gifts from any
external parties (e.g. customers, suppliers, contractors, etc.) unless
prior approval is obtained from the management. A training program,
collaborated with the Hong Kong ICAC, to enhance vigilance of senior
management and frontline employees to the problem of corruption
originally planned in the Review Year has been postponed due to the
outbreak of COVID-19. The Group plans to organise the training once the
COVID-19 is under control.

To show the unwavering commitment to anti-corruption, the Group has
adopted an “Integrity and Honesty Management System”. Suppliers are
required to sign an Undertaking of Integrity before entering contractual
relationship. The Group also regularly delivers the message to all the
suppliers to reiterate the integrity and honesty business philosophy and
secure the alignment with the Group for fair procurement.

The Group has whistle-blowing procedures in effect, encouraging
employees and all other stakeholders to report directly to the chairman of
the Audit Committee about any misconduct and dishonest behaviour, such
as bribery, fraud and other offences. Furthermore, it is specified in the staff
handbook that the Group is entitled to terminate the employment contract
with any employee who is bribed with money, gifts or commission, etc.,
and reserves the right to take further legal actions.

During the Review Year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations regarding anti-corruption and money-laundering and has
no legal case regarding corrupted practices brought against the issuer or
the employees.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits to all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation.

The Group has been actively promoting strategic partnerships among
business and social service partners, encouraging employees to participate
in external community activities and fostering corporate social responsibility
through caring for the community, employees and the environment.

During the Review Year, the Group supported Junior Chamber International
Apex, a leadership development organisation in Hong Kong, as one of the
corporate sponsors. In addition, the Group has also participated in various
charity activities, including the Mooncake donation to the Hong Kong
Down Syndrome Association and “World Sight Day 2021" of ORBIS Hong
Kong (see Figure 23), in order to create shared value for the community.

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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The Group has been granted the following awards from various parties as
the recognition of the efforts in fulfilling social responsibility:

e The 15 Years* Caring Company” logo by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service (See Figure 24);

e The “3* Year Industry Cares” Award presented by the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries (See Figure 25).

Figure 23: World Sight Day 2021
E23 : ft5RiREH2021

Figure 24: Caring Company
E24 : EmAREAR
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UNITED NATIONS SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

The Group has integrated the sustainability strategies into the initiative of
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (“SDG") and identified 6
key SDGs that are highly relevant to the business operations. Substantial
efforts are put to resolve the related issues with non-profit organisation
partners.
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Goal Potential impact
Bi% BExE

The Group's status

REEAKR

Future direction

RIRF5[E

e Provide and
maintain a safe
and healthy work
environment
AR —E%
2EEMNITIERE

e Establish an
effective workplace
safety culture

ERBERN IS
Frz23t

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

s

Good Health and
Well-being
BIFRERE B

e Promote healthy
lifestyles

[BEfamEm e
S

During the Review Year, the headquarters has
ia);rangl]ed four lunch workshops to promote healthy
ifestyle:

BN - AR LA I T e bl
FRIVAES T ¢

e “Chinese Medicine Dietetic Strategies
Workshop” = .
MhE R R EIE TR

"Move for Health Workshop: Rouligiu”
TERZ IR T AR + = NER

“Move for Health Workshop: Resistance band
exercise”

MEEZIfREE T(ES) © R85 ES

e "Move for Health Workshop: Towel exercise/
Balance exercise”

MERZ B T (EEh © BMRTERE,

The PRC production facilities have arranged
emloyees to participate in the following programs:
PEMNAEER LS Y BESETNED ¢

e “Shanghai Citizen Rowing Machine Series (On
Ting Cup) Fitness Contest”
FEEmERIMBRY (Z=H) B KE,

* “Shanghai Floor Curling Competition”
FEBHEMKELE,

"Blood Donation Day”

"HBIMA

Strengthen internal
promotion on high
standards of workplace
health & safety, and
support health related
projects of non-profit
organisations

MRS SR ETESTE
FREAZ 2RI NERHERE - I
XIFIEE RIS AR AR
BEHYER

Offer training programs
and/or other tuition fee
subsidy to all employees
and encourage life-long
learning

A2 ESIRAEIR
B R/ HEAMESRE
AL W R EEE

QUALITY
EDUCATION

4

|

Quality Education
BEHE

The Group advocates the culture of lifelong
learning, and provides tuition fee subsidy for
employees and scholarship program for all
applicable employees’ children.
AEERERSEENUL » WnESRIERS
AR N SITE REEEN F IR HIRE S

g -

During the Review Year, a colleague from the
headquarters was invited by JCl Hong Kong, JCI
Apex and One World Spirit Association to deliver
free training service on Train-The-Trainers, Non-
profit Organisation Management and Team
Building. Furthermore, the Group has sponsored
the following program:

REBFE @ @EN—UFAEELAEESEFHE
HRREE BESHFRg M —EHAbHERM
EBETIRY - REBE © BHIEMHIR ~ FEE
fg%g%ﬁ - ERRER - o - REEER) YL

* "Public Speaking Workshop” of JCI Apex
ZEEFHE TAREF I TS

Encourage and support
employees to improve
their technical and
vocational skills and
professional knowledge,
and provide training
service support to non-
profit organisations
SR R EE R AR
EARSZER BE M BN
W 3R R BB TR (S 5
RIS %
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Goal Potential impact The Group's status Future direction
L BERE FEEARTR FRLH
Offer career In order to strengthen the sense of belongings Provide employment and
E(Egﬁm\llzuggﬂ% opportunitiesand ~ under the pandemic, instead of organising business opportunities
assist in the economic  gatherings and luncheons, the headquarters to a wide range of
M development of local  arranged lucky draws, birthday presents, and festive stakeholders and indirect
communities gifts (such as Christmas Joyful Cookies of Hong Chi build wealth in local
‘I Rt e - W Association) for employees. community

BYEMMENKERR ATEREHAEANRRENEBR - ARARE R"/EAFHERMNFR
LHE Y =E MR AHRYEHMERY WEEE mEME  WERHE
FESRESLmFun s I ETSH) » IBCBTREE SN R FEERME

Decent Work and
Economic Growth =
BETH TEFNATE 1S

=

During the Review Year, the Group has sponsored
the following programs:

REIEFE - AEEE T UTES

e “Win The Job" of JCI Apex
ZEESFHS | FFES-ZITERRE S

* "RISE After Pandemic Summit” of JCI Apex
ZEEFHE  TREERSES,

e “Corporate Clinic — New GOALden Era” of JCI
Apex o
BESFEE  "hEEM « BAIGOALE,

Ensure the sustainable  The PRC production facilities have adopted various  Facilitate employee

1 ggﬁ;ﬂﬁ%‘ use and management  green technologies and installations to maximise participation in the
AT of resources energy conservation, such as water recycling promotion of sustainable
BRERNAIFEFEA system, High Volume Low Speed energy saving development through
‘ N > LaERER ceiling fan and non-polluting water curtain. various means
PENEER SR ZEGORMMEELIZS] BEAREE @ SBEES

TEMMAKALTE « AUKERRS  BHEAR S8  LEHTHERR
EHER R RIS RS «

Responsible

C ti d . .
PI%T&S[;JCFR(F))nIOH an During the Review Year, the Group has donated

PRy Ny many sets of used computers and computer

BRERAALE peripherals to UAT Association (an independent
non-profit charitable organisation with no religious,
political or government affiliation) in order to
benefit students from low-income families.
NREEEE @ ZREERE Y 2 EBMNAEBKE
B TR (—EB « RERE C BUAK
E}Q%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ#éﬁﬂ%é%ﬂﬁ) BEBARESE
=

=R °
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Future direction

RIRF5[E

Goal Potential impact The Group's status
Bi% BExE AEERR
Monitor and reduce In order to strengthen employees’ knowledge on
13 2};'”3:; the CO; emissions and  climate change and the possible challenges to

waste water discharge  future operation, the Group distributed self-
generated from the learning material “Climate Change Impact on

@ use of resources and Industry” to the PRC production facilities, and has
product manufacturing arranged to introduce on the Group’s weekly

EENBADIEFAER e-newsletter.
MEREERBRERESE AT INBRSAEREECAENNB;EEATER

Gnsle AN STk VBRI, | AR MRENA E QAT
\ BB O R, SEHN | BRI
W SR T B A -

During the Review Year, the Group has sponsored
the following program:

REREFEE - AEEEE Y LUTES

e “Lazy Hero rescues the world movement
through SDGs” of JCI Apex
BREFEE  TRARIERITENI2021

Explore other means to
contribute more to the
environment and strive to
facilitate the building of

a healthy and sustainable
society in the future

= REMIRELINARHIR
ENERL - WERER
%&Ejﬁ%fﬁiﬂ’ﬂﬁiﬂ@é

Partner with non- The Group has established long-term strategic

1 FpglgTT’:IEE%SUHAIEg profit organisations to  partnership with non-profit organisations to create
contribute to the local  shared value for the betterment of community
community AEED IR RS R T RIS AR
HIFRTEEAFERE RNESHEAEHZER -
it & 1F B R

During the Review Year, other than those
sponsored projects mentioned in this ESG Report,
the Group has participated in/sponsored the

Partnerships for

the goals .
JE B B TR following programs:
ELDREROE WEBERE + BT EEBE « H 8 REARER
: BRI RIAE « ARESS/H U

e “World Sight Day 2021" of the Orbis
R - MERREH2021

e “Skip Lunch Day 2022" of the Community
Chest
NE T TARITE . RHA2022,

e “Earth Hour 2022" of WWF Hong Kong
EREBARSEEENE + THIR—/\F2022

e “SH.LN.E with Diversity” of JCI Apex
ZEESFEME "R e FIT,

e “Guide Dog Life Education Seminar and
Webinar"” of JCI Apex
BESFHE  "EEREGHBHEE,

e "9.9 Charity Day” of Kunshan Shi Ci Shan Zong
Hui
RIIRZEZSZEE - "9.9 A%H,

e “Help The Needy" of Jia Ding Gonghui
RELE  "ERNEH

Strengthen cooperation
with non-profit
organisations and

explore more community
investment projects that
can help creating shared
value

INREER BN S
fE - WEBIEE L A RIS
FEENTEREER

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (conTp)
RIE - HERERRS (1)

Environmental Performance Indicators RIBIEWIEIE

Aspect A1: Emissions Stock Exchange

[EEA1 : BER) ESG Guide KPI
B2 PTIRIE ~
g RERTES
Performance indicator EuEiE 2022 2021 AR ENIEE
Emissions HER
NO, emissions (kg) FEACHER (A FT) 42.167 35.500 A11
SO, emissions (kg) B (AFT) 1.997 1.225 A1.1
PM emissions (kg) SERHEI (AFT) 2.513 2.783 A1
GHG emissions BEREIIR
Scope 1 — Direct emissions (kg) #HE —BEIER
N 329,885 213,560 A1.2
Scope 2 —"Energy indirect” emissions (kg) HE2 —TaERE
B (AT SLoEa il 33,263,660 A1.2
Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions (kg) EE3 — H MK
(A 44,040 55,780 A1.2
Hazardous waste BEEEBEY
Mineral oil contaminated waste rags, organic  FEYHISREEZEMEL
solvents contaminated waste rags, used o S e e i)
containers for chemical materials, wire- B BB
drawing lubricants and waste batteries (kg) BeE ~ AEBEEIR
BEZEE M (AFT) 21,338 12,713 A13
Non-hazardous waste mEREFEY)
Industrial wastes TEEEY
Metal, iron, plastic, waste wires, etc (kg) <E - W B -
BERE (A) 1,819,121 1,916,666 Al.4
Waste woven bags and pallets (kg) BEMRBR N R (AT 17,645 43,292 Al4
Cardboards (kg) RS (A T) 113,489 129,617 Al4
Used A3 and A4 papers (kg) EAFAMNAS KA (A T) 9,495 9,836 Al4
Used toner cartridges (kg) BEEAMHE (AFT) 1,402 535 Al.4
Used paper towels (kg) EAERMAEM (AT) 7,089 8,337 Al.4
Aspect A2: Use of resources Stock Exchange
[EHEA2 : ERER ESG Guide KPI
AR PTIRIE
g RERTES
Performance indicator BEiZ 2022 2021 AR AENIEIE
Energy consumption RERHFE
Non-renewable fuel (kwWh) AAIBAME (FEREF) 1,984,211 810,383 A2.1
Renewable energy (kWh) A4 RER (TLUF) SleElPl 3,637,646 A2.1
Purchase of energy (kWh) EEEER (TE&) LPISrievil 41,082,714 A2.1
Water 7k
Water consumption (cubic metres) FEKE (LK) 316,631 333,516 A2.2
Packaging materials BEMH
Packaging materials (pieces) BEMR () cplierl el 30,094,580 A2.5

£ E# % 2022 ANNUAL REPORT .
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Social Performance Indicators Tt =EEWIEE
Aspect B1: Employment Stock Exchange
[EEB1 : EfE ESG Guide KPI
HEARPTIRIE
HERERTES]
Performance indicator wEE 2021 BARHERUEIR
Number of employees as at MR=B=1+—H®
31 March EE A
Gender {3l B1.1
Male S 1,236
Female gk 1,283
Age T B1.1
<30 <30 793
30-50 30-50 1,651
> 50 > 50 75
Region @ B1.1
PRC e 2,466
Hong Kong a5 53
Employee turnover rate EEREKE 6.3% B1.2
Aspect B2: Health and safety Stock Exchange
[EEB2 | BEREEZE ESG Guide KPI
HEARPTIRIE
g RERTES]
Performance indicator FBIEE 2021 BRENIEE
Number of work injuries IEHF 11 B2.1
Rate of work injury (per thousand IEXR(BETRESR)
employees) 4.4 B2.1
Aspect B3: Development and training Stock Exchange
BmEB3 : SRR ESG Guide KPI
AR PTIRIE
g LERTES
Performance indicator BRIEIE 2021 B EIEIE
Percentage of employees trained ZilEEF L
Gender el B3.1
Male S 50%
Female Eegics 50%
Employee category EELER B3.1
Managers or above FSEE 3%
Supervisors and general staff TER—REE 1%
Workers TA 86%
Average training hours completed per BREESTERZIIN
employee SEHRFEL
Gender egall B3.2
Male S 23
Female T 24
Employee category EEER! B3.2
Managers or above FSEED 10
Supervisors and general staff FTER—MEE 18
Workers TA 25

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB AR S

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Time Interconnect
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

=2
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(RS S MAIZBRAR)
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¢l
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HEFENGEUBRAMNGEREMNE » LEE
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BERAER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (conT'D)
BN EETERE (@)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

R EETRIH

FRAREEH @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KM EE NIRRT BIREITERIE

Valuation of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment measured at revaluation model

KERGRAGERAEEERYE - BERZE

We identified the valuation of right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment at revaluation model as a key audit matter due to
the inherent level of subjective judgements and complex estimates
required in determining the revalued values.

The Group's leasehold land (included under right-of-use assets) and
buildings (included under property, plant and equipment) located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “Land and Buildings”) are
accounted for using revaluation model. As at 31 March 2022, the
carrying amount of the Group’s Land and Buildings at revaluation
model are HK$328,600,000 and HK$229,817,000 respectively, which
represented 10% and 7% of the Group’s total assets, respectively.
The resulting revaluation loss of HK$36,170,000, representing sum
of revaluation loss of HK$37,742,000 arising from right-of-use
assets and revaluation gain of HK$1,572,000 arising from property,
plant and equipment, respectively, has been charged to the other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2022.

As further disclosed in notes 4, 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, in estimating the fair value of these Land and
Buildings, the Group engaged an independent qualified valuer (the
“Valuer"), to carry out the valuation. The management of the Group
provided information to the Valuer and the Valuer established and
determined the appropriate technique and inputs to the valuation
model. The significant unobservable input of the approach is the
price per square metre of comparable properties. Changes in the
comparable properties adopted may result in a significant increase
or decrease in fair value.
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Our procedures in relation to the management'’s valuation of the
Land and Buildings at revaluation model included:

e Evaluating the competence, capability, and objectivity of the
Valuer;

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about the
valuation methodology, significant unobservable inputs and
data used in the valuations;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the price per square metre
of comparable properties and information used by the Valuer
and management of the Group in the valuation model,
including adjustment factors for locations and conditions of
the properties, in order to assess the appropriateness of these
inputs and comparing the comparable properties adopted with
fair market unit price; and

e Checking the mathematical accuracy of the valuation calculations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (conTDp)
B REENRE @

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (conT'D)
BN EETERE (@)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report
is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2022

FE BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

HBMMEHREMBRRARNEE @

s HWERRMAFEKESMERNRENLFLE
oo MIBFTERNETRE ﬁﬁi%é??‘éﬁi
FIRNERAENERTEEM - LA

H EEENFEKERNELEREE - MR

BB RTFEERNEEN - AR VEIERE

$I§“=EPTE FEAEERGRE M BIRETHIEER
- BREBBNNERNE  MRMAEERKRIE

ﬂﬁ{%%i‘ﬁ BFINEREENZEM®RE R

FEHX ETEE - A RRFEIBERA

BB REERA I -

o NERAVBRRNERIIRAN - BHETA
B BERE  ULGREVBRERSTER
BRAZZMEIE o

o 3 EREANEENERTBNYBESERFE
R EENETRE UGV B®mERER
BER - &fMas SREZNSGR - EEM
BAT - BMABTERREDAEE -

BREMERS - WMRBERE T M ENETE
B BT EXEFTRRE  BERMEE
qﬂéﬁﬁul‘ﬂjﬁq%ﬁﬁ%ﬂe’ﬂﬁﬁikﬂﬁ’é °

BAEASEERREN  FRBMETEERSE
TVEAVRBESER > WEMMEEE AR E
WR RS EBRMBIIMENEEFRMEMEIE
DURAERERT - REREE T RIATTEISK
FERMBI g -

RIS ERBNEIRD - BAEEMLEFIREA
PHRAUBREANENRAEE - AMBEREARE
SHEIR - WM ERBEN RSP RELE SR - RIE
ERERARFARBEELER » HEARFR
HBERT  MIREEFARERMRETEBERLER

ERNAEEREBELHARAS - RIRET
AL B EUEE -

HERBIEHMRENET ERABARETE -
) « BRI BEERT

BH Bt

B

=2y = By AN =



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FeRakEt2EmliaR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 ®ZE_F__

—_—, —

FZAZtT—HLEFE

2022 2021
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(g2 FET T
Revenue g 6 3,590,117 3,008,019
Cost of goods sold EHEREA (3,002,020)  (2,427,802)
Gross profit EF 588,097 580,217
Other income HAA 7 5,873 13,955
Other gains and losses H bz K518 8 1,716 (10,970)
Gain (loss) on revaluation of property, M ~ BB NRRIEEHNE (B18)
plant and equipment 15 361 (5,755)
Gain on bargain purchase HEBEWG 32 3,201 -
Distribution and selling expenses PE R ERX (66,043) (51,678)
Administrative expenses TBF (134,459) (122,607)
Professional fees and costs relating to acquisition of BB NEBEANEEER
business and business restructuring A (6,496) (4,168)
Research and development expenses MRS (121,352) (88,358)
Finance costs AE A 9 (38,043) (42,525)
Profit before taxation XA 10 232,855 268,111
Taxation | 12 (64,582) (41,480)
Profit for the year FRRF 168,273 226,631
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hiv2m (FX) W
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: RNFEHAEZERIVES -
(Loss) gain on revaluation of right-of-use assets FREEENDZE  BEEERE
and property, plant and equipment B (B518) B (36,170) 322,935
Deferred tax arising from revaluation of right-of- FREEERDZ - BRENERE
use assets and property, plant and equipment BEREANELERIE 8,497 (77,980)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEAJBEEN AR R EE -
profit or loss:
Fair value gain on hedging instruments BEARSREEHANE P TR
designated as cash flow hedge NTEW R 417 -
Reclassification on hedging instruments to profit BB TREEBS
or loss (417) -
Exchange differences arising on translating TEHNEBERME R IRESR
foreign operations i) 63,832 94,636
Other comprehensive income for the year FRHMDE W 36,159 339,591
Total comprehensive income for the year FREBERLRZR 204,432 566,222
Profit for the year attributable to: TIATEAEFARRF]
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZZEDN 168,223 226,361
Non-controlling interests JEEAG R 50 270
168,273 226,631
Total comprehensive income for the year I AL FRREM AR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company N/NEIE Z=DN 204,127 562,148
Non-controlling interests Elaadisg 2a 305 4,074
204,432 566,222
Earnings per share BIRERR 13
- Basic (HK cents) — &K &) 9.10 12.30
- Diluted (HK cents) — 5 G 9.01 12.30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI R

AT 31 MARCH2022 MRBE__HF=A=+—H

2022 2021
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
[(hEz FET FAETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME ~ BRE N 15 786,902 733,666
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 383,731 400,171
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, FUEENE ~ BERZEENZS
plant and equipment 3,499 6,726
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RATHESABRNSREE 17 6,284 6,035
Rental deposits HEZe 1,690 700
1,182,106 1,147,298
Current assets MENEE
Inventories e 18 653,649 474,894
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EMERGIE 19 1,090,174 808,755
Contract assets BRNEE 20 29,708 2,860
Taxation recoverable AW EIRLIE 450 1,516
Pledged bank deposits BEIEHIRITER 21 5,769 7,091
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREERS 21 220,906 156,550
2,000,656 1,451,666
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables EZ S5 REMENFIE 22 885,572 571,869
Contract liabilities araE 23 4,413 5,093
Lease liabilities HEaE 24 10,584 7,785
Taxation payable FEBIIE 14,843 9,605
Unsecured bank borrowings — amount due SEARARERIT R TR — SRIBR— A
within one year ZIEA 25 788,147 606,583
1,703,559 1,200,935
Net current assets REEEFE 297,097 250,731
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREER 1,479,203 1,398,029
Non-current liabilities IFERBEE
Unsecured bank borrowings — amount due FARIRERIT AR — BN —FE
after one year Z|H3 25 274,016 405,625
Lease liabilities HEaE 24 48,251 36,471
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIESE 26 93,491 91,532
415,758 533,628
Net assets BEFE 1,063,445 864,401
Capital and reserves BARE s
Share capital R&A 27 19,460 18,404
Reserves =3 1,031,714 834,070
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KNE B AR 1,051,174 852,474
Non-controlling interests ElEadiig T 12,271 11,927
Total equity iERERS 1,063,445 864,401

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 159 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2022 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Cua Tin Yin Simon

FRSEIS0OEMNGREVERACEEFEN S
FRAZHNBHEREERZ > WAHETIIATR

Wong Chi Kuen

WX ot
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=FA=+—HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NGNS
PRC Property Share Non-
Share  Share statutory  Special  Capital Hedging revaluation  options Translation Accumulated controlling  Total
capital premium  reserves reserves  reserve - reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve profits ~ Total interests  equity
L5 LS

Br REE AThRE HURE SARE HMEE  BRGE BRERE ESRE  REA G EREE SR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tearn T TAr TEr e TEr TR TEnr TEn Tir  Ten  TEr TEn
(Notea) ~ (Noteb) ~ (Noteq)
(heta)  (WEb) (W)
At 1 April 2021 R-E"-EmA-A 18404 272,137 35616 (642546) 37939 242,059 14,644 858712 788349 852,474 11927 864,401

Profit for the year R - - - - - - - - - 168223 168,223 0 168273
Loss on revaluation of rightof-use ~~ EBEBERNE « FiRE
assets and property, plant and JetELT

o

equipment - - - - - - (35,699 - - - (35699 @7)  (36,170)
Deferred tax arising from revaluation ~ (FREEERIE » A

of rightof-use assets and property,  RREEEELHER

plant and equipment HE - - - - - - 8378 - - - 838 19 8497
Fair value gain on hedging instruments  ER AR HE MY

designated as cash flow hedge ITEATENE - - - - - a1 - - - - 4 - M1
Redlssfication on hedging instruments EfE%H TAZEH

to profit or oss - - - - - (@17) - - - - (#17) - (@17
Bxchange differences arsing on BISBEZHERLR

translating foreign operations MERZE - - - - - - - - B - B35 607 63832
Total comprehensive (expense)income A2 (R Ui te

for the year - - - - - - (a3) - 63,225 168,223 204,127 305 204432
Transfer i - - 26460 - - - - - - (26,460) - - -
Dividends declared (note 14) EEWRE (i) - - - - - - - - - (46,0d6) ~ (46,046) - (46,06)
Change of nterestinasubsidiary ~ FA—TEHBATHER

2 - - - Y] - - - - - - Y] 39 81

Recognition of equity-setled share-  REREELIRAAER

based payment Bz ER - - - - - - - 4,33 - -3 -3
Berdise of share options ke 1056 51348 - - - - - (1616 - - %M - M
At 31 March 2022 RZE_"EZR

=+-A 19460 323485 62,076 (642,504) 37939 - 4T3 2817 149,007 884,066 1,051,174 12211 1,063,445

A1 Apiil 2020 RIZZBEMA-B 879 2190 %701 780 37,939 - - 10066 (78%) 774661 1,158,042 7853 1,165,895
Profitfor the year ERER - - - - - - - - - 26361 226,361 0 26831

Gain on reveluation of right-of-wse ~~ FREEERYE B

assets and property, plant and REEERYE

equipment - - - - - - 319013 - - - 31907 3862 32293
Deferred tax arising from revaluation ~ FREEERNE \ HR

of right-of-use assets and property,  REREERLELAEL

olant and equipment G - - - - - - Moy - - - (1o (%6) ~ (77,980)
Exchange differences aising on ENEHERRERLR

translating foreign operations HERER - - - - - - - - B8 - 38 908 94636
Total comprehensive income for the ~ FR2FHRLE

year - - - - - - W09 - 93728 226361 562,148 4074 566,22
Transfer 2% - - 915 - - - - - - 919) - - -
Dividends declared (note 14) EERE (1) - - - - - - - - - (35,2000 (35,200 - (50
Fffectof Linkz Cable Reorganisation,  ERSEEA (R£E

a defined n note 31 i e (2,000) - - - - - - - - (1568%) (1588%) - (1588%)
Acquisition of entites under common BB LRI EEE

control (note 31) (H31) (8390) - - (650,366) - - - - - - (658756) - (658756)
Recognition of equity-settled share- ~ EREELIRARER

based payment (e - - - - - - - - -4 -4
Exercise of share options frEEkE 4 216 . - - - . (69) - - 151 - 151
Share options forfeited and transferred  EREA ML EE Zit

to accumulated profits Al - - - - - - - (340 - 340 - - -
At31 March 2021 O

=A=t-H 18404 272137 35616 (642546) 37939 - W09 14,644 85872 788349 852474 1,927 864401
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CONSOLIPATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (conTD)
FEEREHR @)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &#ZE_E__HF=F=+—HLFE

Notes:

(a)

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") statutory reserves are non-distributable and the
transfer to these reserves are determined according to the relevant laws in the PRC and by
the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the articles of association
of these subsidiaries. They can be used to make up for previous years' losses or convert into
additional capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company.

The special reserves represent (i) the difference between the net asset value of Time
Interconnect Limited (“Time Interconnect HK") at the date of which it was acquired by Time
Interconnect Investment Limited and the share capital of Time Interconnect HK pursuant
to the group reorganisation in 2017, (ii) the difference between the net asset value of
Hover Manufacturing Company Limited (“Hover Manufacturing”) and the nominal share
capital of Hover Manufacturing pursuant to the Linkz Cables Reorganisation, as defined in
note 31, completed on 30 June 2020, and (iii) the difference between the consideration
of HK$658,756,000 paid for acquisition of interest in Linkz Cables Limited and the share
capital of Linkz Cables Limited of HK$8,390,000 as at 30 June 2020. The acquisition was
accounted for by using merger accounting in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The amounts represent (i) deemed capital contribution arising from waiver of current
accounts by Linkz Industries Limited, the then ultimate holding company of the Group
(please refer to note 1 for details), and a then fellow subsidiary, (i) deemed capital
contribution arising from the cash reimbursed for partial listing expenses by Linkz Industries
Limited upon public offer and placing.

FE BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Bt

(a)

(c)

FREARIME ("THEL) EEEBRTREDIR @ M
HEE S HBIIRAR RN EAR EE L BB
BARESEREZSHBARDNASTRZMAEE -
PEIEERBAANERE LEENBRNERARAT
PENEARNEINESR -

BRlEAVBE_S—tFEEESH EBTH
BRABR(TERTESHE.) P Time Interconnect
Investment Limited!Sti#& A HAA0 & = B (E BLER T 2EFH
AR =R ; (NEMEEERAR (TSRS WE
EFEARBEN S TZF A= THRRNELNEE
BAERRM3 ) WERMEELZMANZESR (i)
HUEEDASEBRA RSN ENE658,756,000
BTHEASESRATN _ S _SEAA=TAMK
758,390,000/5 T ZSE - WEBHIRBEBSTIAE
EHNEEGTIESIE55R  HAZEHAHNAH TR
I LIEHETHARE -

RESTFROZAEFAEFNRKERATDALIESR
RAT GFIEA2HME) R—HESNRARBEAT
REMERREEENRFERHE - (NEETEAR
ANBNARBERBRERELNERD EHRAXNRESHE
BELANRFEERRE -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FRRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 ®ZE_F__

—_—, —

FZAZtT—HLEFE

2022 2021
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEENRESME
Profit before taxation G 232,855 268,111
Adjustments for: TS IE/EREE
Interest income A BUWA (776) (627)
Interest expense MEFZ 38,460 42,525
Gain on change in fair value of derivative TAESR T AATES SN
financial instrument (417) -
Gain on change in fair value of financial assets at BAFEFABERNSRIEEN
fair value through profit or loss NTEEENM G (218) (258)
(Gain) loss on revaluation of property, plant and M ~ BB REEERS (W)
equipment &8 (361) 5,755
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HEMZE - MEEER )
equipment Es518 (933) 2,038
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W2 ~ BB RERETTES 55,897 57,713
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 17,892 14,203
Write off of inventories FEMH 4,929 4,646
Equity-settled share-based payments RS EELISD HEHEIE 4,335 4,987
Gain on bargain purchase HEBEUWES (3,201) -
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEHNNCLERENE
working capital 348,462 399,093
Increase in inventories FEEM (127,820) (44,613)
Increase in trade and other receivables and B 5 REMBEWFIEL SR SRS
rental deposits 0 (174,432) (197,027)
(Increase) decrease in contract assets BREE (5) B (26,848) 18,057
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 KA FRIEIE N 243,939 9,986
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities BREE CRS) B (769) 4,257
Cash generated from operations REEANES 262,532 189,753
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBENEH (20,195) (26,360)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EfNREMZERER (11,108) (17,211)
Withholding tax in the PRC paid ENHPETENRL (20,382) (1,603)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEEEANRSFE 210,847 144,579
Cash flows from investing activities RETBEFTNHEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEMXE -~ BREIERE (56,526) (40,112)
Acquisition of business IS ZE RS 32 (55,823) -
Placement of pledged bank deposits BHREERBITER (30,586) (25,742)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BN - BEIRBEEN RS
plant and equipment (2,827) (6,643)
Release of pledged bank deposits ERE B IRITER 32,198 33,028
Proceeds from disposal of property, REBLEDZE ~ KENZENFE
plant and equipment E 1,872 278
Interest received EWFE 733 587
Advance to ultimate holding company S FERALZERAT - (97,802)
Repayment from ultimate holding company RN BB - 57,492
Net cash used in investing activities WEREFTREMNIR S F5E (110,959) (78,914)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conTD)

FEIRERER (1)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &HZE_S

R —

FZAZtT—HLEFE

FE BRI AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

2022 2021
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
MyEE FERT T
Cash flows from financing activities RERSEEANRESRE
Bank borrowings raised EEEBRITER 1,186,587 1,937,651
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR REPTR IR 36,242 151
Net settlement of interest rate swap FEE REE R 417 .
Proceeds from change of interest in a subsidiary —FEH B AR EREBFTERIE 81 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIRATIER (1,152,103) (1,339,236
Dividends paid B A (46,046) (55,200)
Interest paid ENFE (38,460) (42,525)
Repayment to related companies EETEEARMNKIE 32 (22,344) -
Payment of lease liabilities YHNHEESE (9,491) (7,339)
Acquisition of business under common control WS S TRl 25 75 31 - (780,993)
Other financing cash flows HitmERSRE 31 - 467
Advance from ultimate holding company KRB R AT N RIE - 6,848
Repayment to ultimate holding company ERFHEAEZERATNGIE - (5,975)
Net cash used in financing activities Rl E BB FTAERIR S8R (45,117) (286,151)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Re RRSEEMNFL M CRL) 54,771 (220,486)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FYRSNIRESEEY 156,483 360,242
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes FEXSBNRE 9,652 16,727
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRFESRIRSZEEY 220,906 156,483
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents: R NIRESEEWERDOIT
Bank balances and cash IRITARRR RS 220,906 156,550
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (67)
220,906 156,483




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&Z_FE__F#=A=+—HULHFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Time Interconnect Technology Limited (the “Company”) is a limited company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HK Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

Prior to 16 March 2022, the immediate holding company of the Company
was Time Interconnect Holdings Limited which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate holding company was Linkz Industries
Limited (“Linkz Industries”), which was incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate
controlling shareholder was Mr. Lo Chung Wai Paul (“Mr. Paul Lo"), who was
also the non-executive director of the Company. On 16 March 2022, Luxshare
Precision Limited completed the acquisition of 1,380,000,000 issued share
capital of the Company, representing approximately 72% of total issued share
capital of the Company. Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 March 2022. The immediate holding company of
the Company is then changed to Luxshare Precision Limited. The Company’s
ultimate holding company is then changed to Luxshare Precision Industry Co.,
Ltd. (“Luxshare”), a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") with its shares listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") while the functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The reason for selecting HK$ as the Company’s presentation currency
is that the directors of the Company consider that it is more relevant to the users
of the consolidated financial statements as the Company listed its shares on the
HK Stock Exchange.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (the “Committee”) of the International Accounting Standards
Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when determining the net
realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE_F__F=H=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2"

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current year.
The amendments relate to changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting requirements and
the related disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures” (“HKFRS 7).

As at 1 April 2021, the Group has several financial liabilities, the interests of
which are indexed to benchmark rates that will or may be subject to interest
rate benchmark reform. The following table shows the total amounts of these
outstanding contracts. The amounts of financial liabilities are shown at their
carrying amounts are shown at their notional amounts.

EREEMBRE LR ("EEMEHRE LR ) 18
HENC))

AEEMEHERNEBMBRELEANETE @)

EREBHBMEERBEIN  BEESEAE
3945% « BEBRIBIMEEBETNE - EBBEE
ER BN R BB R ERE 16551551 TF)
FIETNE - E PR, B9 E
FEBERAFEEREREIAR - ZFEITA
BREREBUBREEETRERIA K
BEER , (THRBMBREEAETR) BIAERE
ERE  BFEHHSTRELEEARERTE
HERMEE SREBELMEEEECENESR
EMEEEEFEHER -

RIZ-—FNA—R  AEEBETE/ME
B HAM SIS e 2 AR e E 8
BRI - TRIVRZFARTTHERIAILR
S8 - SRAEMNSENRAREEIIRIMZE
BEDFIIR -

Hong Kong Dollars
Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR")*
BLEBRITERFE
(TEERITRERE.)*
HK$'000

THTT

Unsecured bank borrowings IR HIRITIER

The amendments have had no impact on the consolidated financial statements
as none of the relevant contracts has been transitioned to the relevant
replacement rates during the year. The Group will apply the practical expedient
in relation to the changes in contractual cash flows resulting from the interest
rate benchmark reform for bank borrowings measured at amortised cost.
Additional disclosures as required by HKFRS 7 are set out in note 37.

Impacts on application of the agenda decision of the Committee —
Costs necessary to sell inventories (HKAS 2 “Inventories” ("HKAS 2"))

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda decision, clarified the costs
an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories. In particular, whether such
costs should be limited to those that are incremental to the sale. The Committee
concluded that the estimated costs necessary to make the sale should not be
limited to those that are incremental but should also include costs that an entity
must incur to sell its inventories including those that are not incremental to a
particular sale.

The Group's accounting policy prior to the Committee’s agenda decision was
to determine the net realisable value of inventories taking into consideration
incremental costs only. Upon application of the Committee’s agenda decision,
the Group changed its accounting policy to determine the net realisable value
of inventories taking into consideration both incremental costs and other costs
necessary to sell inventories. The new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ERAEEUMBHREER ("EEMBHELEN,) &
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) HENE D)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective EEMERRENNFH T RIEIETEEMBRE
8|
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs ARER BN AR RS A U T E0RA0ME i R AR
that have been issued but are not yet effective: ST RS ET BB RS %A
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related S IR R RaL piEEEET?
Amendments? 17%
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’ B IR R BEAWELS S| A
EIFUZETR
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an SIS R4 R B E A NTD
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture? BN EBSE BN ECENEE
AERIEE285RIERT A HESTE?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- BB ERS1%5 ¥aESEAREEIE
current and related amendments to Hong IBETA FEUNEBRESS
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)? g (CHF_FF) oM
BA1EET?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies? EHIHERS19LN DI SIEEE?
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 BB EERE
BEIPAE2FSETR
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates? SR SeYE DI B2
EREN
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities EBETERSE 128 HBE—SGELENE
arising from a Single Transaction? BETA ENaEEEIREE
FiIE2
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds FHOPERE 163 W MENSRE -5
before Intended Use' BETA ERRBINFTEERIE
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a EBYTERS37%  HEASYN-BITAAMN
Contract’ EHES BOA
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 — 2020 EEESREEAE S \FE_S°F
HEN FEBYEREER
EERUE
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. T ORI TE-A AR EFRRNEERRAR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 2 RIRI=F—A A ERARNEEREER -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 3 ARFEHBSCERBNEERRER
Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors MR TS B SR EERBII A - EETE
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs BAME A PTE A Athins] MEMEET BB RS 2R
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the RATERERENEH GRSV BRERELEARR
foreseeable future. -
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current” and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the assessment
of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should
be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the end of the reporting period, even
if the lender does not test compliance until a later date.

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the corresponding wordings with no change
in conclusion.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 31 March 2022, the application
of the amendments will not result in reclassification of the Group's liabilities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption of deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” (“HKAS 12") so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, for leasing
transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant assets and liabilities
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities are
assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax
asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with the
right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023, with early application permitted. As at 31 March 2022,
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are
subject to the amendments amounted to HK$55,131,000 and HK$58,835,000
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing the full impact of
the application of the amendments. The cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
HK Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and leasehold
land and buildings, which are measured at fair values and revalued amounts,
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if the market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in the consolidated financial statements is determined on such basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16"”), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between the members the Group are eliminated in

full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group's interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group'’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components
of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non- controlling interests
according to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &%
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set
of activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination under common
control, are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability
in the “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in October 2010)".

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

e lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired
leases were new leases at the acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non- controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Merger accounting for business combination involving businesses
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
items of the combining businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated using the
existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount is
recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time of
common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income includes the results of each of the combining businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the combining businesses
first came under the common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are
presented as if the businesses had been combined at the beginning of the
previous reporting period or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e MBHmRMEE @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that

are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in exchange
for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer that
is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”). In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are

accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A point in time revenue recognition

The revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in time except for revenue
from certain sales, which are recognised over time. Under the transfer-of-
control approach in HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
("HKFRS 15”), revenue from certain sales of goods to the Group's
customers in connection with the production of cable assembly products
are recognised when the goods are physically passed to the customers,
which is the point in time when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the goods and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of
the goods upon customer acceptance.

Over time revenue recognition

For certain sales of goods of the Group’s customers in connection with
the production of cable assembly products, revenue is recognised overtime
when the performance does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date based on contract terms.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of the Group's effects or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that
performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the
extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value at the date of the revaluation less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &%
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FZAZtT—HLEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognise in profit or loss,
in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the property revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is

transferred to accumulated profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method or reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and

conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of
staff quarters and office premises that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3. FEMBRREREERTIETEHER @
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 FEFEER @)

Leases (continued) HE =

The Group as a lessee (continued) EEFERFHA ()
Right-of-use assets EREEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEENRABRE

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; and

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Except for leasehold land which is measured under revaluation model
since as described below, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of right-of-use asset is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognise in profit or loss, in which
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of right-of-use asset is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the property revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to
accumulated profits.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e MBHmRMEE @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest

accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever the lease term has

changed.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to

use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone

price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that

the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period

in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and

only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will

be available for use or sale;
e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic

benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the

intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is
the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must

incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e MBHmRMEE @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to

collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through

profit or loss (“FVTPL").

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination

that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
("ECL") model on financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, rental deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances) and other items (contract assets) which
are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, trade
receivables from fellow subsidiaries and contract assets. The ECL on these
assets is assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e MBHmRMEE @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment

assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower,;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

=

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT'D)
eI RMEE (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. MEMBHRRERELERTIEZSTHER @

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 I%"’“Eﬁi%(%)

Financial instruments (continued) EHTHA @

Financial liabilities and equity instruments THIE ﬁ%ﬁfEﬁIﬁ

Classification as debt or equity DR B L

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as EEAER TADNRBESHNTINER TS
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements &%rﬂﬁﬁé@@ﬁliﬁ’] EMEIERS
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. RS ES R -

Equity instruments ERTE

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in ERTENEPREENEERNGRIIEas

the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and unsecured
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a
financial asset or financial liability to which the amortised cost measurement
applies as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies
the practical expedient to account for these changes by updating the
effective interest rate, such change in effective interest rate normally has
no significant effect on the carrying amount of the relevant financial asset
or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is required
by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both these conditions are
met:

e the change is necessary as a direct consequence of interest rate
benchmark reform; and

e the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately preceding
the change).

For other changes made to a financial asset or financial liability in addition
to changes to the basis for determining the contractual cash flows required
by interest rate benchmark reform, the Group first applies the practical
expedient to the changes required by interest rate benchmark reform by
updating the effective interest rate. The Group then applies the applicable
requirements in HKFRS 9 on modification of a financial asset or a financial
liability (see accounting policy above) to the additional changes to which
the practical expedient does not apply.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for cash
flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on
an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument
is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

For the purpose of determining whether a forecast transaction (or a
component thereof) is highly probable, the Group assumes that the interest
rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows (contractually or non-
contractually specified) are based is not altered as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform.

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when
the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness
requirements:

e there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the
hedging instrument;

e the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result
from that economic relationship; and

e the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting
from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually hedges
and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity actually uses
to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement
relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management objective for that
designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the
hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it
meets the qualifying criteria again.

For changes made to the hedged risk, hedged item or hedging instrument
required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Group amends the formal
designation of a hedging relationship to reflect the changes by the end
of the reporting period during which the relevant changes were made.
Such an amendment to the formal designation of the hedging relationship
constitutes neither the discontinuation of the hedging relationship nor the
designation of a new hedging relationship.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT'D)
eI RMEE (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. MEMBHRRERELERTIEZSTHER @

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 I%"’“Eﬁi%(%)

Financial instruments (continued) E#MT E ( &
Hedge accounting (continued) k-l
Cash flow hedges ﬁﬁ/m;ﬁ/‘?

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other
qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, limited to the cumulative
change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.

When a hedged item in a cash flow hedge is amended to reflect the
changes that are required by the interest rate benchmark reform, the
amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is deemed to be based
on the alternative benchmark rate on which the hedged future cash flows
are determined.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised
hedged item.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only when the
hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria
(after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. Discontinuing hedge
accounting can either affect a hedging relationship in its entirety or only a
part of it (in which case hedge accounting continues for the remainder of
the hedging relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transactions is ultimately recognised in profit
or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain
or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. REVBBRREREERTIESEHBR 2

3.2 TEEEBUR @)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 28.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the date of grant without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e MBHmRMEE @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve

(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to government-managed retirement benefits schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages

and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which
the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities,
the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities results in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by
the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving estimations
(see below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group'’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences attributable to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC")

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no deferred tax has been
provided for the undistributed profits in the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$295,059,000 (2021: HK$427,957,000) as the Group is in a position to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, is described below.

Valuation of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
measured at revaluation model

The Group's leasehold land included under right-of-use assets and buildings
included under property, plant and equipment (the “Land and Buildings”) are
accounted for using revaluation model at the end of the reporting period.

The management of the Group works closely with the independent firm of
qualified professional property valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value measurements. Where there is
a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the management of the Group. Information about the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in determining the fair value of the
Group's Land and Buildings is disclosed in notes 15 and 16, respectively.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of trade
receivables based on individual assessment, after considering the financial
background and the historical settlement records, including the past due dates
and default rates of each trade receivable. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information. At every reporting date, the default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about
the ECL and the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 37.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

78 MBHmRMEE (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment assessment of trade receivables (continued)

Asat31March 2022, the carryingamount of trade receivablesis HK$981,444,000
(2021: HK$745,151,000). Details of trade receivables are set out in note 19. No

loss allowance was recognised for both years.

Assessment of the net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable values. The
management of the Group is required to exercise judgement in estimating the
net realisable value with reference to the ageing analysis of inventories and
recent or subsequent usages or sales of inventories. Where the expectation on
net realisable value is lower than the cost for certain items, a write down of

inventories may arise.

The carrying amount of inventories is HK$653,649,000 (2021: HK$474,894,000)
as at 31 March 2022. During the year ended 31 March 2022, obsolete

inventories of HK$4,929,000 (2021: HK$4,646,000) are written off.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment as disclosed
in note 15. These estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual

useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.

The management of the Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are expected to be shorter than estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these

estimations may have a material impact on the results of the Group.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (“HKFRS 8") requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their performance. Specifically,
the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are organised into two main
operating divisions — (i) cable assembly and (ii) digital cable (previously named

as “networking cables”).

The accounting policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS
8 are the same as those used in its HKFRS consolidated financial statements.
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being the CODM, for
the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance

focuses on types of goods delivered.
Principal activities of the Group's reportable segments are as follows:

Cable assembly - manufacturing and trading of cable assembly

products
Digital cable — manufacturing and trading of networking cable and
specialty cable products

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its operating segment

information.

Segment results represent the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment
without allocation of results attributable to professional fees and costs relating
to acquisition of business and business restructuring, finance costs, unallocated
income and unallocated expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM

for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M EmRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEER @)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating and DU R AN EN R KA 2 FREI DY
reportable segments for the year: Wik REERE DT
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) PEPUIERR A&
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BEE - A=+ —HIFE
Total
Cable Digital reportable
assembly cable segments Eliminations Total
2
TR HFE ERERET (53 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FExT FET FET FET
Segment revenue oEUEE
External sales SNERSH & 1,876,204 1,713,913 3,590,117 - 3,590,117
Inter-segment sales DEEHE 77 41,519 41,596 (41,596) -
1,876,281 1,755,432 3,631,713 (41,596) 3,590,117
Segment results DEPELE 199,605 97,615 297,220 - 297,220
Professional fees and costs R EEZERS M2
relating to acquisition of ~ FFEARBES
business and business BREEA
restructuring (6,496)
Finance costs BUE A (38,043)
Unallocated income RAOBUN 776
Unallocated expenses RAFFZ (20,602)
Profit before taxation FRELRIE A 232,855
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BECE T = =1t—HIFE
Total
Cable Digital reportable
assembly cable segments Eliminations Total
A2
BRAN HFER D EAEET (S Hast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHIT THT
Segment revenue ERUE
External sales HMNERSH E 1,655,508 1,352,511 3,008,019 - 3,008,019
Inter-segment sales DEEHE 122 22,220 22,342 (22,342) -
1,655,630 1,374,731 3,030,361 (22,342) 3,008,019
Segment results DEREELE 253,818 71,650 325,468 - 325,468
Professional fees and costs R BEZERS M2
relating to acquisition of ~ FXEARMVEES
business and business BREEA
restructuring (4,168)
Finance costs BlE A (42,525)
Unallocated income KABUN 628
Unallocated expenses RAFFZ (11,292)
Profit before taxation FRELAIE A 268,111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. #SEPEH

(b) PHEER SR
REEHT 2B RAEHBRA WA HEE

(b) Segment assets and liabilities
An analysis of the Group’'s segment assets and segment liabilities by

reportable and operating segments is as follows: EAEaEsmamT -
Cable Digital
At 31 March 2022 assembly cable Consolidated
WIZE_"HF=HA=1—H TIRAEY HFER =a
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AE|RAHEE 1,446,020 1,717,387 3,163,407
Unallocated assets RAOBEE 19,355
Consolidated total assets mEREE 3,182,762
Liabilities =15
Reportable segment liabilities AERIEEBE 690,651 364,107 1,054,758
Unallocated liabilities NN == 1,064,559
Consolidated total liabilities AR EeEs 2,119,317
Cable Digital
At 31 March 2021 assembly cable  Consolidated
A _F_—HF=HF=+—H BN HFER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FHET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AE2HAHMEE 985,734 1,610,509 2,596,243
Unallocated assets KABEE 2,721
Consolidated total assets RAKEE 2,598,964
Liabilities =1
Reportable segment liabilities AEwRAHEE 415,036 306,374 721,410
Unallocated liabilities NN = 1,013,153
Consolidated total liabilities FEAaERES 1,734,563
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating BB AR IENIE AR E AR LR ¢
resources between segments:
e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than certain other o BETHMEWEIE « RITEBERSLUN
receivables, bank balances and cash and other unallocated assets; and HkAREEI » TEEEHDEREERES
2EE 5 K
e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain o BETIRITED - HiENZBLEMES

bank borrowings, other payables and other allocated liabilities.

FafEs - frEaERIREREDE -

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

. 122



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M EmRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEER @)
(c) Other information () HihEH
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BEE - A=+ —HIFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment SFADEEFS GIE D EETTENS
assets. B o
Cable Digital
assembly cable Consolidated
EIRAEY KFEh =&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT AT FET
Capital additions EARIEM 83,104 10,619 93,723
Depreciation of property, plant and W RENEREITE
equipment 21,687 34,210 55,897
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 10,492 7,400 17,892
Loss (gain) on disposal and written off of HERIMEMZE ~ BB NREN
property, plant and equipment B8 () 118 (1,051) (933)
Write off of inventories FEihs 4,929 - 4,929
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BEZEF T —F=—H=1—HIFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment AR EEBEFNEEN D MEESEND
assets. g o
Cable Digital
assembly cable  Consolidated
BARAM BFER wa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET T
Capital additions BRI 38,886 8,714 47,600
Depreciation of property, plant and M2~ RENEREITES
equipment 24,567 33,146 57,713
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETS 8,916 5,287 14,203
Loss on disposal and written off of property, & Niliss2E « M= KRN
plant and equipment E5iE 1,991 47 2,038
Write off of inventories TEhs 4,646 - 4,646
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers presented BREAEERBREFNMEMEZSIREINEE
based on the geographical location of the customers is as follows: PR ERIT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
PRC e 1,664,349 1,582,132
The United States of America ESET 887,552 752,591
Singapore SN 226,258 176,095
Netherlands e ] 220,668 184,299
Hong Kong BB 201,269 117,691
Mexico E==rich=ry 99,583 16,456
United Kingdom R 47,771 36,557
Others Hith 242,667 142,198

3,590,117 3,008,019

£ [E 3R % 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 123 l



. 124

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

78 MBHmRMEE (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_Z__H#=H=+—RHItFE

R

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Other information (continued)
Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial
assets at FVTPL and rental deposits) is presented based on the geographical
location of the assets:

5. #EBPEH

(o) EtEM
BEAEENFRBEE (RNEREATE
SPABRSNEREEREERS) NERHR
EEMMBAESZS

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

PRC ==]E7] 1,162,776 1,128,657
Hong Kong &5 11,356 11,906

Information about major customers
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

1,174,132 1,140,563

BRAEEEFIEN
RBEFE WS BERMEAREERZ10%
PIEMERLT

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and receivable by the
Group in respect of the manufacturing and sales of cable assembly products
and digital cable, during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

The revenue of the Group derives from manufacturing and sales of cable
assembly products and digital cable. The Group's revenue is fixed price and
short-term contracts. The normal credit term is 30 to 120 days upon delivery.

The revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in time except for revenue
from certain sales, which are recognised over time. Under the transfer-of-control
approach in HKFRS 15, revenue from certain sales of goods to the Group's
customers in connection with the production of cable assembly products
and digital cable are recognised when the goods are physically passed to the
customers, which is the point in time when the goods have been delivered
or shipped to the customers’ specific location (delivery) and the customer has
the ability to direct the use of the goods and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of the goods upon customer acceptance. For certain sales
of cable assembly, revenue is recognised over time when the performance does
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Customer A (from cable assembly segment) EFEA (REEHRAHIE) 434,203 478,094
Customer B (from cable assembly segment) REB (ZRESHRAHEDER) 873,060 807,135
Customer C (from digital cable segment) BRC(REBHEFERAEL) 550,169 476,338
Customer D (from digital cable segment) ZED CREEFTBHROE) 406,006 280,101

6. REVENUE 6. Uz

WaiEAEBRBRE S __FR_F_—F=
A=tT—HLFEANSREFEMNBFER
MBS RIHE B BRI AT E -

REEWMRE BHRATER BT ERNEGE
FEEE - AEEWRA/EEERLBHEH
—RESHRAZAE30E120H °

AEFWSNE—HEMED  EEETHEE
A AR (FERRIFERR) BRIN - RIBB BB
HEER B IS TMEHEEE L RERY
REESRATERMAFERNAEETF
HEVETE R EMSRINK SN S R EREE
TEFPK (EERERUNEXETFPIETME
(E8) BRREFREEBRNEEERMERIL
ELSZERNBREDFIRAMAE R EE)
R - glETEHRMMAHENS > BEEENB
BPSEREHARENSASERARNEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e MBHmRMEE @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

6. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from its major products
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major products:

6.

Iz )
TEERFBNE

FEBBHEIRERABRGSHITNT |

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Cable assembly TIRAEY
— Optical fibres — i 1,054,950 970,582
— Copper —$R 821,254 684,927
Digital cable HFE
— Cat 6/6A cables — Cat 6/6AE LR 1,386,716 1,001,233
— Cat 5/5e cables — Cat 5/5eE4% 165,116 226,309
— Cat 7/7A cables — Cat 7/7AS 4% 61,724 44,683
— Specialty cable —5ERR 100,357 80,285
3,590,117 3,008,019
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Over time [orfiears| 873,060 807,135
Point in time RE—EREEL 2,717,057 2,200,884
3,590,117 3,008,019
OTHER INCOME 7. EAA
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Government grants (note) BURF B (BEE) 1,790 11,585
Interest income FEHA 776 627
Others Hith 3,307 1,743
5,873 13,955

Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised government grants
of HK$1,674,000 (2022: nil) relating to Employment Support Scheme provided
by the Hong Kong Government. The remaining government grants in both years
were related to export and other incentive payments received by the Group from
relevant government departments. There were no unfulfilled conditions attached
to these grants.

far: PREEZFI-—F=—A=1+—HILEFE K
EERRBEBRIFTRREERMETEN
BT B0 1,674,000 T (ZS "4 #)-
B F R T BT #E B 5 SR S B A B BUrT
RPN RO O R E A S BB AR o S

BN S MR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

78 MBHmRMEE (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HittzKiEsE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THTT
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SMEW S (B518) 7$ 5 565 (9,190)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEMZE - MENMRBENWE (B18) 933 (2,038)
Gain on change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL BATESTABENSREEN
N EEE R 218 258
1,716 (10,970)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RAERA
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Interest on unsecured bank borrowings SRR ERATIE TR 2 35,555 39,803
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNS 2,905 2,722
Fair value gain reclassified from equity to profit or loss on BEARSREY PR XLz
interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges NEEWSAERBHDEEER (417) -
38,043 42,525
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRIREIEF]
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET Tt
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging: FRBL B AR HIBR A T 2R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W~ RENERETS 55,897 57,713
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 17,892 14,203
Less: capitalised in inventories B FEERE (58,822) (58,293)
Less: included in research and development expenses B BERERESR (4,735) (3,615)
10,232 10,008
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) EZ=E (FIEE11) 13,330 14,569
Other staff costs HMET A 389,516 336,929
Retirement benefits schemes contributions for other staff Hih 8 THRRERFH R 52,684 33,348
Equity-settled share-based payment for other staff HiWE TRERGEE LR R RERN
I8 3,942 4,009
Total staff costs BT AR 459,472 388,855
Less: capitalised in inventories B BEEARL (301,803) (261,899)
Less: included in research and development expenses B BARRRRASZA (59,802) (43,140)
97,867 83,816
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE
— Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu — 2y o BEMRSGETANIT 2,170 2,120
— other auditors — E iz EEm 766 560
2,936 2,680
Cost of inventories recognised as expense (note) ERRAZNEERA (i) 3,002,020 2,427,802
Expense relating to short-term leases BEREHHEENRS 3,479 3,627

far: BEZS__F-A=+—HILFE - G
4,929,000 7T (— 5 —4:4,646,0007T)

R R -

Note:  Write off of inventories amounting to HK$4,929,000 (2021: HK$4,646,000) was

recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 March 2022.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

. 126



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

e MBHmRMEE @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to directors of the Company are as follows:

1. 5  TREARESHNE

(a) EEM=
ENNENEAAREETZMESHIINT

Performance Equity- Retirement
related settled benefits
Salaries and incentive share-based schemes
Fees allowances payment  payments  contributions Total
RiEREE
e A BAKTEF
g HEREE HERE ERNTE HELESA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T THET FHBT T
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BES T
—A=t—HIFE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon (note a) FIRASAE (fizta) - 3,120 3,746 152 144 7,162
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen EHRLE - 2,470 2,173 137 114 4,894
Non-executive director: JFHTEE -
Mr. Paul Lo (note b) B (FiEtb) 390 - - 26 - 416
Independent non-executive directors: B IFHTEE
Mr. Ho Hin Shun FEELE 260 - - 26 - 286
Mr. Luk Wai Shing BERERSE 260 - - 26 - 286
Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric ROGEERE 260 - - 26 - 286
1,170 5,590 5,919 393 258 13,330
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BEE -
=A=t-HIFE
Executive directors: HiTEE .
Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon (note a) FRALEA (Fizta) - 3,120 3,382 376 144 7,022
Mr. Wong Chi Kuen EHRLE - 2,470 3,191 342 114 6,117
Non-executive director: JFETEE -
Mr. Paul Lo BmEEE 390 - - 65 - 455
Independent non-executive directors: BLIFHTEE
Mr. Ho Hin Shun FEELE 260 - - 65 - 325
Mr. Luk Wai Shing Bkt 260 - - 65 - 325
Mr. Chan Chung Shun Eric ROGELRE 260 - - 65 - 325
1,170 5,590 6,573 978 258 14,569
Notes: 5T -

(@ Mr. Cua Tin Yin Simon is the chief executive officer of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

(b) Mr. Paul Lo was resigned as a non-executive director on 19 April 2022 and Ms.
Wang Laichun was appointed as a non-executive director on 19 April 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services in
connection with the management of affairs of the Group. The emoluments
of non-executive director and independent non-executive director shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference to
the operating results and individual performance.

@) FIRRELERBFNRINTRBE - EXATRERH
SEEREARBITRASRERBENNE -

(b) EMEXAENRZZZFOA+HNBBEIERT
FH LURERELTEN S _FNA+AA
BERERFITES -

EXFIRTESME )RR EEAREEEE

B REME - EXFIIFFRITES NIBIIIF

RITEZNMS R FFEERQATESHIREEN

KEMBARE2EREXELBEAREMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

78 MBHmRMEE (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 2 (2021:
2) were directors and the chief executive officer of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining 3 (2021: 3) individuals were as follows:

1. EE  TBHERREEME

(b) EEM=
FEBRERERHFMALH M (CFRZ
—F I MB) RAARAEFLITBHEH (KE
ZMSER EAFER) EB=% (CF T
—F 1 =8) ALHBEmT

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THTT

Salaries and other benefits e R EMEF 5,000 4,777
Performance related incentive payment FIRIERRS 1,647 1,472
Equity-settled share-based payments RS E LU m TR VFRIR 414 470
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIKER TS5 119 110
7,180 6,829

The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference to
the operating results and individual performance.

The number of the five highest paid employees who are not the directors
nor the chief executive officer of the Company whose emoluments fell
within the following bands are as follows:

KEMBERE2ELERBELBAARRMERE °

FRNAEFHTREEN O A RHIMES
EMSNHF IR

Number of individuals

AB
2022 2021
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %2,000,00077T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00137T22,500,0007%7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001#7T23,000,000/%7T 1 1
3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company and
the chief executive officer of the Group or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors, chief executives and employees) as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors of the Company nor the chief executive officer of the Group
waived any emoluments during both years.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

12. TAXATION 12. |1\
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHTT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBREH

Current tax BNEARLIR 22,113 21,953
Under-provision in respect of prior years PIBEFEEBEBRR 1 1
22,114 21,954

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") FRE TSR (TRZERTEHLL)
Current tax BNEARLIE 14,574 17,798
Under-provision in respect of prior years RIBTEERERE 385 -
Withholding tax in the PRC FREITEHRE 20,382 1,603
35,341 19,401
Deferred tax (note 26) IEFERLIE (FiaE26) 7,127 125
64,582 41,480

0]

(i)

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

PRC EIT

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain entities of
the Group operating in the PRC were awarded the Advanced-Technology
Enterprise Certificate and are eligible for tax concessionary rate of 15% for
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Certain entities operating in the PRC that have taxable income of not more
than RMB3 million are qualified as small and micro enterprises for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. For the first RMB1 million taxable income,
25% of its first RMB1 million taxable income would be taxed at a reduced
rate of 20%. With effect from 1 January 2021, these entities were entitled
to a further reduced EIT rate of 10% on 25% of its first RMB1 million
taxable income. For the portion over first RMB1 million and up to RMB3
million, only 50% of the taxable income would be taxed at a reduced EIT
rate of 20%.

The withholding tax of HK$10,833,000 (2021: HK$1,603,000) mainly
represented taxation recognised in respect of dividend income from PRC
subsidiaries and is recognised at tax rates of 5% (2021: 10%) in accordance
with the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law of the PRC and
HK$9,549,000 (2021: N/A) represented taxation recognised in respect of
shares transfer of subsidiaries in the PRC in relation to group restructuring
with tax rate of 10% (2021: N/A) under EIT Law during the year ended 31
March 2022.

0]

(i)

EEFER
PREFE - BB SR REEERBRF
B916.5%515 o

FERERS

RBEPEIBERPAEHE (TREMERE) &
EFEFUEERED - PRENEARMB
KR25%  REFEPEEEEEIER - A%
ERhEEENETERERSMEITER
FE O UNBESFRIF—F=
A=t—RLEFEFEERZRI5%NEE
B

RHELEARERBRARNBBAREIT
BINETEEREZE_S__£RK_F
- EFZA=Zt+—BUEEEFENMLE
HEK - HNEEARBIEETNEZRR
WA - EHEARBIBHEITERB KA
25% 1§ 3%20% HOB BT R R - B 5
—F—A—HE  ZSERERBEEEA
RE1HETTERHUMANI25% E—F RE
10%BEMEHRKTER - HREEARB1EH
B EEAREIEETUTHITS » &
50% I FER LU A AT 1220 % BB #R R 2EFT 13

BE_S__AF=—A=+—HIFE &N
%10,833,0005 7T (ZF _—4 : 1,603,000
HIT) EBIERR B BB A T AR S
ABERAIRIE - WRE PR SEREHAE
HEAER 5% (ZF - —4F 1 10% ) BB XEE
FBLL.9,549,00058 7T (ZF - —4 : NEMA)
EREBREENPREAMEERB AR K
DERIIFRIE > WIRIRBEFTSRIAZ10%
(TEZ—F NER) B EBER -
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12. TAXATION (continued)
(ii) PRCEIT (continued)

According to relevant laws and regulations promulgated by the State Tax
Bureau of the PRC that was effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises
engaging in research and development activities are entitled to claim an
additional 75% of their research and development expense so incurred
as tax deductible expenses when determining their assessable profits for
the period up to 31 December 2020. With effect from 1 January 2021,
these entities are entitled to claim an additional 100% of their research and
development expenses (“Super Deduction”). The Group has made its best
estimate for the Super Deduction to be claimed for the Group's entities
in ascertaining their assessable profits for the year ended 31 March 2022.

NOTES TO THE_CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT'D)
eI IRRMEE (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

12. MIB (&)
(i) PETEFRER @)

RIBPEBERB I RATREME —FF/\FEL
ERREBRIERIOER - (L EREHIR
ENEERE_R_FF+_A=1t—H1L

BFIXHVERIN S%IMERHITRFS - BZF
_—F—-R—H  ZSFEERERANER
H 3RS RI100%(THBERIEA ) - AEEHE
TLAEE B B B ) SR AV R AR AR (F AR
Bt LESE_S " "F=A=+—H1t

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as FEBIEATERFEDRFERAT ¢
follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Profit before taxation FRELATSF 232,855 268,111
Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5% 16 5% HEFTEMNTEREHR I H
(2021: 16.5%) (ZTB”Z—5F1165%) 38,421 44,238
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes R BRI IR R I 2 5,060 4,404
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes FELE B EERRBANR BT E (1,521) (469)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBESBNHHELE 3,183 523
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised BARERRIEEIENHR L E - (84)
Effect of income tax on concessionary rates for PRC FTiEH SR B AR BER R E
subsidiaries (2,358) (3,862)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries in jurisdictions &SN EREE B AT AR ZE
other than Hong Kong 2 6,791 1,178
Under-provision in respect of prior years RIBRFERBERR 386 1
Super Deduction for research and development expenses 125 = A9BZE LN (6,255) (5,925)
Effect of withholding tax on dividend income from PRC ~ FE07+ 32k B FR ER [ /B A I AU BUR A
subsidiaries HRE 10,833 1,603
Effect of withholding tax on transfer of PRC subsidiaries  TE$0%: ¥ 0 B[ B /A Bl I 7 &8 9,549 -
Others Hith 493 (127)
Taxation for the year FEFIE 64,582 41,480

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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eI RMEE (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &HZE_E__#=B=+—HILHEE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

MENTS (conTD)

13. BIREF

FNDIFBANEEBRERLEERATIZ T
HEE -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Earnings for the purposes of calculating basic and diluted RLGtESREARLEERFINEF
earnings per share (profit for the year attributable to (RATRHEB ANEEFERRER)
owners of the Company) 168,223 226,361
Number of shares
B &
2022 2021
‘000 ‘000
TFhs T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose B LIETESMREARRF§9EL BN
of calculating basic earnings per share FH D E R 1,849,527 1,840,057
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B BRI E
- Share options — REAG 17,243 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose 3 LUat 2 & G 5 & I 09 X 388 A D e
of calculating diluted earnings per share SR e E 1,866,770 1,840,057
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March RAEREF_—F=A=T—HLEFESK

2021 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
adjusted exercise price of the share options (after the adjustment of the fair
value of the unvested share options) was higher than the average market prices
of shares of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021.

BEAEN  FERIOTEFATDERE RE
R RER AR BT E AR R BB EATE
R BIEE_S_—FZA=+—HILLFEN
FARRADFHITE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. R
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: NERNER KIS
2021 final dividend — HK1.5 cents (2021: 2020 final :%_—EEEH\,@HQE' — SR EA
dividend — HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share 1.580 (2= fli 5=
FREE — BT BA.55500) 27,606 27,600
2022 interim dividend — HK1 cent (2021: 2021 interim _?__EEPH\HHQE' — ST
dividend — HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share BI(CRZ—F : ZFR-—FH
B S — SR BAR 1 .5554L) 18,440 27,600
46,046 55,200
On 28 June 2022, a final dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share in respect of RIFITEARAZ+TN\R  ARAESFSE

the year ended 31 March 2022, totalling HK$19,460,000 has been proposed by
the board of directors of the Company. The final dividend is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EREBES T _HF-A-t+—HIFERER
AR S g A1 B - 48%8419,460,00055
TG ° KK EBRF AN DRENERREREXR
eriE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

78 MBHmRMEE (@

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 ®BZE_"ZF__

FZAZT—HLEFE

15. ¥ - BB R Ekfi

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and Toolsand fixtures and Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery moulds  equipment Motor vehicles in progress Total
CiR
BF HENERE  BEREE  IARBE  RERRG RE HEIR &5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Thn T T T Tin Thn T Tin
COST OR VALUATION HAg EE
At1 April 2020 RIZZFEMA-A 213625 109,592 717,859 38033 65,446 10,883 - 1,155,438
Currency realignment SRR 18,259 9377 58,551 3317 5987 3 - 9,214
Additions HE - 3316 2188 2,828 13214 125 - 41325
Disposalsfuritten off HE /e - - (3,651) - (897) (199) - (5,046)
Loss on revaluation to profit STABRNEREE
or loss (5,755) - - - - - - (5,755)
Reclassification on revaluationto ST AEMGRBNERETSE
revaluation reserve .10 - - - - - - 2.110)
At 31 March 2021 RZZ_-£=A=1-H 224,019 122,285 794,601 44178 83,750 1233 - 1,280,066
Currency realignment S 10,283 5819 36,572 2182 4,157 It)] 3 59,436
Acquired on acquisition of WELBRED
business - - 8,958 2,105 549 1m - 1,734
Additions HE - 9,338 30,687 2,281 19,155 347 1373 63,181
Disposalsfwritten off HE /e - - (220) (855) (1,189) (353) - (2617)
Gain on revaluation to profit STABRNERLE
or loss 361 - - - - - - 361
Redlassification on revaluationto T AZMEENERETHE
revaluation reserve (4,846) - - - - - - (4,846)
At 31 March 2022 RIFZE=R=1-A 29817 137,442 870,598 49,851 106,422 11,781 1,404 1,407,315
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Rt
At 1 April 2020 A5 SEMmA-A 57,046 64,952 320,945 29 42,19 7147 - 514,576
Currency realignment SRR 4,648 6,053 27,050 1975 3765 540 - 44031
Provided for the year EREE 549 15,105 27521 2459 617 %0 - 57713
Disposalsfuritten off HE /e - - (1,485) - (79) (449) - (2,730)
Eiminated on revaluation REEFES (67,190) - - - - - - (67,190)
At 31 March 2021 RZF_-£=F=1-H - 86,110 374,031 26,726 51,335 8,198 - 546,400
Currency realignment L5 167 4,106 17,700 1341 2559 339 - 26,212
Provided for the year EEER 6,251 6,921 30,167 2,837 8,753 968 - 55,807
Disposalgfwritten off HE /e - - (163) (189) (1,008) (318) - (1,678)
Eiminated on revaluation REEFES (6418) - - - - - - (6:418)
At 31 March 2022 RIS TE=A=1-A - 97,131 41,735 30,715 61,639 9,187 - 620,413
CARRYING VALUES fREfE
At31 March 2022 RZB_Z#=A=1-H
- Cost - - 40,305 448,863 19,136 44,783 2,594 1,404 557,085
- Valuation -1 29817 - - - - - - 2293817
229817 40,305 448,863 19,136 44,783 2,59% 1,404 786,902
At31 March 2021 KB -F=A=1-A
- Cost -FA - 36,175 420,570 17452 32415 3,035 - 509,647
~Valuation -fiE 224019 - - - - - - 224019
224,019 36,175 420,570 17452 32415 3,035 - 733,666

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

AR TEERMEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &HZE_E__#=B=+—HILHEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment (other than construction in progress), using straight-line method or

reducing balance method over the following useful lives:

Straight-line method:

Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining term of the
related land lease or estimated useful lives

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of the lease or
10 years

Tools and moulds 5- 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5-10 years

equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Reducing balance method:

Plant and machinery 10 - 15 years

Fair value measurement of the Land and Buildings

The Group had accounted for the Land and Buildings using the cost model in
previous years. In order to more accurately reflect the value of the Land and
Buildings held by the Group and provide more relevant information to the
users of the financial statements of the Group, the directors of the Company
had approved changes in the accounting policies of the Group for the Land
and Buildings from cost model to revaluation model with effect from 30 June
2020. The Group had adopted the change in accounting policy of the Land and

Buildings prospectively.

The Group's Land and Buildings were revalued on 31 March 2022 and 2021
by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified valuer not related to the
Group. The resulting revaluation loss of HK$37,742,000 (2021: revaluation
surplus of HK$257,855,000) arising from right-of-use assets, while revaluation
gain of HK$1,572,000 (2021: HK$65,080,000) arising from property, plant
and equipment, respectively, net of the corresponding total deferred tax
asset of HK$8,497,000 (2021: deferred tax liability of HK$77,980,000), have
been charged (2021: credited) to the property revaluation reserve for the year
ended 31 March 2022. A gain on revaluation on a building of approximately
HK$361,000 (2021: loss of HK$5,755,000) is credited to profit or loss (2021:
charged to profit or loss). The valuations by the independent qualified valuer are
arrived by direct comparison approach assuming sale of the Land and Buildings
in their existing states with their highest and best use and by making reference
to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market. The direct
comparison approach is based on market observable recent transactions of

similar properties in similar locations.

If the Land and Buildings of the Group had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial statements at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$166,825,000 (2021: HK$163,666,000) as property, plant
and equipment and approximately HK$94,856,000 (2021: HK$93,253,000) as

right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2022.

15. W3R - R R At o)

B - BE MR B (ER TR 2R
LUT AJ s A B A B AR R SRR B = S L A
ARETRITE -

H#E
52 HEE LA E T SRS ST

AERER (BIEERE)
HEM=KE THEIS10F (LIBIEERE)

TENMER SE106
B~ RELRE SE106
RE 56
ERERIEIRLE ¢

B Ko tas 10E 154
THREFZATFEEE

FEEPBEFERARARIE LR EFA
iR - B EERRAEEF AN TSR TH
EE  TARNKEMBRENEHEREESSR
BER > ANAEFCIESAEE T LET
NEABRARAEANERREGRN - B-F
“BEAA=THBER - AREEENFRMLT
R TS BERNES)

AREE M+ S AT R B AR S [ AR B A N A

BERGEMKATTEBRRNERARESZ
TERTETF=ZA=+—HEE - AERR
BEEENEGHEBUNAYE  BEEREE
AE WD BIK 537,742,000 7T (ZF
—fF T B4 B 257,855,0005%7T) 1,572,000
BLT(ZFE—F: 65080000,%75) ?Dliﬁﬁ
FEIEFE R JE & EE 4 %E 498,497,000/ L (&
—fF: LU%IEE{EW,%O,OOO,%E)fé E@
HE_S " " F-F=+—HIFEMNYESH
REEIR (TR —F 5t ) - BFEHKEL
361,000/7T (ZF_—4F : [E5185,755,000/47T)

EFTAEBRR(CE - —F  BERSHKR) - B

AERGEMPTAHIEEDERBEELEAT
E O EPRRILMEEFUESS MRERR
MIRRHE - WSEBETS RN s
ERXGER - EELBUENERELUMEE 8
PZEN TSI SRS ER -

MAEE T MIBFIWEE L EERERRA
BRHTESAZSHATBE®RERN  MERZ
FTTF=A=+—HINEYE « BRELRE
REAEEENREEHRD B %%9166,825,000
#IT(ZF - —4 163,666,000 7T) &4
94,856,00057T,(—F _ —4:93,253,00047T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

78 MBHmRMEE (@

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Land and Buildings (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these Land
and Buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation technique and inputs
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

15. ¥% - BB @)

T REFZATEE @)
TRIIAEEZ S L RFHAFENE
B CCEEAT BRI A EEMm MM ARIE) - LI
ENATESEDABBNIEREEMEEAQ
FEFERMBNATERR (F—REE=R) -

Fair value  Valuation techniques and Significant unobservable
Description Fair value at hierarchy  key inputs inputs Sensitivity
Fipu RUTHEBNATE ATEERR HESMREZBAZE  ERRTERSEAZIE BRE
31.3.2022 31.3.2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHT
Buildings in the PRC 229,817 224,019 Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
based on market observable using market direct the price per square meter
transactions of similar comparable properties and  used would result in a
properties adjusted timing  taking into account location  significant increase in the fair
of reference transactions and other individual factors  value measurement of the
and property-specific such as road frontage, size  buildings, and vice versa.
adjustments including of property etc., which is
nature, location and ranged from RMB1,409
conditions of the property.  to RMB2,106 (2021:
RMB1,474 to RMB2,088)
per square meter.
ArAREIET 229,817 224,019 ZE=# HELRE  DERNELY SFHKERK  DERATHS MERSTHKEKKEL
(NS UERERS 312 BEEALRYENLEEL THEEREFATETEXR
ERGMREETRE - X BEUNERAERE - WERN BLEA TR -
ERERERE - B1FY FHMENRER 875K
EMMEE ~ LB RAR - NFARMEA09TEAR
#2,10670 (ZF-—4&F:
AR®E1474TTE AR
2,0887C) °
Leasehold land in the PRC 328,600 358,051 Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
based on market observable using market direct the price per square meter
transactions of similar comparable properties and  used would result in a
properties adjusted timing  taking into account location  significant increase in the
of reference transactions and other individual factors ~ fair value measurement of
and property-specific such as road frontage, size  the leasehold land and vice
adjustments including of property etc., which is versa.
nature, location and ranged from RMB1,403
conditions of the property.  to RMB2,165 (2021:
RMB1,618 to RMB2,463)
per square meter.
At BT & £ it 328,600 358,051 ZE=#K BHELRE  DERELY S8FHKER  TRAME EREGTHIRERKIEL

FNHSHBRRS 52
ER PRI THRE » A
e ERE - BIEY)
AR ~ BRI

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year ended.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

IR g ey En e iv]
BRI BRATER ~ MERN
FSHMERRAE - SF5K
NFARIE403TEAR
#2,16570 (ZB_—4F:
AR, 618TEARE
2,46370) ©

FHEEHARE + A TER
ERBELF  RZITA -

RARFEWEEAREHE =4 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)
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HAFEERIRMIEE (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

16.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. EFREEE

Leasehold Leasehold
land properties Total
e+ HEME HEEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT T
(note a)
(Ffgza)
At 31 March 2022 W _F=H=1—H
Carrying amounts IRE(E
— Cost — A - 55,131 55,131
— Valuation — (& 328,600 - 328,600
328,600 55,131 383,731
At 31 March 2021 W_E_—F=A=+—H
Carrying amounts IREE
— Cost — A - 42,120 42,120
- Valuation —{&E 358,051 - 358,051
358,051 42,120 400,171
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BES_ "H-A=1+—HIFE
Loss on revaluation for the year (note a) FEEMESE (W5ta) 37,742 - 37,742
Depreciation for the year FEE 7,551 10,341 17,892
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE_ZS_—F=-H=1+—HLFE
Gain on revaluation for the year (note a) FEEMW S (f5Ta) (257,855) - (257,855)
Depreciation for the year FEITE 5,533 8,670 14,203
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Expense relating to short-term leases (note b) BRAEHAEENRRX (stb) 3,479 3,627
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHAEE 15,875 13,688
Additions to right-of-use assets FEREEERNE 22,152 845

Notes:

(@) The leasehold land held by the Group was accounted for as revaluation model with
effect from 30 June 2020. Please refer to note 15 for details.

(b) The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office and staff quarters, of
which the Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of office
and staff quarters. As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the portfolio of short-
term leases in which practical expedient was applied is similar to the portfolio of short-
term leases to which the short-term leases expense disclosed above.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recognised additions of right-
of-use assets amounting to HK$22,249,000 (2021: HK$845,000) and additions
of lease liabilities amounting to HK$22,249,000 (202 1: HK$845,000).

For both years, the Group leases leasehold properties for its manufacturing
operations. Lease contracts for leasehold properties are entered into for fixed
term of 1to 15 years (2021: 1 to 15 years) respectively, but may have termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

() AEEMFENEETBIARIEERERN - 8
TEIRFAAZTHBER - HBEH2HAME
15¢

(b) AEEEHRPATRETESIEHPHEE - M
AEERMAETRETESHERRCHHEERA
BR N B "HF-B=t+—HRZF"—4H=
A=+—H EBERTTEREHiNEHEEES
SIS ERIN E X BENRBHREHESEN -

REBE_S"__F=A=+—HILFE  £~£H
ERE RS ERE 22,249,000 T (ZF_—

£ 1 845,000/ 7T) R E&ERE22,249,000
HBIC(ZF " —4F 1 845,000/7T) ©

REZMEFE  AREAHLELEHREEY
¥ - ARHEMENHESNDRIEIIIE158F
(TR —F 1 215F) MEEFH - BRITTE
TaAEIEHE - BT IRE B EEER 0 TES
BRBARRMIGEREMEM - JEZE%HH\H&;¥1E7FEH§Y
HHNRER > AEERAANESE @ DINE
TE AR BT R AIRHIR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

16.

17.

18.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The Group has a termination option in a lease for a production plant in the PRC.
This is used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The termination option held is exercisable only
by the Group and not by the lessor. No extension options are included in any of
the lease agreements entered by the Group.

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain not to exercise a termination
option, upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change
in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021, there is no such triggering event.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its manufacturing
facilities are primarily located and office buildings. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the underlying leasehold land. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The land
and building components of these owned properties are presented separately
since the payments made can be allocated reliably. The land component of
the Group is classified as right-of-use assets and the building component is
classified as property, plant and equipment.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a policy with an
insurance company to insure a director of the Group (the “Policy”). Under the
Policy, the beneficiary and policy holder is a subsidiary of the Group and the total
insured sum is US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,500,000). At the inception
of the policy, the Group paid an upfront payment of US$610,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,742,000) and a single premium charge of US$37,000 (equivalent to
HK$283,000). The Group will receive cash back based on the account value of
the Policy at the date of withdrawal. The Group receives interests at interest
rates guaranteed by the insurer.

The directors of the Company expected that the Policy will be terminated at the
16th policy year in 2026 and there will be no surrender charge in accordance
with the Policy. The expected life of the policy remained unchanged from the
initial recognition and the management of the Group considered that the
financial impact of the option to terminate the Policy was not significant.

Life insurance policy is classified as financial assets at FVTPL as these financial
assets have contractual right to cash flows that do not represent contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. The fair value gain of HK$218,000 (202 1: HK$258,000) relating to
fair value of the financial asset as at 31 March 2022 was recognised.

16.

17.

EREEE ®)

FEERTE-EEERENEERFAKILE -
EMRAERARELEMHEERBFERE
BREN - MFANRILRI A RAEEMIFL
BAITEE - AEEF TR E B &S
EfTEHEERE -

EREEREMHABERBEBRE(CTABEAT
ZEHNERT AREEENTEREEEEE
FETERILE -REBE_R__FL_F"—
FZR=1—HUFE - WERLZBHEL -

LS - REBEHEERETEBFRHAKRE
MERERBEZMNZERT - AEERZSE
MEEBNEMEEA  BEEBEEELT -
REE—ZBANRUMBZ SO RER - BN
MBS - S BYEN T RTE
DAFEY - AEEN IO D EREREE
E > MEFTHIRDIERME - BERRE -

BRAFEFABRZEMEE

AAB—ER2ENBARERBR AR IRE
ZRABAEE —RZRESE (TRE ) - RIERE
ZRARBRABAEE —ERBAR - HRE
¥8/%2,000,0003 7T (572 15,500,0005 7)) °
PRERAE - AEES(TAIEIFIE610,0003€
7t (A85124,742,0005870) M EBEZE{RE37,0003%
JC (185572 283,00057T) - NEBN 12K H B
RRERFEAKIIRS - AEBIZRBRATR
BRI EEF S o

RAREREHENE16BREFEESIA
FRIERE - REREFHBAINRRER -
REMIRF P ENRFERURERFRE - M
AEEEEERRRER BNV B ELAE
*K o

AEREDERIERAFESTANERNSHMEE
NRZESEENTJWEIRSRENGLRE
A MEBRREREVIFGHIEAERS REKRE
EASHWFENERNEHNRSHRE - N_F_
“HFZB=1+—H AR FIEERESBMEEN
T EABENATFEWZE218,0008 T (ZF _—
£ 1 258,000H57T) ©

INVENTORIES 18. 78
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
Raw materials =y 275,651 179,526
Work in progress et 80,703 66,982
Finished goods L) 297,295 228,386
653,649 474,894
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. ES R EMEITIR

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET Tt

Trade receivables B S EWGIE 981,316 744,725
Trade receivables from fellow subsidiaries RERRWNEATNE ZEWKIE 128 426
Bills receivables FEW 17,366 7,468
Trade and bills receivables B ZIEWGRIE KB ER 998,810 752,619
Value added tax receivables FEWBE(ERL 56,582 33,418
Other receivables Hith GRS 8,480 5,086
Deposits and prepayments e RIENTIE 26,302 17,632
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables B~ AN FIE R EMERGR 91,364 56,136
Trade and other receivables B NEEMEKRIE 1,090,174 808,755

As at 1 April 2020, trade and bills receivables amounted to HK$511,371,000.

The Group allows credit period ranging from 30 days to 120 days to its trade
customers. Before accepting any new customers, the Group will internally
assess the credit quality of the potential customers and determine appropriate
credit limits. The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on invoice
date which approximates revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

\“E_FENR—H - BHRUGIAREKE
P #511,371,00057T

ZK%I,%A%E%’%Z?JEZ{*QH;@ F30HZE120

o EEMT B A 2&%@%?&@#
%ﬁZE%’E?WW%K%ﬂS C ] A HEEER
5 o EPEREIE LENE BN RS R
B A Gz fEsR B HEAEE) T 2 IR DTN T

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT THT

0 - 30 days 0£30H 488,962 336,684
- 60 days 31260H 179,704 166,088
—-90 days 61290H 206,860 165,580
91— 180 days 91£180H 122,539 83,863
Over 180 days #E1B180H 745 404
998,810 752,619

At 31 March 2022, included in the Group's trade receivable balances are
trade receivables of HK$71,657,000 (2021: HK$41,593,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period. An amount of HK$762,000 (2021:
HK$404,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default based on financial information available in the market, creditability and
good repayment records of those customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

RIB"HF=B=+—H » BARETEEE
BEWGRIBAERIT71,657, 00058 T( - —4:

41,593,000/ 7T ) B ZEMGIENRREARE S
H8 - RE1762,000/ 7T (ZF ——14F : 404,0007
JT) A @ER0RE LI E - RIENTHHZ LA
BN BEN « GERZERFPNRIFENG

B 0 ZARERARREN - REBMEMZEE
TS -

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the year BETRTTHF=—RA=1+—HIFE - BHNH
ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 37. it FEUGRIE R B E SR BB MIEE37 o
Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts denominated MREBEERBERCIHREEEN - B2 KEMEK
in currency other than functional currencies of the respective group entities: FEEELTEEIEZEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
us$ ES 253,903 186,157
HK$ BT 3,550 -
Euro BT 2,801 1,669
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

20.

21.

22.

CONTRACT ASSETS

The contract assets from sales of cable assembly to a customer primarily relate
to the Group's right to consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the production of cable assembly
products are completed, being when the rights become unconditional.

As at 1 April 2020, contract assets amounted to HK$20,917,000.
The significant increase as at 31 March 2022 is the result of the increase in

purchase orders from the customer at the end of the year. For the prior year
ended 31 March 2021, the significant decrease was the result of the decrease

20. SHEE

MEFHEERATNANEETRERERK
HXE%Iﬁﬁr‘jiﬁﬂil RHY LA AU ERER EIE
Mff%ﬂﬁlﬂ'&%@*%%ﬁﬁsf“# AREE

REARAA M E BT (EDE’\.:Z%@*' D]
AR BEEE HRUGRR -

RZFEFFWMA—H -
20,917,000 7T °

ARNEESER

RIB__F=RA=+—H KRB MIHAERA
FEREFPRBITBRMMAE - REEZST
—FZR=t—HILEE—FE » ZKE#RDTIH

in purchase orders from the customer as at 31 March 2021. AR —F=A=1+—HRPHREIT BRI
B o
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. BIEWRITER RITHBRIEE
At 31 March 2022, pledged bank deposits represent deposits placed in a bank RIBE""H=A=+—H  BEHRETER
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group and carry variable BRI RITLUERIR FAKE 2 —IB1TEE
interest rates ranging from 0.3% to 2.25% (2021: 0.3%) per annum. ZER 0 WREBNF03%FE2.25% (ZF _—
F 1 0.3%) ZFBFIEFHE ©
At 31 March 2022, bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates RIZBTTH=A="+—H ' RITEREEEN
ranging from 0.01% to 1.33% (2021: 0.01% to 0.22%) per annum. F0.01%ZE1.33%(ZFZ—4F:0.01%%0.22% )
ZBRITHHAEAE -
Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated BREBEEER IS  RITESG KRS
in currencies other than functional currencies of the respective group entities: BELUTEBIIESHE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Tt
uss %5 22,659 22,411
HK$ BT 23,056 15,057
Euro BT 5,005 1,466
Renminbi (“RMB") AR (TARK ) 3,159 609
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. BE R EMEMFRIE
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Trade payables B S ENFIR 748,461 482,363
Trade payables to related companies (notes a and b) FENBEATINE ZFIE (istakb) - 252
Bills payables e EE 46,659 24,754
Trade and bills payables B S ENTRIERENER 795,120 507,369
Other payables HibpERIE 7,225 6,279
Salaries and staff related costs payables e M8 THBERAENTIE 45,808 34,364
Accrued charges fEstER 27,566 14,809
Other tax payables HENBIE 9,853 9,048
Accruals and other payables FESTRRIA R E AR FRIE 90,452 64,500
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMEATIE 885,572 571,869
Notes: s
(@) Mr. Paul Lo, a non-executive director of the Company is the controlling shareholder of (a) AARFRITESFEMBEEAZSEEEATNE

the related companies.

(b)

The immediate holding company of the related company has significant influence over
Linkz Industries, the then ultimate holding company of the Group as at 31 March
2021.

The average credit period of trade payables ranges from 30 days to 120 days.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

AR TEERMEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on invoice date at the end
of reporting period is as follows:

22. B REMEMTIE @)

B HREAFIERENEZEEN RS SRR REZEH
ETZREBAWUT -

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 448,782 283,373
- 60 days 31E60H 123,150 60,778

- 90 days 612=90H 93,947 81,089

91 - 180 days 91Z180H 129,032 81,759
Over 180 days #BiB180H 209 370
795,120 507,369

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the respective group entities:

BHBSEER LB  BHRAMEN
FIRBELUTEBIIE S |

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET T

uss$ ESH 32,965 26,232
HK$ BT 10,905 642
Euro BRIt 1,168 369
RMB PN 4,947 -

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The amounts represent deposits received from customers in relation to their
purchase orders placed with the Group. At 31 March 2022, the deposits
received from customers are contract liabilities and the Group does not expect
to refund any of the deposits.

As at 1 April 2020, contract liabilities amounted to HK$714,000.
The contract liabilities at 1 April 2021 and 1 April 2020 were fully recognised as
revenue for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, respectively. When the

Group receives a deposit before commencement of the production activity, this
will give rise to contract liabilities at the inception of a contract.

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

23. EHEE

ZEBERE S AAERFHNREBIEMS
MEFWRNEZES NR_F__F=_A=1+—
H  BEWEFPRERGHNEEEAEETRNRAE
RERAZSRS -

RIZFFFNMB—AH &1&A714,000#

JC °

73’\_§: FNA—HRZF_FFMNAE—HZ

BHEREDINBE_S__FR"F_—HF
_H_-i— BB FERBER RIS - HAE
ERAEEFEDFRABERS - BERAKMHE
RELANER -

24. FHEEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Lease liabilities payable: EEEaE
— within one year ——FR 10,584 7,785
— more than one year but not exceeding two years —— L HEREBRE 10,493 5,570
— more than two years but not exceeding five years —MFEL L EREBAE 29,602 23,725
— within a period of more than five years — BB AT 8,156 7,176
58,835 44,256
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months shown B MEVEE TR 1288 WEIER
under current liabilities %R (10,584) (7,785)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under IERBEETPIRR12{E B B EIHHN
non-current liabilities S| 48,251 36,471

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant
group entities range from 2.75% to 5.64% (2021: 2.75% to 5.64%). These
lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not yet paid.

Lease obligations are denominated in currencies which are same as the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

E%%li%ﬁﬁﬁ’éﬁﬂﬁﬂug%’aﬁi%gﬂz

NF275%E564%(ZF " —F:275% %
5.64% ) &%%ﬂf%fﬂfﬁhKﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘éﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]
BEFE -

EAELSAREEEEREEERHERNEE
ﬁUﬁ
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25. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

25. EIEHERITHER

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 67
Bank loans RITEMR 833,670 783,089
Import/export trade borrowings B HOBSHER 228,493 229,052
1,062,163 1,012,208
The carrying amounts of the above borrowing are repayable*: &R EEER T7HARIEE:
Within one year —FR 610,840 259,280
Within a period of more than one year but not exceeding — D BN B8 iy HA
two years 197,213 171,528
Within a period of more than two years but not exceeding MEL EERBIBRFLRE
five years 76,803 234,097
884,856 664,905
The carrying amounts of borrowing that contain a repayment &R EREBIER AT REIEE 5
on demand clause (shown under current liabilities) but THEFREEZAN TYIHEER
repayable:
Within one year —FR 177,307 331,303
Within a period of more than one year but not exceeding — P FEREBWELE
two years - 16,000
177,307 347,303
Total borrowings fEFRAE%E 1,062,163 1,012,208
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current B MEVBE TR —FARZIHN
liabilities HE (788,147) (606,583)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities ERBEETNIRESE 274,016 405,625
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in loan agreements. * RSN ERERGEENTEEERB Y

The bank loans and import/export trade borrowings carry variable interest rates,
which are ranged from 2% — 2.5% over HIBOR (2021: 2% - 2.5% over HIBOR)
per annum and at the PRC loan prime rate plus a fixed margin.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest
rates) on the Group's borrowings as at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

AN

IRITERIE HOE SERTBERNRNF
REBIRITRIEREIN%E2.5%( ZF - —4F:
EEBITRIZIFREM2%ZE2.5% ) URFEER
EEEFNENEERT -

REERR - REBMETZEBRRNZX (I
AERFE) @EMT

Jill3

2022 2021

Effective interest rate: ERRAIE :
Variable-rate borrowings STEPFIR(EER

Included in unsecured bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated

1.27% to £ 5.65% 2.34% to & 4.80%

BABSEERIREERI  EIERRITER

in currency other than functional currency of the respective group entity: BEMUTEBIECESRE -
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
us$ ESM 93,046 81,402
HK$ HBIT 531,489 601,903

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

26.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and
movements thereon during the year:

6. IEIERIRRE

MU ARE AR TR REA S (55
RESE

Revaluation
surplus on Accelerated
Land and tax  Other timing
Buildings  depreciation difference Total
TR
BFEGRE MEREBEHE HtspdtER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt FiT FiT FHIT
(note)
(F3E)
At 1 April 2020 RIFZFFEMNA—H - 10,226 193 10,419
Charge (credit) to profit or loss BiE&kR GEA) (fEE12)
(note 12) - 935 (810) 125
Charge to other comprehensive BHM2ERAIIR
income 77,980 - - 77,980
Exchange realignment B 5 % 3,088 (48) (32) 3,008
At 31 March 2021 W_ZE_—&F=B=1+—H 81,068 11,113 (649) 91,532
Charge to profit or loss B8R (fyzt12)
(note 12) - 6,362 765 7,127
Credit to other comprehensive STAEMEEBRA
income (8,497) - - (8,497)
Exchange realignment [EE 50 SR 3,627 (107) (191) 3,329
At 31 March 2022 RS "#H#=A=+—H 76,198 17,368 (75) 93,491
Note:  The amount represents the tax effect of timing difference of revenue recognition MiEE : ZeENGERNREERREREEER

and timing difference of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

At the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$16,328,000 (2021: HK$562,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses are losses
of HK$6,843,000 (2021: nil) that will expire in five years. The remaining unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$295,059,000 (2021:
HK$427,957,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022, as the Group is able to
control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

HESEREAMEZENRBYE -

REBEE_S__H#=—A=1+—HILEE X&
ERRFIRERR BN S RE AR IEEER
16,328,000 70 (—Z & — —4F : 562,000 7T) °
AR ARREFRRN AR TE T - B EE
ERAELERIBEE - stARESBHIESIENE
18756,843,0008 T (ZF_—F &) BRE
FHER - KT ARBAFRIESETRRHEE -

IREBEAREMEMEREL - PREBARRZ
SNF—HB—HZBEEREAIREMNKS Eﬁ%&ﬁw
TEIRL © ?)EEPIMTJ*/ATEAEAE_%__EE_H
=+—H1EFEA295,059,0008 T (ZF
£F 1 427,957,00058 70 ) & Rt Fl B b=
B WENGAVBERRIELIRERIERE -
R R A EE [ A 5 320 i) B By 7= B 138 (o) O S ) L
T ERAAI RSN AU TE R RA G &M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

27.

28.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital as at 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022
represents the share capital of the Company. The followings are the details of
the share capital of the Company:

27. g

R_Z_—F=R=+—08 - “F_—FWA—
BAZERZF=A=t—RzKAEAARZ
A o ITAARARZ RAFES

Number of
shares Amount
B &8
HK$ HK$'000
BT FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.0EITE AR
Authorised: BB
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, 1  RZS"ZHFMA—F - —F_— E B=+—
April 2021 and 31 March 2022 TERCHFNA-ARIEFITHE=A="— 3,000,000,000 30,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTIEERA
At 1 April 2020 NIZFHFNA—H 1,840,000,000 18,400,000 18,400
Exercise of share options ﬁﬁ%lﬁ& 432,000 4,320 4
At 31 March 2021 —ET—H#=R=+—H 1,840,432,000 18,404,320 18,404
Exercise of share options m@ﬁﬂ%& 105,520,000 1,055,200 1,056
At 31 March 2022 W_E__&F#=F=1+—H 1,945,952,000 19,459,520 19,460
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 28. LARR AT FREIZR
The Company’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution ZF’L\\TE’JE%HQ%&F% ERE-S—N\F—AZ+

passed on 24 January 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best
available personnel, to provide additional incentive to eligible participant(s)
including employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or
service providers of the Group and to promote the success of the business of
the Group.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under the Share Option
Scheme should be (1) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month
period unless approved by the shareholders of the Company; and (2) share
options granted to substantial shareholder or independent non-executive
directors or their respective associates in any one year exceeding 0.1% of the
Shares in issue and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders of the Company.

Share options granted must be taken up within one month of the date of grant
upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the offer, which shall be paid within
7 days from the offer date. Share options may be exercised at any time during
a period commencing on or after the date on which the option is accepted and
granted and expiring on a date to be notified by the board of directors to each
grantee which shall not be more than 10 years from the date on which the
option is accepted and granted.

The exercise price should be the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as quoted in the HK Stock Exchange on date of grant, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as quoted on the HK Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

On 24 August 2018, the directors of the Company announced that 88,992,000
share options (the “Old Options”) to subscribe for ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each were offered to be granted to 37 eligible persons,
subject to acceptance of the eligible persons, pursuant to the Company’s Share
Option Scheme.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &HZE_E__#=B=+—HILHEE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION (continued)

On 7 August 2020, the directors of the Company announced that 65,328,000
share options (the “New Options”) to subscribe for ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each were offered to be granted to 50 eligible persons,
subject to acceptance of the eligible persons, pursuant to the Company’s Share
Option Scheme.

Details of Share Option Scheme were as follows.

(a) New Options
The New Options were granted on 7 August 2020 with an aggregate
estimated fair value of HK$7,187,000.

1/3 of the New Options can be exercised after 18 months of the date
of grant (i.e. 7 February 2022), further 1/3 of the New Options can be
exercised after 30 months of the date of grant (i.e. 7 February 2023), and
the remaining of the New Options can be exercised after 42 months of the
date of grant (i.e. 7 February 2024) and all of these New Options will be
exercisable until 6 August 2030.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 7 August
2020, the date of grant was HK$0.320.

These fair values of New Options were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of grant 7 August 2020
Share price at date of grant HK$0.320
Exercise price HK$0.320
Expected volatility 48.95%
Expected life 10 years
Risk-free rate 0.30%
Expected dividend yield 5.81%

(b) OIld Options
The Old Options were granted on 24 August 2018 with an aggregate
estimated fair value of HK$14,496,000.

1/3 of the options can be exercised after 18 months of the date of grant
(i.e. 24 February 2020), further 1/3 of the options can be exercised after 30
months of the date of grant (i.e. 24 February 2021), and the remaining of
the options can be exercised after 42 months of the date of grant (i.e. 24
February 2022) and all of these options will be exercisable until 23 August
2028.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 24 August
2018, the date of grant was HK$0.349.

These fair values of Old Options were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

Date of grant 24 August 2018
Share price at date of grant HK$0.340
Exercise price HK$0.329
Expected volatility 53.86%
Expected life 10 years
Risk-free rate 2.2%

Expected dividend yield 2.94%

The variables and assumptions used in the computing the fair value of the
New Options and Old Options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION (continued)

(b) Old Options (continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the annualised standard
deviation of historical share price daily movements of selected comparable
companies in same industry. The expected life used in the model was based
on directors’ best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the share-based payments of HK$4,335,000 (2021:
HK$4,987,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

At 31 March 2022, the number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
was, in aggregate, 45,296,000 (2021: 150,816,000), representing 2.33%
(2021: 8.19%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. At 31
March 2022, 1,984,000 (2021: 57,088,000) share options are vested and
exercisable.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, 85,344,000 (2021: 432,000) and
20,176,000 (2021: nil) options in the Company at an exercise price of
HK$0.349 per share and HK$0.320 per share were exercised respectively.
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s share granted on the
HK Stock Exchange at the date of exercise was HK$1.057 (2021: HK$0.570).
An amount of HK$16,162,000 (2021: HK$69,000) was reclassified from
share options reserve to share premium.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options

28. LU MI RIS ()
(b) ERERHE ()
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ERESHEBNFEREREEE -
E%i”ﬁﬁﬁE’ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)’b%mi%%T\T%%
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ST E| B3R H T R 1T 68 09 B8 R 8 K (9
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held by directors of the Company and employees of the Group during the A BN E AR ES) ¢
year:
Number of share option
BlExE
Exercise price Balance at Exercise during Balance at
Date of grant per share Exercisable period 1.4.2021 the year 31.3.2022
RZE_—F RZE__E
i =l BRTEE T mA—BR#EER FRITE  =ZB=t+—HMiEE
Executive directors HTEE
2482018 HK$0.34938 7T 24.2.2020-23.8.2028 6,672,000 (6,672,000) -
24.8.2018 HK$0.34975 7T 24.2.2021-23.8.2028 6,672,000 (6,672,000) -
2482018 HK$0.34938 7T 24.2.2022 - 23.8.2028 6,672,000 (6,672,000) -
Non-executive director FHTEE
24.8.2018 HK$0.349357C 24.2.2020-23.8.2028 608,000 (608,000) -
2482018 HK$0.34938 7T 24.2.2021-23.8.2028 608,000 (608,000) -
24.8.2018 HK$0.3497 7T 24.2.2022 -23.8.2028 608,000 (608,000) -
Independent non-executive directors BIHTESE
2482018 HK$0.34975 7T 24.2.2020-23.8.2028 1,824,000 (1,824,000 -
2482018 HK$0.3493 7T 24.2.2021-23.8.2028 1,824,000 (1,824,000) -
2482018 HK$0.3497%5 7T 24.2.2022 -23.8.2028 1,824,000 (1,824,000 -
Employees €5
2482018 HK$0.34938 7T 24.2.2020-23.8.2028 19,224,000 (19,056,000) 168,000
24.8.2018 HK$0.34975 7T 24.2.2021-23.8.2028 19,656,000 (19,488,000) 168,000
2482018 HK$0.34938 7T 24.2.2022 - 23.8.2028 19,656,000 (19,488,000) 168,000
7.8.2020 HK$0.3208 7T 7.2.2022 - 6.8.2030 21,656,000 (20,176,000) 1,480,000
7.8.2020 HK$0.32057C 7.2.2023-6.8.2030 21,656,000 - 21,656,000
7.8.2020 HK$0.320i8 7T 7.2.2024-6.8.2030 21,656,000 - 21,656,000
150,816,000 (105,520,000) 45,296,000
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EARAIE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of property, BEWEEITNEBERNGFE M BERE
plant and equipment contracted but not provided for in the — {ELEBHBERIMZE « = LRIBENE
consolidated financial statements ZNEEE 5,725 3,580
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

31.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the scheme, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 of employees, which contribution
is matched by the employees. The Group also makes voluntary contribution in
addition to the mandatory contribution.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of the PRC.
The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$52,942,000 (2021:
HK$33,606,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022 represent contributions
paid and payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no forfeited contributions (2021:
HK$46,000) under these retirement benefits schemes were used by the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions. As at 31 March 2022, the Group
had no forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions in future
years (2021: nil).

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 24 March 2020, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
("Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Linkz Industries, the then ultimate
holding company of the Company, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire, and Linkz Industries has conditionally agreed to
sell entire issued share capital of Linkz Cables Limited (the “Target Company”,
together with its subsidiaries upon completion of a group reorganisation (the
“Linkz Cables Reorganisation”), collectively referred to as the “Target Group”),
and the shareholder’s loan owed by the Target Group to Linkz Industries at
completion date (the “Acquisition”). The consideration of the Acquisition
is 95% of the completion net asset value, being defined as the sum of (i)
consolidated net asset value of the Target Group at the date of completion;
(i) the fair value gain of land and buildings of the Target Group, being the
difference between the book value and the fair value of the land and buildings
at the date of completion; and (iii) the monetary value of all obligations and
liabilities incurred or owing by the Target Group to Linkz Industries at the date
of completion (the “Shareholders’ Loan”).

The Linkz Cables Reorganisation and the Acquisition were completed on
30 June 2020 (“Completion Date”). The consideration was amounted to
HK$780,993,000 including payment for the equity interests of HK$658,756,000
and settlement of the Shareholders’ Loan of HK$122,237,000. The consideration
was satisfied by the Company through the payment in cash.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the difference between the consideration
of HK$658,756,000 paid for acquisition of equity interests and the share capital
of the Target Company HK$8,390,000 amounting to HK$650,366,000 was
recognised in the special reserve.

The Acquisition was considered as a business combination under common
control as the Group and the Target Group were both ultimately controlled
by Linkz Industries. The acquisition of the Target Group was accounted for
using merger accounting in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Guideline
5 "Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the
HKICPA. The Group and the Target Group were regarded as continuing entities.

30. BRTEFIEHE

31.
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e UIHFERIAAMEHMNES - £8E
MZET 8T HBE AR5 %ERMER - LR
RESESRERAR30,00087T - BREAHHIIHE
BERIMR—B - BREBBIEHIR - REETR
TR B RN -

REER PR NREAREESRHEBEAHTE
MHBERERRABANTEINEE - MBEATEA
7 TERRARIEE B 2 LR KB AT IR
RERENEE - ARBIERINEREEI TR
—EERFHEEEMR

RBEZZB__F=A=1t—HLEE XE
B %% ST 8|9AR T 5 AR tL K M Lt St S {F
AT R AL R0 15 s FE SR A B ST AR ER
52,942,000/ 7T(Z5 = —4:33,606,000%7T) °

BES""H-A=-+—HILEE  AEEHK
EFRZEERRERFE THEARRR(CZE
——%5 1 46,00087T) © LIBERIRBHEFKE -

RIB_"HF=F=1+—H » AEBETESKK
HRAT AR B RREFNHER (CF - —F -

| -

FEFRER

REZBZFEZA_+MNHE » AATREKAQT
ERHRRERARRETIRITVES R (T8
B B NAAEREREWE KBS
TXERGRENEEABEERAT (TEEA
A, BRENRTEHREREM (TEAEEEME,)
BNMBARSERS BREE,) 2MERITR
ARNFERASBEREREREETIENRRE
F(BIESRIR) - WESENRERTREER
EHI95% ~ SREA() B IREER TR B BHIAR
REEFE  (IBEKENMERETATEY
it o BDRZER B # it SAR FIRE(EE A TE
Z7Z=FR M) B REE R TR B B P A A SR R
BEIEMMBEEREENERER (TRRE
) iZKER o

ENSESASMMEREN _S_IFAA=1
B ("sEak BHAL) SRk - R{E4A%4780,993,00058
TUE IR R A HE 25 51 658,756,0005% 7T M 8 12 f%
HE122,237,0007T - REHAQATEBER
SR -

WHEEETRE  WEREMANARE
658,756,000/8 T 8 B iR /A A 4<8,390,000/8 7T
2 P 7 5 4650,366,00058 7T » BRI BIEEE
EPEEE’U ©

A R R TSR ) -
BB EERR AT EARHNEB A - K
AREERDRES SR MAREHNE
1831855 TR A BN A G EEDE, DIAHE
FENERE o AKER R REERR AT EEE

g

£ E R % 2022 ANNUAL REPORT

145 I



. 146

32. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On 31 May 2021, adirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sales and purchase agreement with GP Industries Limited, who owns 38.13%
Linkz Industries and is a connected party of the Company, to acquire 100% of
the entire issued share capital of Time Interconnect Wire Technology Limited
(formerly known as GP Industries Marketing Limited) (“Time Wire Technology"”)
at a cash consideration of HK$69,000,000. Time Wire Technology and its
subsidiary, Time Interconnect Wire Technology (Huizhou) Limited (formerly
known as Huizhou GP Wiring Technology Limited) (“Time Wire Huizhou"),
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of automotive wire
harness. The acquisition of business was completed on 31 August 2021 and has
been accounted for using the acquisition method.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,388,000 have been excluded
from the consideration transferred and have been recognised as an expense
in the current year and included in the “professional fees and costs relating to
acquisition of business and business restructuring” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. There is a gain
on bargain purchase amounting to HK$3,201,000 arising from the acquisition,
which was a result of fair values of net assets acquired exceeded the fair value
of the consideration paid.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)
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32, BT

RIFBZ_-FAR=1+—0  AATAMEES
ENBAREGPIXERAR (FEERELX
38.13% 4 » HAQANEKT) FTUEER
#& o DUUBESSRBBERAR (ARSI T
XEZBERAT) (MERERM L) 2HPERIT
EARI100% » TREAER69,000,000/87T - (&
BERBENMENBADESRRME (BN B
IRAT (RIREEIMNEILRRB BB RAR) (TER
BREM ) EBNFEENEEREREER
YRR T —F//\A=+—HZRALD K
FEEENR

I B A8 B8 5% A 1,388,000 3 T 5T A S s
B WEBRRARFEERILNAGEBERRE
KSR BB EE L EFEANEE
EREEAJEES - REWRENEEBE KR
%%3,201,000587C * JTHRBEKEEEFEAT
HBRHENREAFER -

PRUREE B HIEM B E M FEBME(E ¢

HK$'000
THIT
Property, plant and equipment eI NG 11,734
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 14,688
Inventories 7E 32,026
Trade and other receivables (note a) g5 MEMEKFIE (fi5Ta) 82,406
Bank balances and cash BATRERNIR S 13,177
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMEN IR (44,363)
Amounts due to related companies (note b) FENBIEARFIE (IEEb) (22,344)
Lease liabilities HEsE (14,785)
Taxation payable FEARIIE (338)
72,201
Gain on bargain purchase HEBEWGS (3,201)
69,000
Consideration transferred: EEEAE
HK$'000
T
Cash Re 69,000
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired T FTRRITAER LIRS (13,177)
55,823

Notes:

(@) The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade receivables amounting to
HK$66,398,000) with a fair value of HK$82,406,000 at the date of acquisition had
gross contractual amounts of HK$82,406,000. No contractual cash flow is expected
not to be collected.

(b) The amounts due to related companies are due to GP Industries Limited and its

subsidiaries. The amounts were subsequently settled during the year ended 31 March
2022.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

B

@ FUBEBEKFREEZTZEEZEZEKBARIE
66,398,000 1) R EH BN AFER
82,406,000/ * &4V 4E %A /82,406,000 7T °
MESNRSTEBTREERE -

(b) FEBIEARFIRAENGP XA RAT KM
BARHIEA - ZSHNABRENBE_S " _F
ZRZ=T—HILFERES -
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32.

33.

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the profit for the year is HK$3,986,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by Time Wire Technology and Time Wire Huizhou. Revenue
for the year includes HK$88,270,000 generated from Time Wire Technology
and Time Wire Huizhou.

Had the acquisition of Time Wire Technology and Time Wire Huizhou been
completed on 1 April 2021, revenue for the year of the Group from continuing
operations would have been HK$3,674,265,000, and the profit for the year
attributable to the owners would have been HK$169,026,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2021, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group had Time
Wire Technology and Time Wire Huizhou been acquired at the beginning
of the current year, the directors of the Company calculated depreciation
and amortisation of property, plant and equipment based on the recognised
amounts of property, plant and equipment at the date of the acquisition.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties as follows:

32.

33.

B 7% ()

WIESRHAERERITE

FF R N B 1 B SR AR SR B S B SR AR R NPT
EL RN EHE(R 3,986,000 7T © F AU
B BREERGRBE L ERGREIMNAEEN
88,270,000/ 7T °

HEBRERBDENEREREMNOBESETD
7‘5A F_—FNNA—HBHRHK AEEXERF
BREEFNF RN = A E % 3,674,265,000
BT MBENRAREE ANFERRTAER
169,026,000/&7T ~ HEERMEFESRIBAR - K
MWRAANEBRE S —FNH—HERWES
HWERTNERAEE fﬁﬁﬁuﬂzﬁ&%ﬁééﬁ%ﬁ IR
REHERIREAENTEA

EEAREEEAFEF WIS ES R RBE N E

BARREINAIE R T EE WS LOsRIEF

Zﬁf\ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬁ%lﬂH&ﬁEEEW\E’J#@% i K
RIESRETENZ - Wm RRBIITE R -

RA75 52

(@) BN BERREMADIRENRZ NG
ERIN - K%@Eﬁ@% SRR AT

2022 2021

Relationships EalE3 HK$'000 HK$'000
Nature of transactions RGME FET T
A fellow subsidiary (notes a and e) —RIERMELAE (Fiitake)

Sales HE 846 1,139

Purchase A - n
Ultimate holding company (notes b and e) ACPERE AT (MiztbRe)

Service fee REE 11,014 10,543

Expenses relating to short-term lease BRRHEEMNR 3,236 3,036
A related company (notes c and e) —RERERA T (MizEcke)

Sales HE 54 -

Purchase R 5 -

Utility fee KEZ 1,774 979

Expenses relating to short-term lease BRRHEEMNRX 243 457

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HESENH SR 17 37

Sundry fee HIHZA - 23
Related companies (notes d and e) REA R (ffitdRe)

Sales HE - 106

Purchase 23 - 293
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. BB AR S ()
(a) - (continued) (@) —(#&
Notes: R
(a) Salesto and purchase from a fellow subsidiary, Lighthouse Technologies (Huizhou) (a) M—RERRMBLAREIMNHILEHEREER
Limited, which was a then fellow subsidiary before the completion of acquisition NEEHHIHE MIREE - BINTHILEHERL
by Luxshare on 16 March 2022. BRABNRIZEZIZE=A /N HIAMEST

AR ERNERREAR -

(b) Service fee and expense relating to short-term lease paid to the ultimate holding (b) MRAEIZERARELTESINREENERRE
company, Linkz Industries, which was the then ultimate holding company before HEENHAY BETENR"ZS"_"F=A+
the completion of acquisition by Luxshare on 16 March 2022. NBIF BT A R BN RASIERAT] ©

() Mr. Paul Lo, a non-executive director of the Company, is the controlling (0 AABFAITEREMELERBEATEN
shareholder of the related company, Huizhou Light Engine Limited. The Group TN BERNDBRAR ZIEREE - REEZ
entered into new lease agreements for the use of leasehold properties with the S "HF=A=+—HLFE XEEHA
related company for 1 to 3 years (2021: 1 to 3 years) during the year ended EMENGERAABEAR LHAERE
31 March 2022. The Group recognised an addition of right-of-use asset and BRE—ZE2=F(CF_—4F: —E=ZF)- K
lease liability of HK$2,101,000 (2021: HK$36,000) and HK$2,101,000 (2021: CERREEREEFERASEEANA
HK$36,000) respectively. Lease liability as at 31 March 2022 amounted to 2,101,000587T (ZF = —4 © 36,000%7T) &
HK$ 1,655,000 (2021: HK$260,000). 2,101,0005% 70 (ZF Z—4F * 36,00057T)

RIS _F=ZA=+—HWHEEEER
1,655,000/70 (Z=F ——% : 260,00057T) °

(d) Sales to and purchase from certain subsidiaries of GP Industries Limited. GP (d) MGPLEBRATETHEATELNHEE
Industries Limited has significant influence over Linkz Industries, the then ultimate KfEE - GPLEBRARUASENREET
holding company of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021. S HF=B=+—HIFEERFNERIZTK

NRBEETIFAERTE -

(e) These companies were related companies of the Group before the completion of () ZEARAN_E__F=HA+/NHI e
acquisition by Luxshare on 16 March 2022. BRI RAEENEEAT -
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEHASME
The remuneration of key management personnel was as follows: FTEEEBASNMEAT
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 29,865 27,326
Equity-settled share-based payments R EE LI R B FRIE 1,894 2,191
Retirement benefits schemes contributions IRIRTERIETEIRER 1,709 1,123
33,468 30,640
The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the FEEEAENMSTAFMEES S KEIT
remuneration committee and the executive directors, having regard to the EEREAAXRARTSBEMETE -
performance of individuals and market trends.
(c) Guarantees given to banks by the following related parties: (0 LDUTBIE S mERITIREAER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Guarantees from Linkz Industries, the then ultimate RE BRI ARIEE TN
holding company ER - 467,670
Personal guarantees from Mr. Paul Lo, a non-executive REARQRSFITESEMETLLEN
director of the Company AR - 142,272

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 34. AABRIIEARER

RABNBAORERLT

The statement of financial position of the Company is as follows:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHEARNKE 805,436 805,436
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEM R B AT FIR 87,237 -
892,673 805,436
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables HibEWERIE 1,095 1,221
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW R B /AT IS 55,938 124,055
Bank balances and cash IRITHER NS 18,259 1,499
75,292 126,775
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals fEsT &R 2,395 945
Amount due to a subsidiary e —REINBARIRIE 137,248 70,070
Unsecured bank borrowing — amount due within one year FIRRIRITRE I — AR —FE AR E 181,474 124,278
321,117 195,293
Net current liabilities mENBREFE (245,825) (68,518)
Total assets less current liabilities HEEERREEE 646,848 736,918
Non-current liability IERBEE
Unsecured bank borrowing — amount due after one year MARIRIRITER — IR —FREIH 274,016 405,625
Net assets BEEFE 372,832 331,293
Capital and reserves BAR i
Share capital R 19,460 18,404
Reserves (note) & (fsT) 353,372 312,889
Total equity iR 372,832 331,293
Note: Mzt :
Share
Share Capital options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ReisE BAGEE BB R ek b REHEFA 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHET FHET FHEIT
(note a)
(FffzEa)
on 1 April 2020 RIZTEH
mBE—H 271,921 7,324 10,066 40,021 329,332
Profit and total comprehensive FEREF L2
income for the year W #r4a%E - - - 33,623 33,623
Dividends paid KRS - - - (55,200) (55,200)
Recognition of equity-settled share-  #ZEERR A E LI A
based payments EPRFRIE < FER - - 4,987 - 4,987
Exercise of share options 1TRRE R 216 - (69) - 147
Share options forfeited and et ESvaInEES
transferred to accumulated profits ~ R&ETa A - - (340) 340 -
At 31 March 2021 RIS
=A=+—H 272,137 7,324 14,644 18,784 312,889
Profit and total comprehensive FRHEFLE2E
income for the year I ERAR%R - - - 47,008 47,008
Dividends paid [SENP:4=S - - - (46,046) (46,046)
Recognition of equity-settled share- 3% 45 E UG
based payments ERMIE 2 R - - 4,335 - 4,335
Exercise of share options 1T{EHEAL e 51,348 - (16,162) - 35,186
At 31 March 2022 P —
=A=+—H 323,485 7,324 2,817 19,746 353,372

Note a:
ultimate holding company.

The amounts represent capital contribution fro

m Linkz Industries, the then

fyzta :

SERIER A ERNRRERARRETLRNE

& o
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

35. M B BIRYEEIR

NOTES TO THE_CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT'D)
eI IRRMEE (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31 March AANRNR B __HFR_E_—F=B=1+—H
2022 and 2021 are as follows: FAENRBEARMFBNT -
Nominal
Place of value of issued  Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued share capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
_ Fa AT ERTRA/  ARERBEETRA
L=NGE= FRILHE SMEAEE EfEZH TEEH
2022 2021
Directly held
EREE
Time Interconnect Investment Limited BV US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
HERAHE REZR
Linkz Cables Limited HK$8,390,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
FASEERAA %Ekﬁﬁﬁ% REZR
Indirectly held
EREE
Time Interconnect Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100% 100% Trading of cable assembly products
ERTXERAT } BEBGANER
TIME Interconnect Technology (Huizhou) Limited PRC US$28,600,000 99.9% 100% Manufacturing and trading of cable
(Note ¢) \ HE assembly products
ERRIE (BM) BRATR (FizEc) AERBEEHANER
Hover (Kunshan) Electronic Material Company Limited PRC HK$30,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of networking cables
__(Note a) . e LEREER
SM(EL) SFMRERAT (fizta)
Hover Manufacturing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$8,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
SMEIERRAT Eib REZK
Linkz (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
FRFEBRAR } REZK
Linkz Industries (Shanghai) Limited (Notes b and c) PRC US$15,000,000 95% 95% Manufacturing and trading of
BAERTX(DB) BRAR (WatbMke) HE networking cables
Linkz Industries (Suzhou) Limited (Note a) PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of
RT3 (BN) BRAR (sta) HE netvvoilng cables
LERBERRER
Linkz International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Trading of networking cables
BETFERERAR i BEERRER
RIUTHEEHEARAR Note d) PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of networking cables
EILMESBHERAR (fid) FE AERBER
Huizhou Chuangxiang Technology Limited (Note d) PRC RMB145,250,100 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of cable
EMNAIZRBAERAT (EEd) R assembly products
LEREERERANER
Time Rabotics Technology (Shanghai) Limited (Note d) PRC RMB4,056,550 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading of
BB AR (DF) BRAT (id) FE robotic products
LEREEBRER
EEFR AR (BI) BRAF (Note d) PRC RMB683,890 100% 100%  Development and trading of
EEHRARE (BM) BRAR (Fztd) HE computer softwares
FRRETERTMY
Time Interconnect (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% N/A  Trading of cable assembly products
ERLX (BB ERAT BE SEERATER
Time Wire Technology Hong Kong HK$68,935,878 100% N/A~ Trading of automotive wire harness
EFRRRE & products
EERERRER
Time Wire Huizhou (Note d) _ PRC RMB29,975,300 100% N/A" Manufacturing of automotive wire
ERRRE (EM) BRAT (fizkd) HE harness products

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

LERERBER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M EmRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #HZE_Z__F#=A=+—HLEE

35.

36.

37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@) These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Wholly Foreign-owned
Enterprises.

(b) The company was established as sino-foreign joint venture registered under the PRC
law.

(c) The non-wholly owned subsidiary has immaterial non-controlling interest and related
financial information is not disclosed.

(d) These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Wholly Owned Enterprises.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of both years.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes
unsecured bank borrowings and lease liabilities in notes 25 and 24 respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with the capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment
of bank borrowings.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

35.

36.

B3 BB X BIRIREIR ()
Byt

(@ ZEARINPELINEBEENT AR -
(b) ZARBRBEPEEFEEMEALATIHGESED
®

© BIFRENRARWETEAHERES
REBERMBEL -

- R

(d) ZEARDHNPELUBECENTARKIL -

RWEFER @ MENBARRTEAESEE
= o

EXREEE

RIERAEEMBREIHELE » AEEHH
ERETEE  WEBEEENMERERRET
BRENEFERARER - AEEAVEERRREN
BEFENERFIE -

FEENEARBEEERFE(DBRENE
25 R4 EIRFIRIT R NEERR) - KRR
ERBESEEMURKNRTHE ANELER (B
EOBITERRGERE) -

FARESTEHRERERRE - FRsERN—
D AARNEFERERRANEEAERER
Bk - REAQNDEENESR @ AEEBE6
RIS ~ BITHRG ~ BRNERRITER
FEHEEEARRE -

a. TWMITAEMNSHE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T

Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBER AT ENSREE 1,235,654 922,046
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESTABRC SRIEE 6,284 6,035
1,241,938 928,081

Financial liabilities A A =L
Amortised cost EheH A 1,864,508 1,525,856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets at FVTPL,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, unsecured bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable
rate bank balances and variable rate unsecured bank borrowings (see notes
21 and 25 for details of these balances, respectively). Interest charged on
the Group's borrowings are mainly at variable rates and are mainly at the
interest rate offered by the HIBOR. The Group currently does not have a
policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. However, the management
of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to the
fixed rate pledged bank deposits and fixed rate lease liabilities. However,
the management of the Group considers the fair value interest rate risk on
the fixed deposits is insignificant as the fixed deposits are relatively short-
term.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared
assuming that variable rate bank borrowings outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis point
increase or decrease represents the assessment management of the Group
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates of bank borrowings. No
sensitivity analysis is presented for bank balances as the directors of the
Company considered the Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
is not material.

If interest rate had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2022 would decrease or increase by HK$4,295,000 (2021:
HK$4,227,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the

inherent interest rate risk as the exposure at the end of the reporting period
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

37. &M TR @)

b.

M EMEE B IEREBIR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contD)

AR TEERMEE ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets (mainly including
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) and monetary liabilities (mainly including trade and other payables
and unsecured bank borrowings) denominated in currencies other than the
respective group entities’ functional currencies at the end of the reporting

37. £ IR @)

b. HEEKREZEBEREIR =)

A EE ()

SR
RERERRAEENEREE(EBEBE
BH5REMBEWFIE « EIERRRTERUL
BITHBR LIRS ) REKEE (ZR2EREES
B Bt FEAT 3008 & IR IR SR 1T 5 50) BOERTE
BELEBREEERNNEEEELIIMNYE T

period are as follows: B W
Assets Liabilities
BE Bf&

2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHITT FET Tt
HK$ against US$ BITHRZETT 24,771 15,057 531,211 602,545
RMB against US$ NG SEE Sy 3,159 609 - -
Euro against US$ BT R T 7,806 3,135 1,168 369
US$ against RMB ETHARIE 10,520 16,078 122,584 102,084
US$ against HK$ EILHRBTT 266,042 192,490 3,427 5,550

Other than above, several subsidiaries of the Group have the following
intra-group receivables (payables) denominated in HK$ and US$, which are
foreign currencies of the relevant group entities.

BrLaish B TASEWEAR U T ERE
M IEWGRIR (FEAFRIR) BUB TR ETT (BB
BASSEERRAIINE) FHE -

Amounts due from (to)
group entities

FEUS (FEfT) ERIERETRIR

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

HK$ against US$ BITHETT (114,939) (38,609)
US$ against HK$ EITHABTT (285,236) (174,558)

US$ against RMB ETTH AR 160,794 135,513
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in AREE B R RA B NS BRSNS
respect of foreign currency exposure. However, management monitors KoAM BEESRIESZHANER

the related foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of US$, HK$, RMB
and Euro. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial impact
on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will be immaterial as most
HK$ denominated monetary assets and liabilities are held by group entities
having US$ as their functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

% ANEBEREEHREALEER -

BRUE DT
REETRAZET BT - ARBEERT

HOSNERER o EEXBMEET - ANEE
ERFHIAREILUETHENEEEER

BEMETAEINEE » BITHETEX
ERINIH B EBARER - A LRSS

RUE DT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT)
e M mRMEE (o)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in US$ against RMB and Euro. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the Group's
monetary assets, monetary liabilities and amounts due from/to group
entities denominated in RMB, Euro and US$. A positive (negative) number
indicates a decrease (increase) in post-tax profit when US$ strengthens 5%
against RMB and Euro. For a 5% weakening of US$ against RMB and Euro,
there would be an equal but opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the
year.

37. &M TR @)

b.

BB RGEIERIZREBUR (@)

I'ﬁf?i/_l 5 (48)

SR e (4
TXBRESITHFAAREERETAARKE
BT EARTRERS%HIBRE - FRA%
RBRELERKREEEHERNSIEA B
FENTE - BRESTBEAEEUAR
BRI RETIIENEEESE - E%aR&
LIEWFERNEEEERIE - E (&) 855K
BEXTRARBREITHAES% R » BRELE
AR (8 h0) o ETHEARBEBITRE
5% Al@WFEENBRRERAEESE
{E@)}S\ﬁxﬂ °

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
RMB against US$ ARBRZETT 132 25
Euro against US$ BRITREETT 277 115
US$ against RMB ETAARE (1,827) (1,857)
In the opinion of the management of the Group, the sensitivity analysis AEBEEEBERR  BREDMAEREA
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk as the year end EINERS - RANERNE R R R ®RR
exposures do not reflect the exposure during the year. FANRERE °
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREERBESFE
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties default on EERBREAEERGUFEETENELT
their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group. E@ﬁﬁix%’\] C MEAEERZ Y BEEN

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables, trade
receivables from fellow subsidiaries, contract assets, bills receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances. The Group does not hold any
collateral to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets but
maintains credit insurance policies to insure trade receivables with details
mentioned below to insure counterparty risks with customers.

Trade balances (including trade receivables, trade receivables from fellow
subsidiaries and contract assets)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals. Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal
credit rating for its customers. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade balances which are assessed
individually as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired).

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

37. 2T R @)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HM#REMMEEBIREREUR &)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EE/E fER BB ()

Trade balances (including trade receivables, trade receivables from fellow B A (AEEZE L/JZ I8 ~ K F R R

subsidiaries and contract assets) (continued) /‘=' RNEIRIE ZIEWSIE R SAVEE) (4#)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has concentration of credit R|EPR > AEEASEREERR -

risk as 23% (2021: 28%) and 69% (2021: 69%) of trade receivables BB S EWEIEMN23% (S - —5F 1 28%)

were due from the Group's largest customer and five largest customers, Ke9% (ZF_—4: 69%) Ty RIZRE A

respectively. As at 31 March 2022, the Group has the concentration risk EBEABFPNAREE - RN B2 "F=

from customer A, customer B, customer C and customer D amounted for B=4+—H - Zﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm REB

a total of 64% (2021: 62%) of trade balances. They are international well- BECEREPDMEFRER EAREES

known companies engaging in telecommunications and global networking ERRIN64% (B - —F 1 62%)° SR

industries and with strong financial backgrounds. The expected loss rates PAENREEANDIRPBITENBBRANZA
of these customers are either 0.05% (2021: 0.04%) or 0.25% (2021: A WBEEIEE - 2SEPINTENEEX

0.20%) respectively and are assessed as low risk. The Group also maintains A £50.05%( —F " —4:0.04% ) 30.25%

the credit insurance policies to insure against counter-party risk with all (ZFEZ—5F:020%) WEFAERR -

customers, of which 90% of the actual losses would be covered by the AEETERFEERRBERUBERE RS
insurance policies. The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical MWEFHRRBIER  HOO%ERBIBERSE

location is mainly in the PRC which accounted for 54% (2021: 66%) of WE N _FB__HF=H=+—H ' x&

trade receivables as at 31 March 2022. iz EBEMERSNEREERREIERT

B HEZEWFIENS A% (ZE - —4F
66% ) °
Gross carrying amount RREE
2022 2021
Trade Trade
receivables receivable
Average Trade  from fellow Contract Average Trade  from afellow Contract
Credit rating EETH lossrate  receivables  subsidiaries assets loss rate receivables subsidiary assets
RERFR RE-BERZE
WELAFR WEATN
FHEEE BRENRE HBRENHE ANEE  THEEX Z5BIGE EZRIGIE AHNEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thr TEr TEr TR TR

Strong B 0.05 787,568 128 29,708 0.04 516,873 426 2,860

Good By 0.25 162,494 - - 0.20 200,114 - -

Satisfactory WE 3.90 30,912 - - 3.00 27,395 - -

Wiatch list 2 13.00 7 V] - - 10.00 343 - -

981,316 128 29,708 744,725 426 2,860

Quality classification definitions: BROMES

“Strong” The counterparty has very low risk of default and TREfE, HFFENRBRIFBE - I
a prompt payment pattern. They are international BIVRNF E’JE‘lEE o SR
well-known companies with strong financial BIRRHBMAT - BIEED
background. IEE -

“Good"” The counterparty has low default risk and has =L HFFENRRK  HHBE
strong financial background. NEE -

“Satisfactory” The counterparty has moderate default risk and TmE HFFENRREN @ BE
occasionally repays after due dates, but with fair TEEIEHBEN - BHBE
financial background. AR

“Watch list” The counterparty has moderate default risk TREER HFTENRBEN - &8

and frequently repays after due dates, but with
fair financial background. They require special
attention from the management of the Group.

EEIHIHBEN - 8 Hﬁ%“*
NARG - REEEEEBS
IR -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade balances (including trade receivables, trade receivables from fellow
subsidiaries and contract assets) (continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, trade receivables, trade
receivables from fellow subsidiaries and contract assets were assessed
individually with considering the financial background and the historical
settlement records, including the past due dates and default rates of each
trade balance and forward-looking information is reasonable, supportable
and available without undue costs or effort. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information. No impairment allowance
was recognised as amounts involved are insignificant.

Other receivables and rental deposits

Other receivables and rental deposits amounted to HK$10,170,000
(2021: HK$5,786,000) were assessed individually for ECL. The Group has
considered the consistently low historical default rate in connection with
payments and concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s other
receivables and rental deposits are insignificant and no loss allowance was
recognised.

Pledged bank deposits, bank balances and bills receivables

For pledged bank deposits, bank balances and bills receivables, the directors
of the Company considered the probability of default is negligible on the
basis of high-credit-rating issuers as such amounts were receivable from
or placed in banks with high external credit rating of A or above, no
loss allowance was recognised as amounts involved were considered as
insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
of the Group to finance the Group’s operations. The management of the
Group also monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
their non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity date for
other non-derivative financial liabilities is based on the agreed repayment
dates.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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HERNBEREEZ S

HfbREM I K E1%24210,170,0005875(Z
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BEEBETIHE - AEEEEEI B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT'D)
eI RMEE (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #&#Z_FE-__F#=A=+—HLtHFE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. &M I A

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) b. HM#REMMEEBREREUR =)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEVEZ/EE ()
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that ZRBEMNEEASHESENE - WA BERE
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from BYEANX - RITRSERERENRN
current interest rate at the end of the reporting period. BEARIZX -
Liquidity risk tables REELRER
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
effective  orless than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months tolyear 1to2years 2to5years OverSyears  cashflows amounts
T BEXH FifRE
BRRE  OR=BR =RERE-% —EWE MERE BBanE it fREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T TEr Thx
31 March 2022 “Z_EZB=t-R
Non-derivative financial ~ 3JEFT4SBEME
liabilities
Trade and other payables E5 R EMTIE N/A TR 673,104 129,241 - - - 802,345 802,345
Lease liabilities HEAR 5.58 3,506 10,018 12,909 33,833 8,584 68,850 58,835
Unsecured bank borrowings ~ SESEIRGTIE ()
(note) 3.08 455,463 384,479 193,588 47,578 - 1,081,108 1,062,163
1,132,073 523,738 206,497 81,411 8,584 1,952,303 1,923,343
31 March 2021 “3_-%=B=t-H
Non-derivative financial ~ JEff4SBERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 REMENTE N/A RER 486,499 27,149 - - - 513,648 513,648
Lease liabilities HEEE 5.58 2214 8,019 7,624 28,224 7,673 53,754 44,256
Unsecured bank borrowings  SEEBSRATAERR (M35
(note) 281 472,809 147,385 180,480 238,624 - 1,039,298 1,012,208
91,522 182,553 188,104 266,848 7673 1,606,700 1,570,112
Note: BYEE -
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand B R E SR ERERIRITES I8 B A4
or less than 3 months” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March A TIRERSKDNR=E A , WEE&HE - R-F
2022, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to ZIFE=A=1—H  ZFRITEFINREEER
HK$177,307,000 (2021: HK$347,303,000). Taking into account the Group's financial 177,307,00057T ( —F"—4 : 347,303,000/
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the JT) ° T RAEBMNSBERR 0 AABREEEE
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The SRIT AR ATBEAT B E B ISR LI SR BIRFR » AA
directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within 1 AIEFENEE  REERBEFMSMEEFRHE &
year (2021: within 2 years) after the end of the reporting period in accordance with BIRITIEFENHRERRE—FER (ZF - —F:
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements and the aggregate MER) EE  MIREBEEERBRERNASE
principal and interest cash outflows according to the scheduled repayment dates are AR BBRESHRHEAT
set out as follows:
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1year 1t0 2 years 2to 5 years cash flows amounts
T BEXS, FRRE
BRHE PR=ER Z@RE-£ —ERE MERE nEEE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL TERL TERL TERL TER
Unsecured bank borrowings RERRTER
At 31 March 2022 RZF_"F=A=+-H 262 149,761 27,764 - - 177,525 177,307
At 31 March 2021 RZ5_—F=A=1+-H 3.68 268,204 65,607 16,160 - 349,971 347,303
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &ZE-_ZS__"F#=A=1+—HILEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

37. &M TR @)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 25, several of the Group’s HIBOR bank loans may be subject
to the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group is closely monitoring
the market and managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant Interbank Offered Rate
regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average (“HONIA") has been
identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR.
The multi-rate approach has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR
and HONIA will co-exist.

Progress towards implementation of alternative benchmark
interest rates

As part of the Group’s risk management for transition, new contracts
entered into by the Group are linked to the relevant alternative benchmark
rates or interest rates which are not subject to reform to the extent feasible.
Otherwise, the Group ensured the relevant contracts include detailed fall
back clauses clearly referencing the alternative benchmark rate and the
specific triggering event on which the clause is activated.

In addition, for a floating rate loan that is linked to HIBOR, the Group had
confirmed with the relevant counterparty HIBOR will continue to maturity.

Fair value measured of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

b. M#EMEREBEREBSR )

FIEIEIELE

MANM L2518 - AREEE T EHERITRE
ERBRTERNEINERERELE -
AEFEEZYEEHENERBEEMER
ME - BEEERTREERSEBELNA

& o

EBIRTTRIFE T
BECRBEBTRETEE (TETRRT
BIERL) REBRITREF S ZELRZE
HHARBEANBEMAETBRITEEFEZA
&) - BEEMSA KRG - BBRITRZER
BRAETTRETFEERALSE -

BB BEFIFER

FRAEEBERARERN—HS < <%0
ST SN SR B B R EERI RS AT
WENREREHORIEEL - B8] - AEE
BIRIEBEANREHENERER - HEs
=B R EANEAAE R R LR RS
o

Lesh - W EREFBRITRIZER SEMIRT B
MERGH  ARECEMARRISH FERE
BIRTTREF SRR -

BRAFESEESMIA
BRFEERE M B EMEEN R TFE

REWREHR - BREREESIZATET
£ - PRI MAREEZEEREENAT
EMEN (LEZMERNEERIREA
Hig)  UNAVEFTEMBNATFESRR
WA (E—RE=ARNERATFETEHA
FENUBRERENR) -

Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy and key inputs
SHEE RUTHRSNAFE AFEER EERTREIEGHARRE
31.3.2022 31.3.2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT T
Financial assets at FVTPL — Life insurance policy 6,284 6,035 Level 3 Quoted asset value provided by
financial institution (note)
BRAHE AR SRIEE - ASRBRE E=H TRIBIBRENEEBERE

Note:  Quoted prices provided by bank represent the fair value based on the quoted
prices on the underlying investments.

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
approximate to their fair values.

FE BRI AR/ A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(F&E)

MR RATIREREEEN AR ERENA
¥ -

REBEZS__ERTFT—F=A=+—
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38.

39.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financial activities.

38. MEREMEEREZHE

TRHNAEEREDED (BERSRIFR O
B)ELZAE - RAEDAEL GRS
RERERRKAL B EARAGARLT

EXNNRAREEFDRSNECEE -

Unsecured
bank
Amount due borrowings,
toultimate Amountdue  Derivative other
holding  to related financial ~ than bank Dividend Lease Interest
company  companies liabilities  overdrafts payable liabilities payable Total
BEREST
Effmiess EfEE fif  BRERT
RARTE AFRE tHag BRI EfRE HERE ERFE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt T T T T T T
At 1 April 2020 RIZFENA-H 217,947 - - 1,172,598 - 47,055 - 1,437,600
Financing cash flows BERSNE (121,364) - - 598,415 (55,200) (10,061) (39,803) 371,987
Finance costs recognised FUEI=GN - - - - - 2,102 39,803 42,525
Dividends declared EERIKS - - - - 55,200 - - 55,200
Non-cash transaction (note 31) JEE &% 5 (Mz31) (96,583) - - (786,076) - - - (882,659)
New lease entered EIMARE - - - - - 845 - 845
Lease modification HEB:] - - - - - 32 - (32)
Exchange realignment [ AR - - - 27,204 - 3,727 - 30,931
At 31 March 2021 WISZ-EF=A=+-A - - - 01214 - 256 - 1,056,397
Financing cash flows BERSNE - (22,349) [y 34,484 (46,046) (12,39) (35,555) (81.440)
Finance costs recognised DEENA - - (17) - - 2,905 35,555 38,043
Dividends declared EERIRE - - - - 46,046 - - 46,046
Acquisition of business iR (fst32)

(note 32) - 22,344 - - - 14,785 - 37,129
New lease entered EfTufmEE - - - - - 7,464 - 7,464
Exchange realignment ErRAE - - - 15,538 - 1,821 - 17,359
At 31 March 2022 R_Z__E=F=1—H - - - 1,062,163 - 58,835 - 1,120,998

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 19 April 2022, Luxshare, the ultimate holding company of the Company,
acquired and cancelled of 45,296,000 outstanding share options of the Group.
The Group would account for the cancellation as an acceleration of vesting and
recognise immediately the amount that otherwise would have been recognised
for services received over the remainder of the vesting period. Details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 April 2022.

39. REHEREE

RIBZ"HFNA+AH » AABREZERAT
I7EAMCEE S AT SE A A R RTT £ V45,296,000 8

M - AEBBEUEMBRIETAMREE -

FRER B AT RIS A AR R B LIS - S7EIFER
INRBENSE - KEMNFREENART AR

TETHNA+TAHMNAER °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HI TS =
RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 March
HBHE=HA=1T—HL=FE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT BT Tt Tt FET
(note) (restated) (restated)
(FfdzE) (#&&=71) (K&E7)
Revenue 25 1,238,374 2,971,501 2,780,150 3,008,019 3,590,117
Profit before taxation BRABL B A 171,014 202,937 188,852 268,111 232,855
Taxation G| (38,894) (36,050) (34,368) (41,480) (64,582)
Profit for the year FRitAl 132,120 166,887 154,484 226,631 168,273
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
m=B=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt FHET FHET FET
(note) (restated) (restated)
GES) (&=E=71) (#&=71)
Total assets EEE 882,906 3,142,733 3,187,431 2,598,964 3,182,762
Total liabilities waE (424,184) (2,045,691) (2,021,536) (1,734,563)  (2,119,317)
Net assets EEFHE 458,722 1,097,042 1,165,895 864,401 1,063,445

Note:  The assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and the results for the year then ended ~ FiEE ©  BIGEMBHRERMEIIMER - RZF—N\F=
have not been restated to present the effect of the acquisitions of the Target Group, A=1T—HWNEELEEUIEEZALFENE

as set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENEETI L2 B REENRE -

FEBE R AR A TIME INTERCONNECT TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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